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NEW ZEALAND.

PUBLIC ACCOUNTS COMMITTEE.

BANKING ARRANGEMENTS OF THE GOVERNMENT.

Report brought up 20th October, 1875.

ORDER OF REFERENCE.
(Extractfrom the Journals of the Souse of Representatives.)

Thursday, the 29th day op July, 1875.
Ordered, That it be an instruction to the Public Accounts Committee to inquire into and report upon the conditions

under which the Banking Business of the Government is conducted by the Bank of New Zealand, and whether these
conditions imperatively required that so large a sum as between three and four millions should be deposited with one
institution; and further to report whether it is not in the interest of the colony at large that otherarrangements should
be made for the future. The Committee to report in three weeks.—(Mr. Rolleston.)

ORDER OF REFERENCE.
(Extract from the Journals of the Souse of Representatives.)

Tuesday, the 24th day op August, 1875.
Ordered, That leave be given to the Public Accounts Committee to postpone the bringing up of their report on the

Banking Business of the Colony for three weeks.—(Mr. Reader Wood.)

ORDER OF REFERENCE.
(Extract from the Journals of the Souse of Representatives.)

Thursday, the 7th day op October, 1875.
Resolved, That the Public Accounts Committee have power to prosecute such inquiry as may arise out ofany evidence

before the Committee upon the Banking Arrangements of the Government.—(Mr. Reader Wood.)

REPORT.
The Public Accounts Committee having, in obedience to the reference to them of the 29th day of July,
inquired into the conditions of the Banking business of the Government, and the several other matters
referred to therein, and having taken evidence thereon, do now report as follows:—

1. The conditions on which the Banking business of the Government is conducted by the Bank of
New Zealand are shown by the correspondence between the Government and the Bank, copies of
which are appended.

2. The Committee are of opinion that those conditions did not require that the whole of the
proceeds of the loans should be deposited with oneBank ; and wouldfurther express their opinion that,
for the future, a limit should be placed to the depositing of large sums in any one institution, and that
separate arrangements, apart from the ordinary Banking arrangements of the Government, should be
made in each casefor dealing with the proceeds of all loans raised by the colony.

3. Further, the Committee have come to the following resolutions, which, together with the
evidence and appendices, they have the honor toreport:—■

1. That, in the opinion of this Committee, notice should be forthwith given to determine the
present agreementwith the Bank of New Zealand.

2. That tenders should be invited from the several Banks (not associated but separately)
carrying on business within the colony, for conducting the Government account of the
colony.

3. That the imputations and inferences of Mr. Bridges, to the effect that some improper
influence had been exercisedby the Bank of New Zealand on Sir Julius Vogel, in con-
nection with the purchase of the Port Chalmers Railway and otherwise, are absolutely
unwarranted and withoutfoundation.

E. W. Staffoed,
20th October, 1875. Chairman.
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BANKING ARRANGEMENTS OF THE GOVERNMENT.

MINUTES OF EVIDENCE.
Tuesday, 24th August, 1875.

Mr. D. L. Murdoch examined.
1. The Chairman.'] Youare the Inspector of the Bank of New Zealand?—1 am.
2. That Bank does the Government business entirely ?—Ves, entirely.
3. Under specific conditions?—Ves.
4. Can you state what these are?—They are as contained in a printed paper laid before the

Housein 1873. [Witness laid a copy of the paper before the Committee, and it wasread by theclerk.]
5. Has that been supplemented in any way by any further agreement?—Yes; but the general

conditions of the agreementhave not been affected.
6. Do the exchanges now stand on the same footing as under that agreement?—Ves, on the

same footing.
7. Do you consider that these conditions render it necessary that the large sum which has been

deposited in London should be deposited with the Bank of New Zealand ?—Clearly. I may say that
the amount has been overstated by Mr. Rolleston.

8. Will you state what that amount was at the highest time?—The largest amount of which I
had advices to the credit of the Government at one time was £2,600,000, and that was only for a very
short period.

9. Can you state the probable amount now, at the last advices ?—£1,700,000 was theamount at
credit. All the instalments of the loan had not been paid.

10. Do you suppose as they are paid in that the amountwill be in excess of that?—I do notthink
so, from the imperfect knowledge I have of the liabilities of the Government in London.

11. Is the Committee to understand by your answer that, owing to the varying exchanges that
have takenplace in the last two or three years, the banking arrangements have remained the same
throughout?—Precisely the same.

12. Hon. E. W. Stafford.] Tou have stated that the general terms of the arrangementhave notbeen
altered. Was there not a special alteration made with regard to the new portion of the loan ?—Yes ;
there was a special arrangement made by Sir Julius Vogel lately, whereby the interest on credit
balances was increased from 1 per cent, under the Bank of Englandrate tof.

13. Mr. Johnston.] Youhave stated that, in your opinion, the Government arebound under the
terms of the arrangement to place the whole amount of the public money in the hands of the Bank of
New Zealand, without any stipulation on the part of the Bank as to the amount ofaccommodation that
might be required ?—Yes, under this agreement; but I think that, from the experience of the Govern-
ment during the time the Bank of New Zealand has held the account, there is ample evidence thatthey
have always been willing to meet any reasonable request.

14. Reasonable compared with the paid-up capital of the Bank ?—Yes, and its resources.
15. Generally speaking, is there not some relation between the amount of coin and bullion

retained in the hands of the Bank, and theamount of advances they make, and that some proportion of
coin and bullion must be retained in order to do a safe business, in theory ?—The relation is not
between the amount of coin and the advances, but between the amount of coin and the liabilities of the
Bank—the deposits and the circulation of theBank.

16. What is the ordinary relation?—lt varies. It is between 20 and 25 per cent, of the
demand liabilities of the Bank ordinarily considered.

17. May Iask the proportion in the Bank of New Zealand compared with the liabilities?—With
its demand liabilities ?—I am notprepared to say, but the proportion is larger than is considered the
safe limit.

18. But still, is not the limit of safety so nearly attained that it would seem theBank is doing as
much as it can at the present moment ?—lf the Bank required a larger amount of coin, it could be
obtained in fourteen days.

19. The reason I put the question is this : In case of the Government requiring a larger amount
could the Bank furnish it without restricting its general business?—Certainly; it depends of course
upon the amount of the accommodationrequired.
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Mur- 20. I would say half a million ?—That would also dependuponthe period for which itwas wanted.
If only temporarily, the Bank would be in a position to do it.

1375 21. Say for six months,or twelve months?—l should not like to say positively.
22. Mr. Shephard.] That would depend upon the general state of the money market ?—There

might be a time of severe pressure when it would be inconvenient.
23. Mr. Johnston.] In Australia some of the Governments make a practice of dividing the

account amongan Association of Banks ?—The Victorian Government is the only one that I am aware
of that divides their account among any number of banks. There has recently been a partial with-
drawalof surplus funds by the Government of New South Wales from the Bank of New South Wales,
but under no provision for a division of the account.

24. Under the system of dividing the Government account, is it, in your opinion, easier for the
Government to obtain a large amount without causing pressure upon the public ?—Taking the united
resources of the Association, I should be obliged to answer yes, but practically I do cot think so. I
think the Government is much more at the mercy of banks when an association of banks exists than
when it is dealing with one bank.

25. In Victoria the Government negotiate its loans in London through the agency of this
Association?—It does.

26. Does it obtain any advantageby so doing ?—On the contrary, I think it is at a disadvantage.
There has been a recent case of negotiating a loan, in which the Associated Banks failed in raising the
loan. The balance of the loan was taken up by the Associated Banks at very considerably diminished
prices.

27. Do you think the colony gets better terms by negotiating through the Crown Agents or
through financiers ?—I can scarcely tell. Judging by results, I should say the latter.

28. Mr. Pearce.] In reply to a question from Mr. Stafford, you stated that the Bank made special
advances on special terms—will you state to what extent these weremade, andwhat the terms were?—
The terms were 6 per cent., and the amount has been up to £250,000.

29. That is to say, the special terms werein favour of the Government ?—Yes.
30. On any occasion have more severeterms been exacted than those stated in the agreement?—

No, on no occasion.
31. I observein the agreement that there is no provision for bringing funds from London to the

colony ?—There is not.
32. On what terms is that done?—The Government draw at sixty days', and the drafts are

negotiated by the bank at per cent, discount.
33. Has thatobtained for some time?—lt has.
34. Is that the rate on that portion of the loan which has to come to the colony ?—lt is.
35. Is it not a fact that Provincial Governments have been able to get better banking terms than

the General Government?—There has been one notable instance lately in which a bank competing for
the Provincial Government account of Hawke's Bay gave an extremerate.

36. Sir F. D. Bell.] What rate?—Seven per cent, on the daily balances of the account. Of
course it is open to individual interpretation what the reason was, but if the Committee would like
me to give my own opinion, I will do so.

37. Mr. Pearce.] Speaking generally, do not the Provincial Governments get their business done
on better terms than the General Government ?—They do not, generally.

38. You stated, in answer to Mr. Johnston, that in your opinion the Victorian loan was at a dis-
advantage by the banking account being in an association. You gave noreason for that. Have you
anyreasons to offer?—I have noreasonbeyond the results at thatperiod. The Victorian loan seemed
to be at a disadvantageas compared with other loans.

39. Was not that loan, which was 4 per cent., negotiated at £90 10s. ?—I can only judge by
what I saw in the papers,and that was that it was taken at 88|. They took it at the minimum price
of 90, less accrued interest—and the interest was at least If—so that the price would be 88f.

40. Is it not likely that, if the Government made a demand on the Bank for a large advance,
that it would materially interfere with commercial advances madeunder ordinary circumstances for the
necessities of commerce?—lt altogether depends upon the amount.

41. Was it not the fact that the Bank of New Zealand, prior to the floating of the loan, did
bring pressure upon their ordinary customers—that is to say, did not afford the same facilities as they
were prepared to doafter the floating of the loan?—Certainly not.

42. The same facilities were afforded before as after?—Certainly. Of course there are individual
cases iv which pressure was brought to bear, but the reasons in these cases had no reference to the
position of the Government and the Bank. Cases are constantly occurring such as I have mentioned,
but beyond these no pressure thatI am aware of was put upon the customers of the Bank of New
Zealand.

43. If it is the general impression that it was so, it is an erroneous impression ?—Certainly.
44. You are not aware that any of the managers stated that as a reason for withholding

accommodation that would have been given under ordinary circumstances?—I am not aware of it.
45. Hon. E. W. Stafford.] At the time of floating the Four Million Loan, had the Bank made any

large advance to the Government beyond the £250,000, which was stated in the Financial Statement
to have been secured on special bonds ?—Without referring to the books of the Bank, I am scarcely in
a position to auswer. My impression is that one or two drafts on the Loan Agents were negotiated
before the negotiation of the loan. These might be to the amount of £200,000 or £300,000. That is
my impression only ; I cannot state it as a fact.

46. In answer to a question from Mr. Johnston, you stated, as your opinion, that the Govern-
ment of Victoria suffered from keeping its account with the Associated Banks; will you give your
reason why you think so. lam not now referring to the question of the loan, but generally?—There
maybe a combination amongst the banks to refuse any application made by the Government, which
one bank would not feel justified in resisting.
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47. Because, if it resisted, the Government would go to the other banks ?—Quite so. An
association of banks, I should imagine, must lead to a very great increase in the trouble ofkeeping the
accounts, and, therefore, an increase of expense to the Government.

48. You are not aware, of your own knowledge, that it has led to an increase?—I am aware that
the Bank of New Zealand acts throughout the colony as paymaster for the Government, which
the Association of Banks in Victoria does not.

49. Without charge ?—Yes, without charge. In Victoria it costs between £15,000 and £16,000
in salaries alone in connectionwith country Paymasters, and, allowing for premises and rent, not less
than £20,000, the whole of which is done here by the Bank of New Zealand.

50. Then cheques are drawn from the Treasury upon the local banks ?—Yes, theyare transmitted
for payment, and receipts are takenat the banks.

51. Mr. Johnston.] You stated that under your interpretation of the agreement existing, the
Government was bound to place in the hands of the Bank of New Zealand whatever money it might
have to deposit ?—Yes.

52. Does not the agreement also compel the Bank to give the Government the rate of interest
mentioned in the agreementfor the deposits?—Certainly.

53. Because I notice that the Government deposit of the two million and a half doesnot get the
rate mentioned in the agreement?—lt gets a better rate—i per cent, better. It is f below the Bank
of England rate, instead of 1 per cent.

54. Mr. Pearce.] Was there any understanding between the Governmentand the Bank that any
large part of the loan should remain in London, or should be brought to the colony for the ordinary
uses of the Bank ?—The understanding between the Bank and Sir Julius Vogel was that the loan
should only be drawnfrom the Bank in dischargeof the liabilities for which the loan is raised.

55. The question is this : May the Bank, of its own motion, bring out a portion of these funds
to the colony if it thinks proper to do so ?—Certainly not; it must be ready to meet the demands of
the Government in London.

56. But by the agreement the Government gets a larger rate of interest in the colony than in
London. May the Bank, by its own motion, bring the moneys belonging to the Government to the
colony, or must it retain the money in London till drawn for by the Colonial Treasurerhere ?—The
Bank must be prepared to meet the demands of the Government in London. They could not bring
the money out for use here. The Colonial Treasurer is negotiating bills to a considerable amount
against the loan in London already ; the sum approaches a million.

57. Might he draw the whole of the money to the colony, and get the colonial rate ?—I do not
think that would be in the spirit of the agreement with the Bank. The letter between the Bank and
Sir Julius Vogel is printed, in connectionwith the correspondence connected with the Four Million
Loan, and, accordingto the spirit of that letter, I should say that it would not be in accordance with
the agreement if the whole amount, or any large portion not required herefor the discharge of liabili-
ties, was drawn from London.

58. At all events, there is never at the same time an overdraft here and a large deposit in
London?—I am not aware of any instance. There is practically an overdraft now in the colony, but
not bearing interest.

59. That is another divergencefrom the agreement?—I have mentioned that there was a special
arrangement. We have never exacted terms worse than the agreement, but they have always been
more favourable to the Government.

60. Am I right in understanding you that the Government receive f less than the Bank of
England rate for money, while at the same time they have an overdraft here ?—They do not pay for
the overdraft here.

61. But instead ofhaving thatoverdraft of £200,000 or £300,000, they might be receiving colonial
rates P—l should fancy not, according to the Audit Act. The Treasurer, no doubt, can explain that
better than I can.

62. Mr. Pearce.] When theBank gets such a sum as £2,600,000, the lender may reasonably say
what are you going to do with this ? He ought to know for the safety of the money itself how it is in-
vested—whether it is employed in consols or invested in Lombard Street ?—lt is invested by lending
it for short periods on ample securities in Lombard Street.

63. Hon. W. Eitzherbert.] Is there any possibility of risk to the lenders in such transactions ?—
The transactions of the Bank in Lombard Street areamply secured, and there is no risk, unless in such
a contingency as wouldmake English consols and other funded securities totally unsaleable.

64. lam supposing such a case. Would there not have been a dimunitionof risk in such a case,
supposing the money had been placed in associated banks ?—I can scarcely imagine such circumstances
as would warrant me in saying there would be greater safety.

05. Supposing you did imagine them, how would it be?—Well, under such circumstances, I
apprehend the condition of the country would be such that the Government would not be in a safe
position even in the hands of associated banks, if there was a total stoppage of credit.

66. May I suppose you consider it a matter of indifference as to the resources of any bank with
whom, large deposits aremade ?—Certainlynot.

67. Well then, am I to consider that there is no additional advantage in having a greater number
—a greater distributionof investmeuts?—There is no doubtthat if money is divided among a number
of banks any risk which may attach to the deposit is diminished.

[General terms of the banking arrangement of the Government, presented to both Houses in.1873, read to witness.]
68. What do you understand by the term "balances" there?—All funds belonging to the

Government.
69. Do you understand that, in placing on the market four millions, of which you endeavourto

get the proceeds as rapidly as possible, these general provisions prevent the Government from
exercising its discretion in the interest of the colony in the investment of the money?—May I ask
what you meanby investment ?

Mr. D. L. Mttr-
i doch.

■24th Aug., 1875.
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70. Supposing it would have been of advantage to have purchased Exchequerbills as the proceeds
came in from the sale of the loan, would it have been competent for the Colonial Treasurer to have
invested in Exchequer bills ?—Under the strict interpretation of the agreement I do not think such an
application of Government funds could have been made without the Bank being aconsenting party. I
feel sure, however, thatif it had been advantageous to put a portion of the money into Exchequer bonds
or other securities, the Bank would have been a consenting party to it.

71. Do you consider, then, that the terms of this agreement prevent the Colonial Treasurer from
consulting the interest of the colony except by permission of the Bank ?—I should not like to put it
in these words. Any funds belonging to the Government, under the existing agreement, we under-
stand are to be lodged with the Bank.

72. What do you understand by balances to be kept there? Is the Government by these
regulations prevented, if they should think proper, from investing in Exchequer bills ? I understand
you to reply that you think so, except with the consent of the Bank. I put it in another shape: Must
the Colonial Treasurer ask for leave before he makes an investment which he thinks advantageous.
(Letterfrom Mr. Larkworthy read to witness, of date 30th March, 1875, included in printed papers.)—
I do not think the Bank would put an interpretation on that condition which would prevent a special
investment of a particular portion of the loan.

73. I want to know what it means without reference to permission. Supposing the Government
and the Bank to be at issue under this agreement, would you say that the Government had broken the
agreement in not depositing the money ? Would it not have been competent for the Government to
have invested the proceeds of the four millions in Exchequer bills ?—I think it would.

74. Would it not have been competent for the Government, in view of an approaching transac-
tion of the magnitude of four millions, to have given notice to the Bank of six months, as requiredby
the last generalprovision ?—Certainly.

75. Supposing that to have been done, would not the door then have been open to make any
special arrangement with reference to large transactions ?—lt would have been quite competent
to do so.

76. May I ask what is the largest overdraft, taking the total aggregateat London and here, of
the Governmentthis year? In other words, what is the largest amount of theoverdraft of the colony
here and in England during this year ?—I could not answer without reference to the books of the
Bank.

77. Mr. Johnston.] Is the disability of the Government to bring the proceeds of the Four Million
Loanto the colony caused by the general agreement, or by the agreementmade bySir Julius Vogel ?—
Under that made by Sir Julius Vogel.

78. Sir F. D. Bell.] By the special arrangement do you refer to the arrangement which is
printed in the papersconnected with the Four Million Loan r—Yes.

Appendix 1.

Wednesday, 25th August, 1875.
Mr. D. L. Mubdoch, Inspector of the Bank of New Zealand: Examination continued.

79. The Chairman^] You were to supply the Committee with the largest amount of overdraft.
Have you been able to ascertain it ?—Yes, but it depends on what view the Committee will take ofan
advance against debentures. Whether theyconsider such an advance as an overdraft.

80. They do.—l understand, also, that they wish to know the difference between the amount so
advanced and the amount of the creditbalance.

81. Yes.—The difference between these two amounts would be, in round numbers, £30,000
during the last twelve months.

82. I thought there was one overdraft of £250,000 secured on debentures ?—That is against a
credit balance of the same amount.

83. Sir F. D. Bell.] I understood you, in your last answers to Mr. Fitzherbert, yesterday, to
qualify the answer you had previously made with respect to the duty of the Government to keep all
balances of every account at the Bank ; and that, in your opinion, it would have been competent for
the Government to have invested a part of the Four Million Loan which they raised in Exchequer
bills, without interferingwith the existing arrangements with the Bank ?—Yes.

84. In point of fact, then, at the time the Loan Agents were negotiating that loan, they had the
power, without interfering inequitably with the Bank, to have dealt with the Four Million Loan
irrespectively of the general terms of the agreement printed in the papers laid before the Committee ?
—They had.

85. I understood you also to say that while, on the one hand, it would not be equitablefor the
Government to have withdrawn any large portion of the money raised in the loan from London, and
transfer it to New Zealand in order to get any additional interest, it was, on the other hand, not com-
petent for the Bank to bring out any part of that money in London, for any object, to the Bank in
New Zealand. Am I right ?—Only partially. I apprehend that, if the Bank decided to bring out any
portion of the loan for use in the colony, it would be quite competent to do so ; but I cannot imagine
that anybank would be so foolish as to adopt such a course. The money must be held at the dispofal
of the Governmentat very short notice, and to put it into commercial transactionsin thecolony would
put it out of the power of a bank to meet the demand that might at any moment be made upon it.

86. If that is the case, what was the object of the demand which the Bank made in London, that1a million and a half should be fixed for twelve months ? I cannot see what object Sir Julius Vogel
could have had—so far as the transactions with the Bank are concerned—in undertaking that the
averagebalances during the ensuing year, from April 1875,would certainly not be less than £1,500,000
for the first six months, and £750,000 afterwards?—I certainly cannot explain motives, but 1 appre-
hend that the view the Bank took ofit was that if they could reckon on having tins money on deposit

Mr. D. It. Mur-
doch.
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for twelve months, they could make more profit on it in London than if it was to be on demand from
day to day.

87. However, the effect of leaving so large a sum as a million and a half for six months, and
three-quarters of a million for theremainder of the term, was to place the Bank in a powerful position
in Lombard Street, seeing that that condition itself showed that the Government would not require the
money to be held for immediate pressing demands upon the Bank in London ?—Undoubtedly.

88. In consideration of the powerful position in which the Bank was placed in Lombard Street,
would it not have been quite reasonable to have demanded a higher sum than the i per cent,
concession which the Bank made in ordinary cases ; and do you think the Bank would probably have
yielded further if the Government had demanded it ?—I think any further concession would have
involved a loss to the Bank, and I donot think that the more powerful position which the Bank might
have been placed in in Lombard Street has added materially to the profits of the Bank. The Bank
would derive no profit from the greater power that the deposit gave them.

89. Is that because the Bank does no banking business in London, but confines itself to New
Zealand?—The Bank does not lay itself out for current accounts and other business in London; its
chief business is dealing in exchangeswith New Zealand.

90. Of course lam using the word " powerful" with reference to New Zealand amounts, and
not with reference to London amounts. Did not thefact that the Bank possessed thatamount render
the exchange business with New Zealand to be largely extended?—Certainly not; it might have done
so if we had chosen to use the Government moneys. In reply to a question put to me yesterday, I
said that the balance of the Government money in London was only used in Lombard Street.

91. Mr. J. Shephard.] There has been a good deal said outside about the Bank being theholder
of such a large amount of Government money. What would be the position of the colony as the
creditor of any bank—I do not refer especially to the Bank of New Zealand—if, as Mr. Fitzherbert
put it, the worst were to happen ?—The shareholders in the Bank are liable for an amount equal to
their holdings.

92. But I mean as compared with other creditors. Would it be a preferential claim as a Crown
debt ?—I think not.

93. Is it not a Crown debt?—Being Government money it would appear to be a Crown debt;
but whetherit would takeprecedence or not, I have not had experience to say.

94. Mr. Pearce.] The securities held by the Bank in Lombard Street are in no way tacked on
specially to the loan, that is, held by the Bank as security to the Government ?—ln no way.

95. And with regard to the £1,500,000, there was no stipulation that it should be invested
in any particular way ?—An offer of that kind was made by theBank, but Sir Julius Vogel declined it.

96. As the arrangement was eventually carried out, there was no stipulation as to how the Bank
should invest the money?—No; Mr. Larkworthy, of London, in writing to Sir. J. Vogel, pointed out
how the money would be used.

97. Sir F. D. Bell.] Is the Committee to understand that you do not consider that the three
alternative propositions made by the Bank implied the obligation of the Bank, if they received that
money, to use it in Lombard Street? Was not that the spirit of the ofl'er ?—I hardly understand the
question.

98. I wish to know whether the spirit of that offer was not really that the moneyshould be
placed in Lombard Street, and not left floating in the Bank ?—I do not think there was any stipulation
to that effect.

99. You think the Bank was quite free ?—Yes.
100. If that was the case, would not that have been rather an insecure position for the Govern-

ment to hold in your opinion ? I will not press the question if you do not wish to answer it.—I do
not think so.

101. The Chairman.] Do you know anything of the banking arrangements of the Governments
of the other colonies with the banks with which they do business?—I do, as regards the Governments
of Victoria and New South Wales.

102. Will you state them ?—Yes. The arrangement with the Associated Banks of Victoria
was made some fifteen years ago, and is in existence now. That arrangement was that the daily
balances unexpended of any railway loan—which should be regarded in a manneras a fixed deposit—
should bear interest at the rate of 4 per cent. ; the balance of Public Account, 3 per cent. ; and the
departmental revenue accounts, 3 per cent. The exchange on London for interest on railway loan,
which is all remitted through the Banks, was \ per cent, under the current rates for sixty days' bills.
The agreement does not show any rate for advances, and there was apparently no intention on the
part of the Government of Victoria to be borrowers from the Banks. Therefore, any arrangements
for advances would have to be made afterwards. In New South Wales, the existing arrangement was
made in 1873. I have not access to the agreement which previously existed, but at all events it was
renewed in 1873, and the interest allowed on the credit balances of the Government up to £150,000
was 3 per cent. ; the interest then ceased until the balance rose above £200,000. There was a margin
of £50,000 allowed to the Bank, on which they paid no interest. After the balance got above
£200,000, there was a special arrangement by which interest was allowed at the rate of 2\ per cent.
np to a further sum of £350,000, with the condition that any reduction in that amount should be a
reduction of £50,000. That is to say, if the Government chose to withdraw £10, it would be looked
upon, in calculating interest, as a reduction of the original amount by £50,000. There was an
additional stipulation on the part of the Bank that fourteen daj's' notice should be given before
£50,000 could be drawn, and one month's notice before £100,000 could be drawn, and that, from the
date ofsuch notice, interest would cease on any sum that was so required. On the 10th July, 1874,
there was a further agreement made that interest, beyond the £200,000 originally provided for, up to
a sum of £680,000, should be 31 per cent, on £550,000, and 4 per cent, on the remainder; any
reduction to be a reduction of £50,000, and notice of fourteen days and a month to be given as in the
previous case. Over and above this sum of £680,000, the Bank of New South Wales had the use,
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during eleven months, ofan averagebalance of £300,000 for which they paid no interest; and more-
over, they had very considerable sums in London on which they allowed interest at the rate of 1 per
cent, below the Bank of England rate.

103. The Hon. Mr. Stafford.] I believeyouhave got the report of the Committee that lately sat in
New South Wales, and in which, I think, these terms are incorporated?—I have.

104. Have you any objection to hand that in to theCommitteefor their information and guidance?
—None whatever. [Witness handed the report to the Chairman.]

10">. Sir F. D. Bell.] The statement you have just made tends to show that the terms which the
Bank of New Zealand gives to the Government of this colony arefar more favourable than the terms
which the Governments of Victoria and New South Wales receive ?—Very much so. The banks in
Victoria, as I stated yesterday, do not perform for the Government of Victoria the service which the
Bank of New Zealand performs for the Government here. In fact, the Government of Victoria incur
a cost ofabout £20,000 a year on Paymasters, &c, and the Bank of New Zealand saves this Govern-
ment the money they would have to expend on such officers. In New South Wales I believe the same
system prevails. From myrecollection while an officer of the Bank of New South Wales, Ido not
think that the country accounts of the Government were kept in the Bank. I have not been able to
lay my hands on the documents showing the payments to these Paymasters. There may have been
some arrangement come to by which the Bank of New South Wales does the work of the Government.
My belief is that the system of Paymasters doesexist, but their salaries are put in the estimates under
another name. A great deal of the work of the Government has been thrown on the Bank of New
Zealand during the last three years. I suppose this is owing to the abolition of the paymaster-system.
We were asked to undertake the duty, and we did so.

106. Mr. J. Shephard.] Taking the receipts you mentioned yesterday was simply getting people
to sign cheques ?—Yes, and identifyingthem.

107. Assuming that a payment has to be made at some distance from the seat of Government at
Wellington, at a place where there is a branch of the Bank, does the Treasurer's cheque take the form
of a cheque upon that branch, or a cheque upon the Government account at Wellington ?—Money is
remitted to meet the cheque at the place where the money is payable.

108. It is a cheque on the branch ?—Yes.
109. It is for the bank to make the payment?—Yes.
110. The Hon. E. W. Stafford.] Supposing a payment has to be made, say at Invercargill, the

Government have to pay the money into the Bank here, and ask the Bank to pay it at Invercargill. At
any rate, the Government does notbuy a draft, but simply informs the Bank that the payment has to
be made?—Yes.

111. They leave the Bank to find the means?—Yes.
112. Mr. J. Shephard.] A great deal of trouble is given to the Bank by that arrangement, but

naturally you will see that the whole of the salaries of the Paymasters are not saved to the Govern-
ment, because it must lead to a considerable amount of work here that was previously done by the
Paymasters ?—A large portion of it is saved.

Appendix3.

Thubsday, 26th August, 1875.
Mr. Bridges, Director, and Acting General Manager of theNational Bank of New Zealand, examined.

113. The Chairman.] You are the Chief Officer of the National Bank ?—I am a Director of the
National Bank, but at present am performing the duties of the General Manager. I represent the
Bank in the colony.

114. I believe you were formerly Manager of the Bank of New Zealandhere ?—I was.
115. And you are consequently acquainted with the banking arrangements between the Govern-

ment and the Bank of New Zealand?—Yes; up to the time I left in January, 1873.
116. At that time were you aware of the arrangements that have been embodied in the return

placed before the House ?—The agreement was made in August, 1873.
[The Chairman here handed witness the return, and requested him to read it.]
117. 1 think there is no material alteration, except that the 1 per cent, on interest iv London has

been reduced to J per cent, below the current Bank of England rate ?—There was no arrangement
previous to this.

[In reply to Mr. J. Shephard, witness stated that the reduction in the rate of interest was only
of a temporary character.]

118. Looking to that agreement generally, do you consider thata fair and reasonable arrangement
exists between the Bank of New Zealand and the Government ?—No; certainly not.

119. In what way do you think it is not so? What are the points?—There-are two important
omissions. One is as to the transmissionof money from London to the colony. The present arrange-
ment is a most unfair one. By it drafts are purchased here at i per cent, discount for sixty days'
bills.

120. Do you think that an unfair arrangement?—Yes ; any bank would deal more favourably.
121. What terms do you think any other bank would give?—At present, in London, the ordinary

banking rate for the sale of drafts on the colony—which amounts to the same thing—is 60 days' sight
at par, and on demand 1| per cent, premium. The money would be paid here on demand at par; and
if at 60 days' sight, the Government would obtain lj per cent, premium. Of course they would lose
the interest for the time,but that would not be an equivalent. The 1% per cent, interest is not so good
as the \\ per cent, premium for 60 days.

122. Is there any other point in that arrangement which you think is not as fair as it might be ?—Ido not think it was so intended by this agreement. All moneys received in London are paid into the
Bank in London.

123. Do you think that under that agreement the Bank were entitled to the large amount of
money they had on hand?—No ; I do not think the wording of the agreement would leadany one to
suppose that the Bank were entitled to receive so large a deposit.

Mr. Bridges.

6th Aug., 1875.

Appendix No. 1.



7 I.—2b

Feiday, 27tii August, 1875. M
Mr. D. L. Muhdoch, Inspector of the Bank of New Zealand: Examination continued.

124. Mr. Murdoch.] Before proceeding, I wish to state that I observe that, in stating the terms 27th
on which the banking business of the Government of New South Wales was transacted, I omitted to
name the terms of exchangebetween London and the colony, and I should nowlike to add that infor-
mation to my evidence. Funds are placed in London in one of the three undermentionedways :—Ist. By remitting sovereigns through the Bank at current rates of freight, insurance, and cost of
packages. 2nd. By remitting the bills of the Bank at the exchange of the day. 3rd. By placing in the
hands of the Bank, Government debentures for sale, the Bank agreeing to advance in London as the
Government account mayrequire, to the extent of 90 per cent, on the market value of such deben-
tures ; the Bank not to be required to advance at any one time on the deposit of debentures a larger
sum than £350,000. The interest payable to the Government in respect of any cash balance in the
hands of the Bank to be 1 per cent, below the Bank of England rate for the timebeing on the daily
balance, and the interest payable by the Government for cash advanced by the Bank shall be 1 per
cent, above the Bank of England rate, and on such advance shall never be less than 5 per cent. A
commission of i per cent, shall be charged on the half-yearly payments of interest on the
Public Debt, and £ per cent, on the payment of the principal sum of debentures that have
expired. Upon application by the Government to transfer funds from the credit of the Government
account in London to the credit of the like account here, the money shall, on the day of such applica-
tion, be made available in the colony, the Bank being paid upon the operation exchangeat therate
for sixty days' bills on Londonruling at the time of the application. But if tie Bank desire a notice
of the transfer, then the application, if for £100,000, shall be made available at the expiry of fourteen
days from the date thereof; if for £200,000, at the expiry of one month from the date thereof; and
for any sum over £200,000, at the expiry of two months from the application for such transfer.
I have also to state to the Committee that I have made inquiries on the subject on which Mr. Shep-
hard questioned me, as to the position in which the Government would stand as compared with the
public in the event of the worst happening, and I find that under easy proceedings by the Crown it
would have priority over any other creditor.

125. Mr. Shephard J And probably you might add to that—which I think would be clear—-that
there would be no difficulty in theprocess, because, as the moneys held by the Bank arenot mixedup
with any other account, the process could not be retarded?—No, certainly notretarded. It would be
perfectly simple.

126. And this necessarily leads to a very great security to the Government in dealingwith any
bank ?—Almost absolutesecurity, it appearsto me.

127. The Chairman.] The Committee requested your attendance to-day with reference to your
answer to a question which I put to you in the first instance, and your subsequent answer to another
question put to you by another member of the Committee. The question I put to you was, Whether,
under that agreementbetween the Government and the Bank, you considered that you were entitled
to have all the balances deposited with your Bank, and I understood you to answer, " Certainly."
Subsequently—on thefollowing day—aquestion was put to you by another memberof the Committee
to this effect: Do you consider that it would have been in contravention of that agreement if the
Government, instead of depositing the balance of their loan with you, had invested it in Treasury bills
or any other investment? And you were understood to say that you did not think it would be in
contravention of the agreement. The Committee wish to know now whether it would have been in
contravention of that agreement if the Government, instead of investing the money in Treasury bills,
had deposited a portion of it with some bank other than your own ?—At the timethe agreement wfus
madeit was notcontemplated that the Government would be so largely in creditas they areby proceeds
of the Four Million Loan, and therefore I do not suppose that such a thing occurred either to the
Treasureror the Bank. Under the strict reading of the agreement I should say it wouldbe in contra-
vention of the agreement if such a deposit were made. But if it was the desire of the Government
to fix a limit to the credit balance which the Bank should hold, I think the Bank would be willing to
agree to it.

128. The Hon. W. Fitzlierbert.] Supposing the Bank had chosen to stand on its strict rights,
could it have demandedthat all these sums should be placed with it, and not with any other bank ?—
I think I have already answeredthat under the strict interpretation of the agreement I do think the
Bank could have done so.

129. Mr. Shephard.] You have already said that you thought the Government would be justified
in purchasing Exchequerbills as a temporary investmentwith part of the money, instead of depositing
it with the Bank of New Zealand?—Yes.

130. Well, if instead of doing that, they took a part of the money, not to open a new banking
account, but to lend to another banker on his receipt, would that be a violation of the agreement ?—I
cannotsee any distinction between lending money to a bank on receipt, and opening a bank account.
It would certainly be a lodgment of money with the bank, and therefore a contravention of the
agreement.

131. Then supposing that the Loan Agents had lent the money to some private individual, so
healthy as to make it perfectly secure, would there have been any objection to that ?—I do not
think so.

132. Why should there be any objection to lending money to a banker then ?—lt is a very nice
distinction, but I think that in lending to a banker the transaction partakes of the nature of a division
of the Government account,which by the agreement is not permissible.

133. I do not mean putting the money into another bank as a current account, which could be
operated upon from day to day5 but as a loan for a term, say a six months deposit, which is actually a
loan for six months ?—The agreement might be interpreted in that way.

D. _. Mur-
doch.

Aug., 1875.
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Mr. D. li. Mur-
doch.

27th Aug., 1875.

134. The Loan Agents undoubtedly had to adhere to the agreement between the Bank and the
New Zealand Government, but yet, in their letter of 20th April, 1875, they suggest placing part of the
proceeds of the Four Million Loan with some of the larger joint stock banks, and they name the
London and Westminster Bank ?—Yes.

135. Probably they had considered this question, and arrived at the conclusion that as it was a
loanit could be done. Does not thatstrike you as being a natural interpretation?—lt would appear
from that letter as if the Crown Agents and Dr. Featherston had adopted that opinion, but the
subsequent letter of Mr. Hall, in the absence of Sir Julius Vogel, I think puts the matter in its proper
light.

136. You will observe thatMr. Hall's letter is of two years' earlier date?—Yes, I see that; but I
think it puts the correct interpretation on the agreement, and it shows that the warrant under which
such a transaction would have been effected was never to be acted upon unless circumstances at any
time rendered it expedient to adopt it.

137. In this particular case the Loan Agents and Dr. Featherston appear to have thought it
expedient ?—I presume they must have thought so.

138. The Hon. W. Fitzherbert.] Are the terms of the agreement for conducting the banking
business between the colony and the Bank of New Zealand of that strict character that Sir Julius Vogel
had no other alternative,notwithstanding his advice, than to continue to place these large sums with
you?—I think that question can only be met by my former reply, that under the strictest interpreta-
tion of the agreement, except for an investment in Exchequer bills or other securities, the Bank had a
perfect right to all the balances of the Government.

139. I want your opinion as to whether, under the terms of the agreement,the Colonial Treasurer
had any other alternative than to disregard the wish of his coadjutors, and place the money with you?
Are the terms of that strict character that there was no discretion left?—l think that if they had
exercised such a discretion the Bank would have had reasonable grounds to complain.

140. In your opinion there was no other alternative than to place these funds in your Bank ?—
Not by strictly adhering to the agreement.

141. Mr. Shephard.] Under the terms of this letterwrittenby Mr. Hall, is there still an opening
for those in charge of these large funds to put the money into some other place, the reasons for doing
which they are not bound to give ?—Yes, under certain circumstances.

142. And for reasons they are not bound to disclose ?—Yes.
143. The Hon. W. Fitzherbert.] I want to know what is the maximum aggregate amountof over-

drafts, whether specially made, and whether secured or not secured,grantedby theBank of New Zealand
to the colony (in England or the colony) during the following months :—October, November, and
December, 1874; January, February, and March, 1875?—I must ask for time to obtain information
from the Bank books to enable me to answer this question.

144. The Chairman.] With regard to the £250,000 overdraft which you told us on the day when
you were last examined was against a credit of the same amount; was it against an equivalent sum of
actual cash heldby your Bank elsewhere, or against securities ?—Against an equivalent sum in actual
cash held here.

145. Mr. Shephard.] But in the first instance was it not an advance?—There was a previous
transaction against debentures without cash being held at all. I understand that the Committee wants
to know the highest total amount of actual overdraft that the Bank of New Zealand has given to the
Government, without the Bank having an equivalent amount of Government money in its own hands ?

146. The Chairman^] Yes.—Then my previous reply answers the question.
147. Mr. Pearce.] Youare aware that the Governmentgot an advance from theBank of England,

prior to the negotiationof the Four Million Loan, of about £600,000?—I believe they did.
148. Was that money paid into the Bank of New Zealand, and operated on by the Government in

the usual way ?—To the best of my belief it was.
149. Was it paid in in one or various sums ?—By instalments,Ibelieve ; I cannot positively state,

however.
150. It waspaid in by the Government ?—By the Loan Agents.
151. And that money enabled the Government to do without obtaining any heavier overdraft than

£30,000 from the Bank of New Zealand?—Yes.
152. Can you give the dates when the instalments were paid in ?—No doubt the transactions are

fully disclosed iv the Treasurer's accounts, to which access might be had.
153. Mr. J. Shephard.] Was this advance negotiatedby the Bank of New Zealand?—No.
154. Directly by the Loan Agents?—Yes.
155. The Chairman.] Do you know what that advance was immediately required for?—For the

ordinary requirements of the Government account, as far as I know.
156. Was it to pay liabilitieswhich were due to the Bank of New Zealand, or to outside creditors?

—Outside creditors.
157. Was it to pay Bank overdrafts ?—No.
158. Mr. Pearce^] It was not in consequence of any refusal by the Bank of New Zealand to

advance funds that they went to the Bank of England?—No.
159. The Chairman.] Did they get that advance from the Bank of England on better terms than

they could have got it from you ?—1 should think so, on much better terms.
160. The Hon. W. Fitzherbert.] In a generalway, would you consider that the Government were

breaking the agreement with the Bank of New Zealand if they asked for an advance from another
institution?—lf we had refused them, I should think they would be justified in doing so.

161. Would you think it a departurefrom the agreement if a transaction for an advance of large
magnitude tookplace between the Government and another bank ?—No ; because there isno provision
in the agreement for advances.

162. Supposing the Governmenthad £60,000 or £70,000 to invest, andpassed by the Bank of New
Zealand, and wentelsewhere, without saying anything to your Bank, you would, I presume, regard it
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as a breach of the agreement?—I would consider it abreach of the agreement if they withdrew money
from the Bank of New Zealand and placed it in another bank, but not, as I have already said, for a
special investment.

163. Then am I to understand that if the £2,600,000—the proceeds of the loan—at a certain time
lodged with you, had never been placed in your Bank, it would not have been abreach of the agree-
ment if they had gone elsewhere and invested it ?—No, it would not.

164. Then it was competent for the Colonial Treasurer to have taken those proceeds and invested
them as might be best for the colony ?—Yes, quite so.

165. I understand now the distinction that you draw to be, that the moneyonce having been
placed in your Bank, it could not be withdrawnwithouta breach of the agreement?—For thepurpose
of being placed in another bank ?

166. Yes.—Exactly. I would have considered it equally a breach of the agreement if the pro-
ceeds, not having been placed in the Bank of New Zealand, had been placed in another bank.

167. Do I understand that it would not have been a breach of the agreement, in your opinion, if
the money had been placed in any other bank without first coming to you ; but that, if the proceeds
were not taken to you, it would have been competent for the Colonial Treasurer to invest them as he
pleased ?—lf the Colonial Treasurer had elected to make a special investment before the proceeds
reached us he would have been quite justifiedin doing so under the agreement; but if he had made
lodgments in other banks, I would have considered that the Bank of New Zealand had cause for
complaint.

168. But in respect of getting advances from any other bank, your agreement was no obstacle in
the way ?—lt was not.

169. Then, whilst the Government were bound to invest with you, they were not bound to receive
advances from you ?—There was no provision in the agreement for advances, beyond the generalpro-
vision of the rate of interest on advances.

170. Mr. Shephard.] I presume that you consider there is an essential distinction between
advances made on security and advances made on the generalcredit of the colony ?—Clearly.

171. And if the Colonial Treasurer, or any one actingfor him, obtained an advance from another
bank on the generalcredit of the colony, would it not be in a certain sense abreach of faith with the
colony's banker, who would thereby be prevented knowing what the actual state of affairs was ?—I do
not think so.

172. Take an instance: If a private individual by some means obtains money from another
banker while he is in debt to his own, is it not considered unfair, as the state of his affairs is not
disclosed to his own banker. It might leadhis banker to make advances to him which he would not if
heknew the true state of affairs ?—The bank, of course, might be at a disadvantagein notknowing
the transactions of the Government, but I cannot see that such a transaction as you have mentioned
could in any way beregarded as a breach of agreement.

173. It would not be a breach of the agreement, but it would be contrary to the spirit of the
agreement.—Yes.

174. Whereas obtaining money on actual security has nothing to do with it ?—Nothing whatever.
175. Mr. Johnston.] If I understand you, according to the agreement the Bank is not bound to

furnish the Government with any accommodationat all ?—Not bound to do it.
176. There is, in point of fact, no obligationof that sort?—None whatever.
177. The Government arebound to place all this moneywith you, but, on the other hand, you are

notbound to give any money to the Government ?—We are not.
178. Mr. Curtis.] Is that the customary character of arrangements between Governments and

banks ? For instance: You quoted the arrangements between the Government of New South Wales
and the Bank of New South Wales, and also between the Associated Banks of Victoria and the
Victorian Government. Are the arrangements in those places of the same character with respect to
advances as the arrangementbetween this Government and your Bank ?—There is no provision for
advances between the Associated Banks and the Government of Victoria. In New South Wales there
appears to be an arrangementfor advances against debentures to be transmitted to London for sale to
the amount of £350,000. This is security for advances to be made in the colony, but there is no pro-
vision for a simple overdraft.

Mr. D. L. Mur-
doch.

27th Aug., 1875

Wednesday, Ist Septembeb, 1875.
The Hon. Major Atkinson, Colonial Treasurer, examined.

179. The Chairman.] You are aware of the banking arrangements existing between the Govern-
ment and the Bank of New Zealand ?—I am.

180. Do you consider those arrangements fair and reasonable between the two parties ?—I do.
181. How have you found the Bank in practice to carry them out—in a liberal spirit towards

you, or have they endeavoured to exact the last farthing ?—ln quite a liberal spirit, as far as my
experience goes.

182. With regard to exchange, the terms have always been, I suppose, below the ordinary rate of
exchange ? When the exchange has been high, I mean, they have never attempted to exact terms
outside the limits of the agreement?—Never, as far as I know.

183. They have never attempted, under the excuse that high rates were ruling, to set aside any
portion of the agreement temporarily ?—Never, as far as 1 am aware.

184. With regard to overdraftsand advances, have you found them meet the views of the Govern-
ment when you wanted such accommodation ?—Yes, always.

185. What is the extent of the unsecured advances they have made ; I mean ordinary overdrafts ?
—We have not required any lately.

2—l. 2b.

Hon. Major
Atkinson.

Ist Sept., 1875
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186. Within the current year?—l do not think we have required them at all, because we have
either drawn on the Crown Agents, or

187. Mr. Murdoch has said that £30,000 was the highest amount?—I think that was about the
amount. Expecting the loan to be raised, and having £800,000 guaranteed debentures in England, we
did not think it necessary to arrange for an overdraft. The Bank was always ready to purchase bills.

188. The £800,000 was hypothecated to the Bank of England ?—Yes.
189. What was that for?—To meet the expenditure till the loan was raised.

,190. Not to pay off anything due to the Bank of New Zealand ?—Not as far as I know. I have
not examined carefully into that, because I was not Treasurer.

191. The object was to pay the outside creditor ?—Yes, and to carry on the Government.
192. Can you tell us how this advance from the Bank of England was made; whether in one sum

of £660,000, or in various sums on various dates ?—ln various sums I think, but I will get particulars
for the Committee.

193. What was done with the money when it was received? Was it paid at once to the outside
creditor directly, or did it go through the Bank of New Zealand ?—I should think it went through
the Bank of New Zealand, but I can ascertain definitely. That would be the regular course of
business.

194. Then with regard to the large sum of a million and a half, on account of the Four Million
Loan, that has been paid into the Bank of Now Zealand. In your opinion ought it to have been so
paid, according to the strict letter of the agreement?—There has been no such sum as a million and a
half. The whole proceeds of the loan were paid in.

195. There was a million and a half which was to remain there for a certain period ?—£3,300,000
has been paid in.

196. That has been paid in and out again ?—Yes.
197. Sir Julius Vogel says, in his letter of the 7th April, 1875, to the Manager of the Bank

of New Zealand, in reference to the third proposition, " I cannot undertake positively to fix
with your Bank £1,500,000 for six and twelve months as proposed; but the proceeds of the
loan willonly be withdrawnfrom you to meet the purposes for which the loan is applicable, and your
average balance during the next ensuing year will certainly be not less than that which your letter
points to,namely £1,500,000 during the first six months, and half that amount during the next six
months." Youthink the strict letter of the agreementrequires that to be done ?—No, Ido not think
so. I think that the spirit of the agreement was that the whole of the moneys availablebelonging to
the Government in England should be paid into the Bank of New Zealand, either in London or here,
always supposing that in London it was considered a safe transaction, and that the Bank was prepared
to pay as much interest as we could get anywhere else.

198. Then am I to understand that you think an arrangementof this kind, underall the circum-
stances of the case, would be betterfor the country than if the Government had invested the money
in Exchequerbills or any other security ?—I am 'not in a position to state that; it is a matter for
calculation. I should take it for granted that Sir Julius Vogel would not have done that unless he
was satisfied that he was obtaining more for the colony in that way than he could in any other.

199. Hon. E. W. Stafford.] I think I understand you to say that the sum of £3,300,000 has been
paid in ?—Yes.

200. Are you awarewhat was the amount of Exchequer bills issued out last year ?—I am not.
201. Are you aware they were limitedto three millions ?—I am not aware of that.
202. Mr. Pearce.] What interest did the Bank of England charge the Government for their

advance?—
(Hon. Major Atkinson askedfor time to supply answer.)

203. Do you suppose that the Government got any advantage by taking the money from the Bank
of England, instead of their own bankers ?—I should suppose the Crown Agents, having made the
transaction, would have made it in the most profitable way for the colony.

204. Then it was the Crown Agents who arranged for the advance from the Bank of England ?—
The Crown Agents would provide thefunds.

205. It was through no action of the Government ?—The whole proceedings, as I understand, were
transactedthrough the Crown Agents.

206. I want toknow what advantage the Government got by pledging theirsecurities to theBank
of England, instead of goiug to their ownbankers ?

(Hon. Major Atkinson was allowed time to supply answer.)
207. Can you state any reason why the Colonial Treasurer should have engaged to leave a million

and a half in theBank of New Zealand as a fixed deposit?—I suppose—but of course it is only my
opinion—that the then Treasurer thought he would by that means obtain more interest for the colony.

208. Mr. J. Shephard.] But he does not pledge himself to leave a particular sum ?—No, he only
agrees not to take it away subject to certain conditions.

209. He declined distinctly to make a fixed deposit for a certain time ?—Yes ; he states positively
that he does not pledge himself to leave that amount.

210. Mr. Pearce.] Then, as a matter of fact, the Bank of New Zealand will not have a million and
a half for six months, and £750,000 for the same period ?—I should think not. Of course it is rather
difficult to state absolutely, for this reason: that there are large contracts on account of public works,
for rails and rolling-stock, which will probably have to be paid for during this month or next in
England, and they will amount to at least £250,000 ; and there was a balance in the Bank, according
to our last accounts, of a little over two millions—the exact amount is £2,013,000. At the present
time we have drawn against that to the amount of £1,050,000. There are also bills which we have
cashed with theBank here against the two millions—bills which have already been purchased by the
Bank here.

211. That is to say, you have brought a million of it to thecolony ?—Yes,more than that, because
a considerablepart of the £660,000, for which we hypothecated the debentures, was brought here.

Hon. Major
Atkinson.

Ist Sept., 1875,

AppendixNo. 2,
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212. No portion of this million you speak of was for payment in London ?—No ; for bills drawn

here for payment in the colony. And we shall have to continue for some months longer drawing at
therate of from £150,000 to £200,000 a month.

213. For cash payments within the colony?—Yes.
214. At what rate of exchange didyou get the bills ?—One-eighth discount.
215. For a sixty days' draft ?—Yes. The money is placed to our credit on the day that the mail

leaves here. We usually give the bill the day before.
216. Do you not think there ought to be some reciprocity between the Government and its

banker, so that the Bank should be bound to makeadvances to the Government, if necessary, at afixed
rate ?—Yes, I think there would be no harm in that, certainly ; but I presumethat, if the Bank did
come to some arrangement,it would takeit out of the Government in some other form. I mean that,
if the present arrangements are fair all round, if we demandedan extraordinary concession from them,
we should have to pay for it in some other way.

217. At present there is no arrangementwith the Bank for overdrafts—that is to say, theBank is
not compelled to give an overdraft to the Government?—-No; except this : that the Government,
keeping their account there, have a great pull on the Bank, because they can say, " We will takeaway
our account if you donot treat us fairly."

218. The Chairman.] But not without giving six months' notice?—No.
219. Mr. Pearce.] Do you not think six months too long to require to cancel the agreement?—

Well, I should not have thought so ; but if the Government had not found, after the experience of a
good many years, that the whole thing had worked satisfactorily,I should have been inclined to say it
was too long. No difficulty has yet arisen.

220. The Chairman.] Would not such an arrangement as that enable the Bank, if it chose, to
embarrass the Government in this way : Supposing you wanted an advance for aparticular purpose,
and the Bank refused this advance, you, having to give six months' notice of the termination of the
agreement, would not be able to go to any other bank, and you might be placed in great difficulty
through the Bank not giving you an overdraft which you might wantfor aparticular purpose?—That
is possible, but I do not think it is probable, because the Government account is too valuablefor the
Bank to run the risk of .losing it.

221. Supposing that the Bank, instead of being a financial institution, only turned itself into a
political institution, it might materially interfere with a Government that it did not happen to like ?—
Ido not think so. I have no doubt that another bank under these circumstances would immediately
advance what was wanted.

222. But that would be contrary to the agreement? You could not take away the account?—
You could not takeaway the account, but you couldcertainly obtain the advance.

223. Hon. E. W. Stafford.] If the Bank refused to do a certain branch of business, you could
legitimately go to another bank ?—Yes.

224. Mr. Pearce.] Supposing that the Bank of New Zealand refused to give the Government an
overdraft of £100,000, and the Government went to another bank and asked for an advance of £100,000,
would you not under the agreementbe obliged to pay that £100,000 into the Bankof New Zealand ?—
Well, that is reallyaquestion for the lawyers. For my own part, 1should not pay it in. I would take
the risk, and ask the House to back me up.

225. But within the strict agreement you would be obliged to pay that money into the Bank of
New Zealand ?—I should say not. I should say the agreement was broken if reasonable accommoda-
tion was not given to the Government.

226. In what way would the agreement be broken if the Bank is under no obligation to give
advances ?—I take it that the Bank is under an implied obligation. The original agreement has been
varied from time to time to a very large extent, and a greatdeal now is no doubt a matter of under-
standing.

227. Is there anyunderstanding thatthe Government shall have advances if necessary ?—I cannot
say what the Bank understands, but if the Government wanted an advance, I should expect the Bank
to make it.

228. But there being nothing in the agreement absolutely binding the Bank to give accommoda-
tion to the Government if necessary, would it not be well to make thenotice for the cancelling of the
agreement between the Government and the Bank shorter ?—Perhaps it might; but, as I have said,
the experience of a considerable number of years has shown that the Bank has always been prepared
to meet the Government in a liberal spirit.

229. Hen. E. W. Stafford.] As a matter of fact, has the Government everasked the Bank for an
overdraft and been refused?— Never to my knowledge.

230. You have only been acting as Treasurer for a short time ?—Yes, only for a short time.
231. The Bank of New Zealand was not, to your knowledge, asked to make this advance which the

Bank of England made?—
232. Mr. Johnston.] Can you say on what date the warrants to borrow the £660,000 on the

imperially indorsed debentureswere sent to the Crown Agents ?—
(The Hon. Major Atkinson askedfor time to supply answers to both questions.)

233. I suppose the Crown Agents have sent out to the Government from time to time very full
reports of their negotiations with respect to the raising of the Four Million Loan ?—Yes.

234. Did they give any reason for calling up the whole of the loan in such a short time ?—The
only reason they gave was that the Treasurer (Sir J. Vogel) told them the colony required it; at least
that is as far as I know.

235. Does it not seem that a larger price would have been obtained had the timefor payment
beenextended overa longer period ?—Of course I am not sufficiently acquainted with the ins andouts
of the London money market to know that, but I understand that the best loans are neverput on the
market in that way.

Hon. Major
Atkinson.
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236. As a matter of fact thebuyers were asked to pay up the whole of the price of the loans
within a very short time. Would it not seem that if they had had a longer time given to them they
would have paid abetter price ?—lt is possible, but I could not say it was from my own knowledge.
I take it for granted that Sir Julius Vogel obtained the most favourable terms that he could.

237. Then, after the Crown Agents had decided that the money should be paid in this way,
in instalments, do you know for what reason the Government offered a rebate of 5 per cent, to any-
body who paidup sooner?—No ; that was an arrangementbetween Sir Julius Vogel, the CrownAgents,
and the firm that took up the loan.

238. But arenot these matters on which the Crown Agents reported to the Government?—Yes,
but they have not reported specially on that. These are details which the Government, being
represented by the Premier and Crown Agents, would leave to them.

239. Do you not think it an extraordinary thing that the Crown Agents should offer arebate of
5 per cent, merely that they might get the money to invest at 2f per cent. ?—I should think they had
some other object quite distinct from that. Of course it would be strange if they did it for that
object.

240. The Government have no knowledge of the reasons why the Crown Agents offered this
rebate ?—No.

241. It was not a necessity of the Government requirements that a liberal discount should be
allowed in order that the money should be obtained by the Government at once, and paid into theBank
of New Zealand?—No, certainly not.

242. It wouldhavebeen a better thing for the colony if the buyers had paid their instalmentsfrom
time to time,rather than that the Government should get the money and lendit out at 3J per cent?—
Apparently it would, but I repeat thatI believe the terms of the loan were arranged with the view of
obtaining the best terms for the colony.

243. After a loan is sold at a certain price on deferred payment, does it not seem that a loss has
been sustained by the Government in consequence of offering a bonus to anybody who would make his
paj-ments at once ?—Yes, but I presume that all these arrangements are part of the inducements to
persons buying the loan. A buyer gets the loan practically at a less price by getting this discount,
and I suppose that would be taken into consideration.

244. Hon. E. W. Stafford.] In fact the Government had no option ?—No, it was part of the
agreement.

245 Mr. Johnston.] Then, the money having been raised, do you concur in the opinion expressed
by Sir Julius Vogel in London, that the Government were bound, under the agreement, to pay the
whole proceeds of the loan into the Bank of New Zealand?—I do not think that strictly they were.

240. Sir Julius Vogel, in one of his letters, says that ifhe did not do that, the Bank of New Zea-
land would have a claim against the Government for a breach of agreement ?—I takeit that the under-
standing with the Government was that the money was to be paid into theBank of New Zealand, with
these two conditions, viz. that it was safe to do so, and that the Bank gave as much interest as could
be obtained from any other Bank. It is clear to my mind that the Crown Agents had authority to
place the money in any bank they thought proper, but the Bank of New Zealand had the first claim,
supposing it was safe to place it with them, and that they gave as much interest for it as could be got
elsewhere.

247. Is not it a fact that three out of the four Crown Agents thought it was not safe, and that
they considered the money should be placed with the various banks; and that this opinion of theirs
was overruled by the Government ?—Yes, judging by the correspondence.

248. But, in your opinion, Sir Julius Vogel, in so overruling that opinion, acted under a wrong
impression ?—No ; the Government have the power to direct the money to be placed as they think
proper.

249. Then it was a voluntary actionon the part of the Government ?—Yes, as represented by Sir
Julius Vogel. Sir Julius Vogel assumed the authority of the Government to direct how this money
was to be disposed of.

250. In opposition to the opinion of the Crown Agents?—Well, partly ; but he pointed out to the
Crown Agents that if the Bank of New Zealandfailed to comply with the conditions I have named, it
could be removed.

251. Sir Julius Vogel, incarrying out his duty as Colonial Treasurer, having taken the opinion of
the Crown Agents with regard to investing three millions of money in this particular way, did he ever
write specially to the Government explaining his action in the matter ?—He has written the letters
which are printed in the correspondence, and of course we have had several private lettersfrom him.
I may state that the Government were of opinion—and, indeed, are of opinion—that it wouldhave
been better to have left the whole arrangement to the Crown Agents.

252. Sir F. D. Bell.] Has your attention been called to the apparent difference between the
statement made by Sir J. Vogel and the statement made by the Crown Agents as to the necessity of
raising the whole Four Million Loan firm, and do you think that the papers disclose such a difference
of opinion ?—There is no doubt that in these papers the Crown Agents say that Sir Julius Vogel at
one time told them one thing and at another time another thing, and that Sir Julius Vogel denies it;
andI mayfurther state thatI believe Sir J. Vogel's denial.

253. Does the letter of March 19th, printed on page 7 of the correspondence, say that Sir J.
Vogel had assured them it was essential that all the money should be raised firm, and is that letter
transmittedin Sir Julius Vogel's report to the Government of March 18th, 1875.—Yes.

254 Do you observe whether, in the report of March 18th, with which Sir Julius Vogel trans-
mitted the letter,any reference whatever is made by him to that statement.—I have not the least
doubt that he stated it was desirable—and the finances of the colony show that it was desirable—to
secure the whole of this money, and that he was quite prepared to accept three millions within the
year, and one million at the end of the year, if necessary. That is evident by his arrangement with
Rothschild.

Hon. Major-
Atkinson.
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255. In Sir Julius Vogel's letter to the Bank of New Zealand, which is printed on page 17 of
the correspondence, the following passage occurs :—" Your average balance during the ensuing year
will certainly be not less than thatwhich your letter points to, namely £1,500,000 during the first six
months, and £750,000 during the next six months." Does not that go far, in your opinion, to show
that the necessities of the colony were not such as to require the whole four millions to beraised firm?
—I am quite satisfied that the necessities of the colony did require that we should be certain of the
four millions. That we did not require the whole of it during this year I have shown, but I think it
would have been an exceedingly imprudent thing not to have secured with absolutecertainty thefour
millions.

256. Do you think that the correspondence does not show that two millions might have been
raised then to produce, net, about92, and that in another eight months, by a second transaction, the
other two millions might have been raised at something like the same rate ?—No ; I think it shows
that, if a syndicate had been formed, we should not have got more than 90. In fact, my imp.ession
from the correspondence is that we should not have obtained that.

257. I request your attention then to the statement that is made by the Crown Agents at pag( 13
of the correspondence. They say, "That on 18th February, Sir J. Vogel said that a leading memo,r ■
of the Stock Exchange had told him that two millions could be placed at 92 per cent., and another tw <millions in about eight months afterwardssimilarly." Do you find thatstatement critradicted in any
letter of Sir Julius Vogel's which is published ?—Yes ; I think so.

258. Would you point out where it is contradicted ?—On pages 32 and 33 of thecorrespondence.
259. Do you find, in any part of thecorrespondence, the statement made by the Crown Agents, to

which I have called your attention, contradicted by Sir J. Vogel ?—I cannot say that I have gone into
the unfortunate squabble which occurred between the honorablegentlemen. I have looked at the main
facts of the case, and I am satisfied—and that letter which I have referred to shows—that 90 was the
most that could be obtained. I therefore take it for granted, that Sir Julius Vogel never made a
statement to the effect that 92 could have been obtained. I should like the Committee to understand
thatI have not gone through these letters with the view of ascertaining all the unfortunate points of
differencebetween these gentlemen.

260. I request your attention to page 27 of the correspondence, paragraph 8, in which Sir Julius v
Vogel replies to the Loan Agents. [The paragraph was read.] Is not that practically the same as the
Loan Agents say in their letter, and is not the denial of Sir Julius Vogel limited to his having said
that the colony was in a mess?— Not at all, in my opinion. I understand the Crown Agents carefully
to avoid giving any opinion as to what could have been obtained, and we have the direct testimony
of Mr. Russell and Mr. Larkworthy, after consultation with Mr. Scrivenger,'toshow that only 90 could
have been obtained.

261. Leaving the past transaction, and looking forward to future transactions, I wish to call your
attention to the fact which was stated in the Treasurer's Financial Statement in this Session as to the
unraised portions of the already authorized loans. Are you willing to indicate any opinion to the
Committee as to whether the Government will consent to undertake that, when that money is raised,
it shall not all be paid into the Bank ofNew Zealand, but thatany balance overand above afair limit
for actual necessities to be provided for by the Government, shall be invested in Exchequer bills ?—I
am not prepared to say that I think the money should be invested in Exchequer bills, but I am
prepared to say that the Government are of opinion that the investment of the money should be left to
the Crown Agents, or Agents of the Colony, whoever they may be, as appointed by the Warrant
of 1873.

262. Then are you willing to indicate the intention of the Government to maintain the authority
of the Crown Agents under that Warrant of 1873, printed on page 18 of the correspondence ?—The 'viewof the Government is quiteclear in this : that the matter should be left in the hands of theCrown
Agents. The Government hold the Crown Agents responsible, and they would have left this matter
in their hands. Of course, if the Committee want to know anything more respecting the views of
the Government, I can consult my colleagues. I know, however, that the view of the Government
is that the matter should be left to the Crown Agents.

263. Would you object to consulting your colleagues, before the examination goes on, as to the
propriety of giving, either to this Committee or to the House, any definite assurance of the views of
the Government with respect to the investment of the unraised portions of the already authorized
loans ?—Not at all; I will be perfectly willing to do so.

264. Mr. Curtis.] I understand you to say you would leave the question of the investment of
money to the discretion of the Crown Agents. Did you use the term " Crown Agents " advisedly, or
did you mean " Loan Agents "?—I meant Loan Agents.

265. Hon. W. Fitzherbert.] Are you prepared to furnish particulars of the liablities to meet which the
Imperial guaranteed debentures were hypothecated to the Bank of England?—l should think there
would be some difficulty about that, but I will have the matter looked into fully, and report to the
Committeewhen next it meets.

266. Can you state to-day whatremains of the proceeds of the Four Million Loan to credit ?—lt
would be rather difficult to do that. By our last advices from home, there was £2,013,000 to our
credit in the Bank of New Zealand.

267. At what date?—28th June, I think ; and there is still about £300,000 to come in. Against
that we have drawn—and the bills are not yet charged—in round numbers about £1,050,000. These
bills are still current, and were cashed by the Bank here. And again, there is a large order for rails
and rolling-stock on account of public works, for which about a quarter of a million will have to be
paid in London.

268. What was the total amount received as proceeds of the loan ?—ln round numbers about
£3,300.000, which, with £300,000 still to be received, makes a total of £3,600,000.

269. There was £2,013,000 to your credit on 28th June?—Yes, and against that we have drawn
£1,050,000, and £250,000 payable in London. That makes £1,300,000, and leaves a balance of about
a, million.

Hon. Major
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270. That to-day, as faras you know, wouldbe the proceeds remainingof the Four Million Loan ?
—Yes, that would be about it. Perhaps hardly as favourable as that, because there would be the
expenses of the Agent-Generalfor immigration purposes.

271. It would be about a millionexclusive of charges on immigration ?—Yes.
272. What was the date on which the Four Million Loan negotiation was concluded ?-—7th April,

I think.
273. From the date on which the proceeds of the loan were received by your Agents till the

present time, the expenditure has left a million exclusive of liabilities for immigration charges ?—No,
hardly, because there was a liability of about a million on it before we started.

274. How much then nowremains ?—As I understand, there is about a million left.
275. It being a part of the inducement to take up the loan at a rebate of 5 per cent., could there

have been any object for the public benefit attained by such an arrangement, excepting the need any
how to obtainmoney ?—I think it is quite clear there was not a need to obtain the money. The reason
was. I presume, to obtain the loan on favourable terms. I look upon that rebate as part of the price
of the loan.

276. Looking on therebate of 5 per cent, as part of the price of the loan, and in no way suggested
by the requirements of the colony, was that a wise arrangement in your opinion, excepting with the
view of investing the money so summarily called up to great advantage. Do you consider that it was
wiseto call up the money quickly when the colony did not want it ?—I could not set my opinion
against the opinion of Sir Julius Vogel and the Crown Agents as to the terms on which the loanwas
raised, but I should look upon this as part of the cost of raising the loan, and as an inducement to
purchasers.

277. That being so, the needs of the colony not requiring prompt payment, and there being no
consideration to investadvantageously, in reality the colony agreed throughits Agents to the incurrence
of a greater lobs, when they might have at once taken a lesser sum in a direct way than has been
entailed upon them in this indirect way?—That is a matter for our Agents to decide, I take it. They
obtained, I imagine, the best terms they could for the colony. I could not decide whether it was
better to give the 5 per cent, rebate or not

278. Would it not amount to submitting to a less price?—Yes, no doubt it would. It was one of
the advantages that the purchasers received.

279. Then, with regard to the arrangements with the Bank, I think I understood you to hold that
if at any time the Bank of New Zealandrefused you an advance you would apply for it elsewhere, and
after getting it you would lodge it elsewhere?—Yes, I should not allow the Bank, or anybody else, to
stand in the way of the Government business.

280. Then, with such views, do you not think it is an agreement nominal—not real—which you
are prepared to break ? There would be a claim for compensation if it at any time were broken ?—
No, Ido not look at it in that way. It appears to me that the Bank and the Government have an
arrangement which is really only an understanding which has grown up. It is assumed on both sides
that good faith will be kept.

281. But one party may consider that a certain thing ought to be done, whilst the other maybe
of a different opinion ; when, in fact, you come to put a strain on your agreement it breaks. Under
these circumstances, would it not be better to have a shorter term of notice in the interests of
the colony ?—I do not think the agreement would break; I think experience has shown us that it
would not

282. I ask you to suppose such a case; would it not be better to have a shorter term of notice for
terminating the agreement?—Speaking as Treasurer, I should say that the more power the Govern-
ment could get the better; but speaking from experience, I say that practically we have found the
Bank meet us on every possible occasion.

283. Mr. Curtis.] Would you expect to get equally favourable terms from the Bank with shorter
notice as you get with the longer notice ?—I should think not.

284. The Chairman.] With regard to the two millions of the old loans still unraised, is that
money negotiated for, or would you have to put it on the market to obtain it?—We should have to
put it on themarket.

Hon. Major
Atkinson.
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The Hon. Major Atkinson, Colonial Treasurer: Examination continued.

The witness handed in a statement in answer to questions put at the last meeting, (See
Appendix N0.9.)

285. Mr. Johnston.] By the statement which you have just handed in, as an answer to questions
put to you when you where last examined, I see that the first amount of money was received from the
Bank of England on this security in October 1874. Did the Agent-General borrow this money
according to his own notion, or was he directed to obtain it in that way by the Government here ?—
From the beginning fhese debentures have been held as areserve fund, and the Loan Agentshave been
instructedfrom time to time, whenever they thought it necessary, to obtain advances fromtheBank of
England against these debentures, to meet therequirementsof the Government or the Agent-General.
The debentureswere lodged in the Bank originally with that intention. For instance, suppose the
Loan Agents had a parcel of debentures to dispose ofwhich could not be disposed of on advantageous
terms, an advance could be got against them until they could be sold.

286. If any special instructions went to these Agents at such a date as to cause them to go to the
Bank of England in October, such instructions must have gone from the Government here in August
last year, while Parliament was sitting. Did the Government know, while the Parliament was sitting
last year, that the imperially indorsed debentures were about to be pawned ?—I should think therecan
be no doubt about it. I was not a member of the Government at the time, and cannot, therefore,

Hon. Major
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speak positively; but I should say they must have known. Of course the Government had authority
to sell the debentures whenever they liked; but they reserved them for the purpose I have stated.

287. Sir F. D. Bell.] Do you not consider that, whatever might be the financial proposals of the
country, the remainder of the guaranteed loan should continue under any circumstances to remain with
the Bank of England in order to serve a purpose of that kind, and that it would be better even to
submit to a diminution of the produce of any loan than to use up thatreserve ?—I takeit there should
be a limit. I understand that the proposal of the late Treasurer (which, if my memory serves me, was
announced many times in the House) was that these debentures should be kept as a " stand-by," to be
used whenever it was unadvisable to place any of our debentures on the market; and that proposal
met with the concurrence of the House, and the Government have acted on it. If, however, you ask
me, as a matter of fact, whether it would be better to keep them under all circumstances, I should say
I think not; but I consider it better to keep them there than to sell our debentures, say, at 80.

288. But not going to so great a depreciation as that, but some depreciation below—for instance,
the rate at which the last loan was taken—do you think it would be more advisable to submit to some
depreciation with respect to the money that must be borrowed to complete the works nowauthorized,
than to use those guaranteeddebentures for this purpose?—I think that would entirely depend on the
circumstances of the case.

289. You have not come to any conclusion in your own mind on this subject ?—I am quite clear
that I should not part with these debentures till the very last; but, of course, the last may arrive at
any time.

290. I am speaking with reference to the unraised portions of the authorized loans. In the
Financial Statement it appears that a sum of money remains still unraised, but that unraised sum
includes the guaranteed debentures, and the money will all be required for the works already autho-
rized. I wish to know whether you have arrived at any opinion as to whether it would be better this
Session to propose that financial means be taken to avoid the present disposal of these guaranteed
debentures, in order to complete the works for which, according to the Financial Statement, they
would be required?—There is no present occasion to dispose of these debentures.

291. But there will be next year?—Possibly. I think, however, we shall hold these debentures
till the very last. That is the intention of the Government.

292. Are the Committee to understand that the completion of the present authorizedworks will
not require the raising of the remaining two millions early next year?—The proposal of the Govern-
ment is, as far as we can make out, to spend the balance by the end of next year; that is to say, to
extend our expenditureovera period of two years,commencing from the beginning of the last financial
year.

293. But will not a very large proportion of it be required to be raised in preparation ?—lf you
ask me my own views, I say I should endeavour to raise £1,200,000 unguaranteed, whenever an oppor-
tunity offered. According to my calculations, we have got at least fifteen months to do that in.

294. From now ?—About twelve months from now. By obtaining an advance on these debentures,
we can extend that to eighteen months.

295. Then the Committee may understand that the Government would, rather than sell these
debentures, obtain, if necessary, an advance from the Bank of England upon them, with the view of
making someother financial provision in order to keep them floating ?—Not without having regard to
the raising of a new loan.

296. The Chairman.] Then you practically regard that £800,000 of guaranteed debentures as a
reserve fund, as far as it will go ?—Yes, and always have doneso.

297. In your table, on page 8 of the Financial Statement, you say there is £660,000 available,
after having expended all that has been expended of the loans, and after making provision for the
liabilities at present incurred ?—Yes.

298. Of that £660,000, there is £130,000 of the unexpended balance of the votes set apart for the
purchase of Native lands ?—Yes.

299. Then, as far as public works are concerned, that has to be deducted from the £660,000
available ?—Yes.

300. Leaving £530,000 ?—Yes, but more would have to be deducted; part of the Defence Loan,
for instance.

301. Then, inround numbers, there is left, say, £500,000. In that case your reservefund has
already been encroached upon by £300,000?—No ; the whole two millions,according to my statement,
is " ear-marked." My endeavour, in using the word " liability," was to show that the whole of this
money, with the exception of a trifle, would be.required to complete these works. To complete the
works that are on the schedule, you will want the whole of the remaining two millions. The liabilities
arc not incurred to tin outside person, only to districts, and the Assembly could refuse to vote this
money.

302. Sir F. D. Bell.] Supposing that it appears on the Estimates that the amount of appropria-
tions made by Provincial Councils exceeds by a million and a-half the estimated revenue, it will be
competent for the House of Representatives now to exchange the whole of the authorizationswhich it
has already made, and fulfil these appropriations with the remainder of the loans instead?—Yes, so I
understand it.

303. Hon. W. Fitzherbert.] Might not that be regarded as breaking faith with the country ?
Supposingyou were to rescind thesevotes and divert them to another purpose,would the result not be
that some parts of the colony would havepublic works and others not?—Yes.

304. Then it is competent to do a thing and break faith in doingit ?—Yes.
305. Mr. Pearce.] Did you say, when you were last examined, in reply to Mr. Fitzherbert, that a

portion of the unissued loan is hypothecated to the Bank of New Zealand?—Yes, you will find that.
in the Financial Statement.
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306. Why was that not wiped out with the proceeds of the Four Million Loan ?—Because there
is no power to do it. You cannot transfer one fund to another. The money under the Public Works
Loan of last Session cannot be applied to the General Purposes Loan or Defence Loan. We did
practically cancel it by lodging a similar amount at the same rate of interest.

307. Then it is not au overdraft in the ordinary sense, inasmuch as there is a similar amount to
credit from the Four Million Loan ?—You are perfectly correct.

308. So that your statement is not at variance with that of Mr. Murdoch, when he said there was
no larger overdraft than £30,000 ?—No.

309. Hon. W. Fitzherbert.] I think I understood you to say that there was about a million
remaining out of the Four Million Loau, subject to liabilities in the Agent-General's Department for
Immigration?—Yes.

310. Can you state what is the probable amount of liabilities upon that million?—I think, in
round numbers, about a million

311. With regard to this £250,000 which has been lodged with the Bank, is it to come out of the
million now on hand?—We drewbills for that.

312. And they are taken into account in the expenditure ?—Yes.
313. Supposing that in five months therehas been expended £2,666,000, how longdoyou consider

the other millionwill last at the same rate ? Will it go off at the same rate ?—No ; according to our
calculations, the Four Million Loan will carry us through thefinancial year.

314. That is to say, though five months have absorbed two and a half millions, seven months will
only absorb one million ?—Yes.

315. Supposing you could get no aid from the two millions, all you would have to depend upon
would be the one millionremaining out of theproceeds of the loan, and what you could get out of the
revenue?—Yes.

316. Mr. J. Shephard.] You said, when you were last examined, that you expected to have to draw
from £150,000 to £200.000 a month ; for how many months would you have so to draw?—That would
depend on how we hurried on the contracts. Our idea is to carry things on steadily in order to
extend the expenditure over the two years.

317. Hon. W. Fitzherbert.] When drafts are drawn by you here onLondon, I wish toknow whether
it would not be, as a rule, always for liabilities incurred in the colony?—Yes, always for expenditure
in the colony.

318. Then supposing that for the next few months you would have to draw about £150,000 a
month, there would accrue liabilitiesat home in respect of immigration and so forth?—Yes, but not to
a very large extent,because we have limited the number. We have divided our immigration fund—
what we had left of it—so that it would extend over two years. Sir Julius Vogel had ordered a very
much larger number of immigrants for this year, but we countermanded the order. An extranumber
had started in the first few months of the year, so that a great part of the expenditure of the year
has already been incurred.

319. Then, in fact, you have held your hands withregard to immigration at home, and you will be
eased in thatrespect, and the two millions—the remnants of the loans—will be to complete the works
engaged for?—Yes.

320. Am I to understand then from your statement, in general terms, that you have begun already
to retrench in the matter of expenditure?—Yes; as soon as we looked at the state of the finance, we
determined to extend ourexpenditure overtwo years. We have kept the expenditure within the votes
with that view.

321. Mr. J. Shephard.] It has been part of the contention between the Loan Agents and Sir
Julius Vogel that it wouldhave been better to raise two millions in March, and two millions eight or
nine monthsafterwards?—Yes.

322. Well, I take it from your evidence that if Sir Julius Vogel had agreed to that proposition the
colony would, long before this, have been out of money altogether?—Not out of money yet.

323. I mean that the proceeds of the loan taken up would not have carried them on without again
borrowing ?—Yes.

321. And Sir Julius Vogel, in taking up the whole loan at that time, was actuated only by the
necessities of the colony,of which he was aware?—l have no doubt that it was an exceedingly wise
thing to take the whole of the money at once, even though we didnot absolutely want the whole.

325. Hon. E. W. Stafford.] Why doyou consider that it waswise to takeup more than was actually
required, when other persons, the Crown Agents for instance, considered that by not taking up the
whole amount at that time a higher price might be obtained?—Because there would have been
no guarantee. The risk was so great for the colony to run of having all its public works suddenly
stopped, and so great was the uncertainty of obtaining the money, that it would have been imprudent
not to take the money.

326. Mr. J. Shephard.] Had the two millions been raised, with the powerof raising the whole
sum upon the debentures, by this time you would have been without money?—Yes.

327. And somemonths would have elapsed before you could get the other two millions ?—Yes.
328. Hon. E W. Stafford.] With reference to the questionof raising theFour MillionLoan at once

or in parts,has therebeen any intimationto the Government here from the Crown A gents, or Sir Julius
Vogel, that about the time that this last loan was raised there were apprehensions in London
of a general European war, which led to a temporary panic, and which would affect the money market ?— We had no official notification of that.

329. Do you think that affected the character of the operation for raising the money firm ?—I think
so, but I have no precise information.

330 Sir F. D. Bell.] When you say there would be a risk of all thepublic works being stopped
if ihe whole four millions had not been taken firm, is not that in distinct opposition to the two
statements made at pages 2 and 8 of the correspondence, where the Loan Agents report their opinion
in these words: " Had circumstances permitted us to negotiate the loan in two equal parts, with an

Hon. Majo.
Atkinson.
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interval of nine or twelve months between them, we believe that we could with success have appealed
direct to the public with a very considerable saving to the colonial exchequer, and with the probable
advantage that, only a very small portion of the loan would have fallen into the hands of the
speculators." These words occur at page 2, and they are repeated at page 8. At page 14 you will
find the following:—" We frequently discussed with you the expediency or otherwise of raising the
money by instalments,instead of dealing with the whole loan by one operation. We are not aware of
your having told us that the proceeds of the sale of the four millions debentures would be required to
pay for public works to be completed 'during this and the next year.' On the contrary, we
endeavoured to elicit from you what the wants of the Government were, which would justify us in
consenting to the course you advocated, of disposing of the whole at once ; and, although we failed to
obtain from you any exact statement of your requirements, you distinctly informed us that
negotiations must be conducted on the basis of a fixed or firm price for the whole—three-fourths of
the money to be paid at short intervals, ending in August 1875, and the remaining fourth not later
than February 1870. Had we been given to understand that the expenditure of the money was to have
been spread over two years, we should most certainly have been no parties—in the absence of instruc-
tion—to the raising of the whole amount so far in advance; a step which may, and probably will,
entail upon the colony considerable loss, inasmuch as we cannot hope to obtain upon proper security,
for the temporary loan of the money, the same rate of interest as will be paid for it; the difference
between the two rates being, at this moment, upwards of 2 per cent, against the Government." Now,
is not thatview held by you, that there is so much risk, in opposition to the opinion there expressed
by the Loan Agents!'—l do not see the conflict. I know that the position oi the colony was such that
Sir Julius Vogelwas bound to make certain of at least four millions.

331. The Chairman.] Has not the result shown that Sir J. Vogel's course was the only one that
aprudent financier couldpossibly take?—Yes.

332. Because you see now-, that out of the four million loan, in four months three millions are
already spent, and you have only one million left to come and go upon; and, therefore, if you had
adopted the course proposed by the Crown Agents, of taking up the loan in two operations, you would
already have been in difficulties ?—Yes.

333. Hon. W. Fitzherbert.] Did the circumstances of the colony, iv your opinion, imperatively
require that tho whole of the Four Million Loan should be raised firm by Sir Julius Vogel ?—Yes.

Hon. Major
Atkinson.

3rd Sept., 1875.
Appendix, No. 2,

Tuesday, 7th Septembee, 1875.
Mr. Josh. Palmee, Chief Officer of the Union Bank of Australia, examined.

334. The Chairman.] This is a Committee appointed by the House of Representatives, to inquire
into the conditions upon which the Public Account is kept by the Bank of New Zealand. Are you
aware of the conditions or terms of the agreement?—Yes ; I have seen them published.

335. Do you think that upon the whole they are fair and reasonable terms; such terms as the
Bank ought to give to the Government, and the Government ought to expect from the Bank?—I
think it is probable that the Government might have secured better terms.

336. Do you think they could secure better terms now?—I think so, if the Account is anything
like what it has been.

337. Upon what points do you think they could secure better terms now?-»-I think that if the
money had been divided between the various banks they could have got a much higher rate of interest;
that theywould have escaped the charge for exchange on transactions on London negotiated in the
colony; and that they could have had much greater security, inasmuch as they could have had the
liability ofall the banks established in the colony, instead of that of only one.

338. Then in your opinion it would be better if the Account were divided among the various
banks, as is the case in Victoria, instead of remaining as at present?—I think so ; that is the system
in youth Australia, and has been for some years ; and there is a movement on foot in New South
Wales, which, it is generally supposed, will result in a division of the Government Account between
the banks there.

339. Sir F. I). Bell.] You said you were generally aware of the terms of the existing agree-
ment ?—Yes, as published.

340. I will call your attention separately to the various headings : Interest is credited to the
Government on the average balance of the Account, at the rate of 4 per cent, upon balances under
£50,000, and at 3 per cent, on daily balances above thatamount. When you said that the banks could
have given higher interest, what rate did you mean to say that the Union Bank, for instance, would
have been able and willing to give at that time or now?—I think we should probably have been able
to give 5 per cent. I may mention that in Victoria six banks were associated for the purposeof
undertaking the negotiation of loans, and upon the proceeds of those loans, when money was less
valuable than it is now, they allowed interest at the rate of 4 per cent. By that means, when
debentures were put before the public at an unfavourable time, the Government were able, by the
assistance of the banks, to hold overthe debenturesuntil a more satisfactoryamount could be obtained
for them.

341. Is the Committee to understandthat, assuming the present value of money will exist for a
given time (say twelve months), the Union Bank could afford to give as much as 5 per cent, on the
current daily balances, conditionally on the account remaining as good as it is?—l am not prepared to
say that the Union Bank would give 5 per cent, on a very large sum, but I think it would be to the
advantage of the Government and the banks to divide the account. A bank in the colony can use a
modernie sum with great profit and safety to itself. It might, out of a largesum of money, have to
hold a great portion idle, whereas by division it might employ it profitably and safely and pay better
interest.

Mr. J. Palmer,
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342.' Then the Committee is to understand that your opinion is that a higher rate of interest
would be obtained if the account were divided,and remained nearly as good as it is ?—Yes.

343. In the London account interest is credited on the daily balances at therate of 1 per cent,
below the current Bank of England rate of discount for the time being. Do you think the Bank in
London would be able to give better terms ? There could be no association of banks there?—There
might be. Of course it could only be by banks whose head offices are there.

344. The Union Bank does not carry on general banking business in London ?—Some branches
only. They receive moneyon deposit, but do not advance.

345. Do you think a division of the account would produce some increase of interest in London
too?—I do.

346. On overdrafts interest is now charged at the rate of 6 per cent, when under £50,000, and
7 per cent, when above that amount, with a proviso relating to the discount rates of the Bank of
England. Is it your opinion that the Union Bank would be able to charge less than that upon an
overdraft if it had a portion of the account ? I refer to an overdraft in the colony ?—No; I think
that is a very fair rate.

347. Looking at the rates that have been ruling (I do not mean the time when competition
reduced the overdraft on private accounts to 6 per cent.),—looking at the matter generally as to the
condition of banking business, do you think that the banks could afford to charge less than 7 per cent,
for overdrafts exceeding £50,000?—Of course it would be a question of amount, but I think they
would consent to 6 per cent, on ordinary amounts.

345. I should like to call your attention to the fact that the amount is not specified if it exceeds
£50,000 ?—Of course it would be quite impossible for me to pledge myself as to what would be the
rate for any unspecified amount. No banker could express an opinion on that subject unless he had
before him full particulars.

349. That is to say, if the Union Bank held the whole of the Government account, that difficulty
of forming a judgment as to an indefinite sum would not exist, because the Bank would know all
particulars ?—Yes ; the amount charged for overdrafts, and the amount of accommodation given is
guided principally by what the account is valued at.

350. Now, as to remittances. Remittances to London, under the agreement, are made by draft
at sixty days, at par ; and remittances at shorter dates at a half per cent, below the current rate, but
never below par. What do you think with respect to that, considering the large transactions which
are necessary ?—I understood from a statement which I saw in the correspondence published, that the
rate charged for sixty day bills had been g per cent, discount, and -f per cent, discount for ninety
day bills.

351. My question referred to remitting money to England ?—I think that is a fair thing.
352. And for bringing money from England ?—As regards bringing out money. There is no

doubt it could be very much better arranged in London. It might be done at par, and there might
possibly be a profit of 1 per cent, or more on it.

353. Hon. W. Fitzherbert^ The Government of New Zealand raised a loan of four millions, and
the proceeds received amounted to about £3,600,000. They deposited the whole of the proceeds with
the Bank of New Zealand. I should like to know whether, in your opinion,that was a prudent transac-
tion ?—Of course I should not, if I were a very large capitalist, consider it desirable voluntarily to
deposit so large an amount in one institution,when I had the option of spreading it over a number of
banks. The banks doing business in New Zealand represent a capital of nearly eight millions, and the
security would be largely increased by the liability, in some cases, of the shareholders for all the banks'
engagements. Therefore, on the question of security alone, it would be manifestly to the advantage
of the Government to divide its deposits.

354. If you had such an amount of money would you invest it in any one institution?—Certainly
not.

355. The interest paid by theBank of New Zealandto the Government for the use of this money
was, according to agreement, 1 per cent, below the Bank of England rate, but it was reduced by
special agreement to \ per cent. Do you think that a larger allowance than ought to have beeu made?
—I think that, taking into consideration any amount that might have been transferred to the colony,
where, as I have said,5 per cent, might have been obtained for it, a better price might have been given.
I think also thata better rate might have been obtained in London.

356. The colony placed a Four Million Loan on the market, and offered a premium of 5 per cent,
to purchasers who paid up promptly. Do you think that, if the Associated Banks had had the loan
placed with them, they could have obtained better tern s? Do you think they would have obtained
more than £90 19s. per cent, if they had been required to find two millions, say, in June, and two
millions in November or December?—I could hardly express an opinion as to the advisability of
extendingthe loan over six months, as I do not know the state of the London money market exactly.
I think that some influence would probably have been exercised by the ability of the Government to
hold over the debentures for a time if the price to be obtained at the moment was not considered
favourable ; but whether the colony would have benefited by the ultimate price obtained I am unable
to say.

357. Do you think the Associated Banks would have been sufficiently strong,and, if so, sufficiently
willing to undertake such a negotiation so as to find the proceeds of two millions in June and two
millions more in December?—I do not think the banks would have pledged themselves to find the
money out of their own capital, but I think they could have raised the money withoutdifficulty. Ido
not think the banks would have pledged themselves to raise the money in the time you name.

358. Mr. Johnston.] Does the fact that the Government keeps the whole of its account with one
Bank in any way disturb the monetary accommodationto the public in the colony ?—I think it must
inevitably do so. When the Bank has a large amount of money to lend out it must unduly expand its
advances in order to turn it to account, and when the money is drawn iv again it must be attended
witn somearbitrary contraction which more or less affects the trade of the community.

Mr. J. Palmer.
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359. Then, if the Government wanted an advance of £500,000 from its present bankers, is it not
probable that the Bank, in order to make that advance, would contract its advances to the public ?—
Of course that would depend on the position of the Bank. It would be impossible under ordinary
circumstances for a bank to do so without unduly contracting its other advances.

360. It is probable, at any rate, that if the account were divided between the Associated Banks
such an advance required by the Government could be given without so greatly disturbing the
public —Yes.

361. Mr. Pearce.] Is the Committee to understand that, in your opinion, if the account were
divided the Government could obtain better terms than they have now ?—I can only repeat what I
have already said: They could, presuming the account to be in the same position as it has been.

362. Is not the possession of the Government account a very great advantage to the Bank in
connection with its circulation ?—-Yes, and in the way of attracting deposits too.

363. I suppose you mean by that that customers are attracted to the Bank by having cheques on
it from the Government?—My meaning is this: A Government contractor, say, receives a large
amount of money from the Government. He goes to the Bank, and the probability is that he will
open an account with the money.

364. Those are two of the main advantages of having the Government Account ?—Yes.
365. Would it be reasonable, in your opinion, in any arrangementbetween the Government and

the Bank, that the Government should stipulate that the Bank should give an overdraft in anticipation
of either loans or revenue?—To areasonable amount ; yes.

366. Does not the fact that it is optional on the part of the Bank whether they give an overdraft
or not materiallyaffect the rate for the advance?—Yes, of course.

367. Mr. Curtis.] Do I understand that you mean it would be desirable that the account of the
colony should be divided amongst all the banks carrying on business within the Colony ?—Yes, I
think so.

368. Then the terms for the Account wouldhave to be arranged between the banks as a whole and
the Government?—Yes.

369. And the Government in that case would be obliged, I suppose, to take such terms as the
banks as a whole might agree upon ?—I do not know that they would be bound to accept the terms.

370. Imean that there wouldbe no competition of any kind ?—No.
371. They would not be able to say " we do not think these terms sufficiently liberal, and will go

somewhere else " ?—I do not think lamin a position to answer that question.
372. The only way in which they can deal with the banks to divide the Account, would be, I

imagine, by having the same terms with the whole of thebanks? —Precisely.
373. And these terms wouldhave to be arranged between the banks, as an associated body, and

the Government ?—Yes.
374. When the Governmentkeeps its account with one bank, if it does not like the terms of that

bank, it is able either to remove the Account to some other bank where better terms can be obtained,
or put somepressure on its bank by threatening to do so ?—Yes.

375. Sir F. D. Bell.] In your opinion, would not the possession of so large an amount of money,
in London, by the Bank of New Zealand, place that Bank in a very strong position in Lombard
Street ?—Yes.

376. Then supposing thatno large amount of profit could have been got by placing thatmoney in
Lombard Street, did not the mere possession of it, for the purposeof being so placed, give any bank a
very strongposition in Lombard Street ?—Undoubtedly.

377. Do you think that £ per cent, under the Bank of England rate was a sufficient concession to
make, considering the price of money at the time, of which I suppose you areaware ?—I think better
terms could have been secured.

378. Do you think that, considering the preponderating power which so considerablea sum of
money suddenly placed in one institutionmust have giventhat institution, the colony should not have
exactedrather more thau f per cent, under the Bank of England rate, and do you not think that in
the case of any new transaction of the sort, a further concession than f per cent, ought to be exacted?
—I think that the Government by confining themselves to one institution, should have been able to
exact better terms.

379. Now with respect to the future finance. Your attention has been drawn, I presume, to the
understanding which appears to have been come to between Sir Julius Vogel and Rothschild, that no
new loans should be placed on the market for some considerabletime to come?—Yes.

380. Do you think that if the necessities of the public works should require another million of
money to be provided, while on the other hand, it would be undesirable to place another million on the
Euglish market,—do you suppose that if there was a division of the account between the Banks, the
Banks would be able with the authority of Parliament to make an advance for a year or two years of a
million of money, so as to avoid contracting a loan ?—I do not think the Banks would pledge them-
selves, although they might be the means of raising the money. The influence of an association of
banks must be greater in London than the influence of only one.

381. I am not referring to the raising of money by placing debentures on the London market.
What I wish to know is, whether, in your opinion, the Associated Banks, if the account were divided,
would be in a position and willing to advance for a time,a sum of say a million ofmoney, so as to avoid
placing debentures on the London market for a year or two ?—I do not think the Banks would
pledge themselves.

382. Then, practically, the Government could not look to that as an alternative advantage to them
with any degree of certainty ?—Not to the extentyou mention.

383. Mr. J. Shephard.] If Sir Julius Vogel, instead of placing this sum (or supposed sum) of a
million and a half as he did, had divided it amongst several banks for the sake of getting some
temporary advantage,would it be likely that, when afterwards the Government required an advance
from the Bank of New Zealand, probably of a considerable amount, the bank might, as against the
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Mr. J. Palmer. " loss of that benefit, exact high terms ?—That is quite possible, assuming that the Government, after
having divided the deposit, would have to go back to the Bank of New Zealand for an advance.

384. This deposit being only for a short time, might it not be probablethat Sir Julius Vogel con-
sulted the permanent interests of the colony by not putting himself on bad terms with the public
bankers ?—That is assuming that the Government is pledged to the Bank of New Zealand for its
account definitely.

385. I am supposing they intended to continue their account with the Bank of New Zealand ?—
If they intended to continue permanently with the Bank of New Zealand it wouldprobably have that
effect.

386. Hon. Major Atkinson.] Are you acquainted with the terms upon which the Associated Banks
in Victoriakeep the Government account ?—I cannot say that lam in possession of full particulars,
although I know some ot the terms.

387. I should like to know whether you consider those terms as liberal as the terms of the Bank
of New Zealand ?—As far as I know they are more liberal.

388. Would you state some of the points in which they are more liberal ?—The deposit rate for
loan proceeds is 4 per cent, instead of 3. The Government of Victoria require the proceeds of their
loans to be used in the colony, and the money is, therefore, invested in the colony. The New Zealand
Government seem to have kept their proceeds in London.

389. And with regard to the question of ordinary accounts?—lnterest is allowed on the weekly
balance of the Government account in Victoria by the Associated Banks at the rate of 3 per cent.,
and that arrangement was made at a time when money was of less value than it has been during the
last twelve months.

390. Our arrangement has existed with the Bank of New Zealand for the last eight or ten years.
Do you think we could have obtained from the Associated Banks better terms overa period of years?
—There is no doubt that money was morevaluable eight or ten years ago than at the present time.

391. You think that for the future we could obtain better terms by transferring the account to
the Associated Banks, overa number of years, than we now obtain from the Bank of New Zealand?—
I think so.

392. Hon. W. Fitzherbert.] The agreementbetween the Government and the Bank ofNew Zealand
is to the effect thatcertain rates are to be charged under certain circumstances, and that six months'
notice is to be given before removing the account. There is no stipulation for an advance even of a
thousandpounds. Do you think that proper reciprocity?—It is customary in arrangementsbetween
the Government and a bank, or banks, to mention a certain sum up to which the bank or banks
would pledge itself or themselves to advance.

393. And, I presume, the settlement of that particular amount would vary by the Bank taking
into consideration the value of the account in the way of attracting other customers, &c. ?—Yes.

394 Are you in a position from your own knowledge to say whether the value of the Government
account in the Colony, for the last four or five years, has been such, that a fair advance might
reasonably have been asked for ; and, if so, what advance?—I do not think a bank would have pledged
itself to advance more than £100,000.

395. I understand that that would be an unsecured advance?—Yes. I do not imagine thata
bank would pledge itself willingly to an advance of that kind for an indefinite period; but with the
prospect of funds coming in, it would be willing to advance so far, no doubt. I think that would have
been a fair sum to stipulate for.

396. And regarding the six months' notice that requires to be given to terminate the account, I
wish to have your opinion as to whether that is an undue or insufficient time?—Arrangements between
governments and banks are, I think, generallyfor a specified time.

397. Sir F. D. Bell.] Do you think an indefinite period with notice, or a definite period without
notice, is best for the governmentor for the bank so dealing ?—I think it is better to have a definite
period in the interests of both.

398. Mr. Curtis.] Would there not be this difficulty in having a definite period, that when the
time was about to expire the bank would have to make certain arrangements which might possibly be
of acharacter to cause it to require better terms from the Government than would be the case if the
account continued with them on a notice of six months?—l do not think so.

399. Hon. W. Fitzherbert^] Supposing that no arrangements with the associated banks were made,
would it, in your opinion, be a preferable system to the present (by which six months' notice has to be
given), to have an arrangementby which, at stated periods, tenders shouldbe invitedfrom the different
banks for the Government account?—l think so.

400. But you are in favour of dealingwith the Associated Banks?—Yes.
401. And your opinion is that it would be preferable to invite tenders for a definiteperiod?—I

think so.
402. Mr. Johnston.] What advance do you think the Associated Banks might be willing to

give to the Government say for twelve months ?—I cannot say, because I have not had an opportunity
of knowing what the account is likely to be.

403. Hon. E. W. Stafford.] When you said it was the custom generally to have definite periods
instead of indefinite, what Banks and Governments were you alluding to?—The Provincial Govern-
ments always arrangewith their bankers for a definite period.

404. The Provincial Governments of New Zealand?—Yes.
405. Are you aware of the custom in the Australian Colonies?—In almost every instance in

Australia, the accounts are now with the Associated Banks.
406. I understood you to say it was generally the custom ?—My answer applied merely to New

Zealand and Australia.
407. Are you aware what the custom is in Victoria and New South Wales ?—ln New South

Wales it has been the practice to arrange for definite periods, and I believe it is the same in Victoria.
408. On what grounds are you stating that?—From correspondence 1 have read, which was laid

before the Legislative Assembly in New South Wales.
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409. Hon. E. W. Stafford.] It is just the other way as to recent arrangements which are for an
indefinite period and subject to notice?—lt is some time since I read thepapers referring to it, but my
impression is that the agreement is for a definite period, and that Mr. Shepherd Smith sought to make
the extension of the agreement the condition upon which he allowed a higher rate of interest on a
special deposit.

410. In Victoria the account is kept with the Associated Banks, is it also for a definite period
and not subject to notice ?—I believe so, but I cannot speak positively with regard to Victoria.

Mr. J. Palmer.
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Wedn^day, Bth Septembeb, 1875.
Mr. E. W. Moeeah, Inspector Bank of Australasia, examined.

411. The Chairman.].—Do you represent the Bank of Australasia?—Yes.
412. The Committee desired your attendanceto getfrom you such information as you can give

respecting the banking system which existsbetween the Government and the Bank of New Zealand?
Are you aware of the terms upon upon which the Governmentaccount is kept by the Bank of New
Zealand ?—Only so far as I can judgefrom aperusal of the published Loan correspondence.

413. You observe the terms set out there ?—Yes, but I do not think they can be the complete
terms.

414. What is your opinion as to thegeneralfairness of the arrangementa made between the Colony
and the Government ?—As far as the agreementgoes, I think it is fair, but I think the agreement is
imperfect.

415. In whatrespect mainly ?—ln thefirst place I notice that there is no engagementon thepart
of the Bank to allowthe Government any stated assistance, and further I observe that there is no
maximum amount of deposit agreed upon. Again, there is no exclusion of loan money, as there is in
almost all other banking arrangements; that there is no arrangement made for " set-offs" by way of
interest. There are also one or two other minor matters, which Ido notremember at this moment.

416. The generalrates for doing business, as far as interest and exchange go, you think are fair ?
—Yes. There is no rate given for transferring money from London to the colony,but I have seenfrom
certain papers what that rate is, and it appears to me reasonable, although possibly it might be done
cheaper.

417. Is it you opinion that the Colony would, or would not, be likely to obtain more favourable
terms from other Banks?—That is a difficult question to answer, because I really do not know what
terms the colony does obtain. As far as the agreementgoes, I think the terms are reasonably fair.

418. In case a Bank took the account and pledged itself to make a certainamount of advance that
might be required by the colony, is it probable that terms, even as favourable, might permanently
continue ?—I think so, were the advance for any reasonable amount.

419. Such as?—Such as £50,000, the amount named here, or more.
420. The Hon.E. W. Stafford].—You used the term "setoffs." Would you explain whatyou mean?

—Settingoff interest ona creditor balance against interest on a debtorbalance. So far as I canunderstand
from readingup thepapers in connection with the Governmentaccount,there is only onepublic account
kept, or rather, there are two public accountskept, one locally and the other in London. The public
account here, judging from the averagesof the Bank of New Zealand, is always largely in funds, but
there is no knowing what the state of the public account in London is. I assume, from what I have
read in the Treasurer's Financial Statement, and other things, that the account in London must at
times be overdrawn. If so, there is no provision made for any " set off," and through its absence
interest might be charged on an overdraft in London, and an equivalent rate not allowed as a " set
off" on the credit balance here.

421. I hardly understand the answer. The expression "set offs " refers to the possible difference
in the balance of the public account in the colony, andthe public account in London ?—Precisely,
assuming as I do (I have only been in the colony a few months, and am therefore unfamiliar with the
way ofkeeping public accounts here), that the whole of the Government moneys go into the public ac-
count here, and that it is the sole account.

422. But would there be any difference if the money werekept in one account in the colony ?—I
say that the Government account should be treatedas a whole.

423. Is it the case in the Australian Colonies that the London and Australian accounts are treated
as one ?—Yes. I believe so ; the Government ofNew South Wales excludes money raised on loans, and
therefore their balances are probably never very large in London.

424. Have you seen the papers showing the result of a Select Committee lately appointed in New
South Wales to consider the banking arrangements of that colony—papers which purport to disclose
the arrangement under which the Government account is kept by the Bank of New South Wales ?—I
have not seen the papers, but I have read the discussion that took place in the House on the subject.

425. Are you aware what interest is allowedon the credit balances of the New South Wales Go-
vernment?—Three per cent, up to £150,000.

426. And are you aware that when it exceeded that amount the Bank had the use of a certain
amount of money without interest ?—The arrangement was that the Bank allowed threepercent, up to
£150,000; when the balance amounted to between £150,000 and £200,000 there was no interest paid
on the excess over £150,000, but when it reached £200,000 the Government had the right of making
special terms with the Bank, or of lodging the money elsewhere to the best advantage.

427. That statement is not in accordance with the publishedterms in thepapers I havereferred to
It is stated that interest is paid at the rate of 2| per cent, on sums over £200,000?—Subsequently
such an arrangement was made up to a limited amount.

428. Hon. Major Atkinson].—Are you acquainted with the arrangements existing between the
Governmentof Victoria and the Associated Banks ?—Unfortunately it is so many years since I had to
do with it that I cannot speak positively.

4—l. 2b.
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429. Mr. Johnston].—Do you know as a matterof fact whether theAssociated Banksare the agents
in London for negotiating loans ?—Yes, they are.

430. Do you think they make good agents?—I certainly do.
431. Do you think they have exceptional facilities for putting out debentures among investors—

better than the Crown Agents ?—I should say better. In fact, if the Chairman would allow me, I
should like to submit to the Committeea case in point in connection with the raising of a loan that
was attempted to be floated by theVictorian Government, and which was pronounced a failure. I see
that even Sir Julius Vogel refers to it by implication as a failure. It was a million and a half loan,
four per cent., and the minimum price, including accrued interest,was fixed at £91 7s. 6d. The Go-
vernment certainly made a great mistake, as they were told by their agents, in attempting to float a
four per cent, loan, and the consequence was that when this Iran was placed on the market it did not
go off, except to the extentof £900,000 ; whereupon the Associated Banks, instead ofhawking the loan
about London, took it up themselves, and the result was that the Colony of Victoria received for this
loan, which has been condemned as a failure, upwards of £90 10s. per cent. nett.

432. Hon. E. W. Stafford.] Are you aware what was the amount of accrued interest at the time
the Associated Banks took up thebalanceof theloan?—I willread anextractfrom aletteronthe subject.
It is as follows:—"Thelaunching ofa Victorian Four per cent.Loan ofoneandhalfmillion was confidedto
the Agency of theRepresentatives inLondon, of six Australian banks. It wasbrought out inNovember
last. The Government of Victoria fixed the minimum at £91 7s. 6d. including the accrued interest on
the bonds. A considerable portion was taken at and above that minimum, and finally the balance of
£600,000 was taken at the minimum by the Associated Banks. The commission charged was under one
per cent., so that the Government of Victoria received something over £90 10s. for each £100
debenture."

433. It has been stated that the amount which the Associated Banks gave was £90 10s. ?—The
banks took it at £91 7s. 6d.. which was the minimum.

434. You are sure the banks took it at the Governmennt minimum ?—Yes ; the letter I have
quoted from is written by an undoubted authority.

435. The accrued interest at the time was If per cent, which reduced the price received by the
Government to 88| ?—The minimum fixed was 91i, and the Governmentreceived something over£90
10s. per cent.

436. How could that be if there wereaccrued interest ?—I cannot state, because Ido not know,
the amount of the accrued interest.

437. 1 want to know the nett amount that the Government received, less accrued interest?—I
cannot say what that was. The letter states the minimum fixed, including accrued interest.

438. Would it be an advantage to the banks to take up that balance?—I think not. It was
probably taken up morefor the purpose of sustaining the credit of the colony than anything else.

439. Mr. Johnston.] What amount did they take up ?—£600,000.
440. Do you think that, if the Government of this colony conductedits business with an Associa-

tion of Banks, the Association would give them an overdraft of say £600,000 or thereabouts on the
security of debentures?—lt is difficult to answera question of that kind, as so much would depend
on the state of things at the time,but I apprehend there would be no difficulty about it in ordinary
times.

441. To hold the debentures over?—I think so.
442. You have no doubt thatan Association of banks could do that more easily than a single

bank ? Undoubtedly.
443. Do youknow, as a New Zealand banker, whether the fact of the Government keeping its

account in one bank in any way disturbs the monetary accommodationof the colony ?—lt must have a
tendency that way when it comes to a large amount.

444. Could that be lessened if the Government divided its account ?—Yes, if the account were
spread over the different banks it would have less tendency towards a disturbance in the money
market.

445. Do you know, as a matter of fact, whetherkeeping the Government account in one Bank has
caused any disturbancein the money market?—I cannot say that I know it as a matter of fact.

446. One of the conditions of the agreementis that the Government shall not withdraw its account
except on six months' notice. Do you consider that a goodarrangement?—Well, with some reserva-
tion, I think it is. I think the Government should always have power to change its Banker, while the
Bank cannot invest its deposits to advantage unless sure of some notice of withdrawal. Ido notthink,
however, that the Government should place itself so much in the hands of the Bank as it does by the
six months' notice agreement.

447. Do you think it would be better if the Government wereto giveits account for a fixedperiod,
or for a timenot fixed, with notice ? In Australia,do they not give the account for a fixed time?—ln
Sydney, the account is given for a fixed time. In Victoria, I think there has been a sort of unwritten
agreement; it was understood that the six Associated Banks there should keep the Government
account, but I think there was no written agreement as to the term. Of late years, however, public
opinion has been brought to bear, and now four other Banks are allowed to participate, so that
the Victorian Government account is at present divided amongst ten Banks. In Sydney, the arrange-
ment is for three years.

448. You said, I think, that it is ordinarily the case, when a Governmentmakes an arrangement
with aBank, that there is a stipulation for the Bank to give a minimum amount of accommodation,
which amount is fixed ?—Yes, I think so; and also that somemaximumamount ofdeposit shouldbe stated.
I do not think that this Government, in making the agreementwith the Bank of New Zealand, con-
sidered that so large an amount as a million and a half should be placed in the Bank.

449. In your opinion, would it add to the safety of the Government if the money were divided
amongst an association of Banks?—l think so, assuming that they were all sound Banks that were
associated. In distributing a largeamount of money like this, in manageablesums, a larger amount of
interest would be obtained for it.
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450. Do you think that the rate of interest at present obtained by the Government, namely,—
£ per cent, below the Bank of England rate, is reasonable?—No.

451. What do you think they might fairly have asked?—I think that considering this was, to all
intents and purposes, a fixed deposit for a stated term, the least they should have obtained was 4 per
cent. The whole character of the arrangement was changed by Sir Julius Vogel's letter,where, in
consideration of a i per cent, per annum, he changes the temporarydeposit into one fixed for six and
twelve months. Of course the Bank, having that pledge, as it were, from Sir JuliusVogel, could
lend, the money with very great advantage to itself, and I have no doubt that a very handsome profit
has been made by the Bank of New Zealand in consequence of that. It made an immense difference
to the Bank having this promise from Sir Julius Vogel. I may state, further, that I feel confident
had the money been brought to the jolony a still higher rate than I have named would have been
obtained.

452. Do you know what rate of exchange for remitting funds from London to the colony is at
present charged by the Bank of New Zealand to the Government?—Jth per cent, for 60 days.

453. Do you consider that a fair rate ?—I do ; but I think better terms might have been obtained.
This is one condition among many—not a sole condition.

454. The terms for sending money to London are 60 days at par. Is that a fair rate? —
Certainly.

455. The Hon. E. W. Stafford] —You have said that you think better terms with reference to
the rate of exchange from London to New Zealaud could have been obtained; do you put no limit in
reference to the amount to be exchanged. We have been told that the Governmentwill have to draw
at the rate of £200,000 every four weeks for some time?—As one condition among many, I think the
Government could have it done at par, even if they drew £200,000 every four weeks.

456. Speaking as to the rate of exchange alone ?—I think it is reasonable.
457. You have already stated that you consider the terms themselves fair ?—Yes, so far as they

appear in the published papers.
458. You seem to qualify your answer. Are you aware of anything that does not appear?—l

stated that if this really is the agreement it is an imperfect agreement. I see by this agreement no
absolute obligation on the part of the Bank to allow an overdraft; that the terms as regards the
Government's bills on London are not named; that the loans are not excluded from this agreement,
which I believe they were certainly intended to be; that there is no maximumof amount of deposit
which there should be, if only for the protection of the Government, because under this agreement the
Bank can compel the Governmentto put the whole of their funds with them.

459. You interpret the words, " that the banks shall receive all balances " to be a compulsory
poweron the partof theBank ?—I interpret the words " all moneys "tomeanthat, and I may be allowed
to point out that there is a very objectionable proviso in the agreement. It is this: After the words
" all monies received in London are paid into the New Zealand public account at the Bank of New
Zealand," occurs the strange expression "whencethey are withdrawnfor expenditure asrequired." The
Government could not therefore invest the money in Exchequer Bills or otherwise without the consent
of the Bank. It is a superfluous and very objectionable provision.

460. Are you aware that there was an instruction to invest some of the proceeds of the Four
Million Loan in Exchequer Bills?—I have seen that stated, but theBank could object.

401. But, as a matter of fact, the bank did not object?—l presume the bankknew there was not
likely to be a surplus beyond £1,500,000, and therefore had no reason to object.

462. What do you mean?—Judging from the Treasurer's Financial Statement there was not
likely to be more than £1,500,000.

463. The opinions that you express now, are, I suppose, your own, and were notformed after
consultation with theHead Office of your bank ?—Entirely my own. In fact, I did not know, until a
few days ago that I was to be summoned before this Committee. They are my own personal
opinions.

464. Sir F. D. Bell.] With whom do you consider the advantage lies, owing to what you describe
as theimperfectness of the agreement—the Government or the Bank ?—The Bank most certainly.

465. Hon. Major Atkinson.] How is the advantagewith thebank ?—Because all the omissions I
have mentioned, and all the conditions to which I have referred as objectionable, tend to favour the
bank.

466. But have not the Government an advantage of being able to remove the account ?—Yes; at
six months' notice.

467. But is not that a very great power?—Yes.
468. But you do not think it counter-balances the other ?—I think something should have been

stated as to the amount thebank would allow the Government in case of need. In the case of the
New South Wales Government and the Bank of New South Wales there is a contract for both
advances and deposits.

469. As a matter of fact with the powerof removing the account, do you not think that the
Government could always obtain an advance of that sort?—No doubt the power of removing the
account would act as a lever upon any bank.

470. Hon. E. W. Stafford.] Would it not be a stronger power than an agreement for a
definite period ?"—Yes.

471. You stated that to deposit so large a sum in one bank had a tendencyto disturb public
business ?—Yes.

472. That was on the assumption that these large deposits were made in the colony?—On the
assumption that some portion of them would find their way to the colony.

473. You mean to be remittedby the Bank for use in thecolony?—Yes.
474. You make that answer hypothetically ? You are not aware whether the Bank did remit any

sum?—I cannot state, positively, but 1 think so, and Sir Julius Vogel speaks of " enlarging thecolonial
resources of the Bank.
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475. As a matter of fact have you any reason to believe that any portion of the deposits were
remitted to the colony ?—Judging from the Bank returns I should think a great deal of the money
must have been used in the colony.

476. In what way did the Bank returns evidence that ?—The principal way I should deduce that
would be from the fact that during twelve months the Bank of New Zealand had increased their
advances very considerably, and I think the fair inference is that they had increased their advances in
anticipation of receiving this money.

477. During which twelve months ?—The twelve months antecedent to the 31st of March last.
During that timethe Bank ofNew Zealand increased their advances by £700,000.

478. But the authority to raise the loan was not given twelve months before the 31st of March?
—No, but that is the increase in their average advances during the twelve months.

479. The Bank could not have calculated uponthat loan twelve months before the 31st of March?
—I simply say that I deduceall this.

480. Sir F. D. Bell.]—If you were the banker, would you not have deduced that from the
Financial Statement of that year to raise the loan, and from the action immediately taken in London
of raising theFour Million Loan ?—-The only doubt I should have would be as to whether the loan
would float. If I thought it would float I should take measures accordingly.

481. Ifyou thought the loan would be floated, would you not have considered, as the Banker, that
it was right to extend your business as the Bank of New Zealand did?—I can hardly say that, one
banker might think so and another might not. One is sanguine,another is cautious.

482. You assume that would have been the guiding point ?—I think that is a fair deduction to
draw.

483. Hon. E. W. Stafford.—As a matter of fact the loan was not negotiated till February
1875, and the authority to raise an additional loan was not given till August, 1874. Yet you say
that during the twelve months preceding 31st March, 1875, the business of the Bank of New Zealand
had been very largely extended?—Their advances in the colony had, with no corresponding increase in
their deposits.

484. Have you any figures to lay before the Committee, showing the relative increase in their
advances as compared with the twelve months antecedent to that ?—No.

485. What was your impression as to the proportionate increase? Was it 50 percent ?—A great
deal more than that,I think. It was in the proportion of £20,000 to £700,000. lam speaking of the
averages for the yearending 31st March, 1875.

486. The Committee understands you to state that in the twelve months the amount of the
increase in their advancewas much more than50 per cent, greater than the amount of their advances
in the antecedent twelve months ?—I think so, speaking from memory.

487. And with reference to the deposits in the same two periods, you consider that the increase in
deposits and circulation taken together bore the relation of £20,000 to £700,000 ?—Yes, but

488. I want to know what was therelative increase in the deposits in the twelve monthspreceding
the 31st March, 1875, as compared with the deposits in the twelve months antecedent to that period ?
—I cannot say without the Government Gazette.

489. The increase in deposits and circulation was only £20,000 ?—That is all.
490. Mr. Johnston.]—Have you any idea where the Bank got the money prior to the issue of the

loan ?—I donotknow. Perhaps its advances consistedof advances madeto Governmentin anticipation
of raising the loan.

491. Hon. E. W. Stafford.]—The Government got an advance from the Bank of England of
£600,000?—Yes, but at the same time there is about £340,000 still to be accounted for, and I con-
clude that is the sum advanced by the Bank of New Zealand.

492. We have it in evidencefrom the Inspector of theBank ofNew Zealand, that the unsecured
advances neverexceeded £30,000?—I do not know whether it is relevant, but I have takenthe trouble
to look into the Treasurer's Financial Statement of this year, and I have found that there is £340,000
not accounted for in that statement.

Mr. E. »'. Mor-
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Mr. Beidges, Director and Acting General Managerof the National Bank of New Zealand :

Examination continued.
(The evidence given by Mr. Bridges at a previous sitting was read.)

493. The Chairman.] The Committee is to understand that you think better terms could be
obtained by the Government, either by tendering or by employing the Associated Banks?—By
employing the Associated Banks, unquestionably.

494. You see no difficulty in the way of employing the Associated Banks?—None at all.
495. That course is pursued in Victoria, I believe ?—Yes; and it is found to work well.
496. But the circumstances of this colony differ materially from those of Victoria, in this way :

That in Victoria business is more central—it is more confined to the capital town ; whilst here it
spreads and ramifies into every locality throughout the whole colony, and there is no one particular
place where the business of the country generally is done. Would not that make a material difference
if thebanks herewere associated inkeeping the Government account, compared with the circumstances
of Victoria?—No ; the only difference is that there is one large centre in Victoria, while there is not
one here.

497. With respect to your own Bank, have you branches in every part of New Zealand, so as to
enable you to conduct any considerable part of the Government account if you had it ?—No; nor
have some of the other banks doing business in the colony; but there would be no difficulty on that
score.

498. How do you suppose that a division could be managed—that each bank should take a specific
portion of the account ?—That would be a matter ofarrangement between the banks.

Mr. Bridges.
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499. And you think there would be no difficulty in making such an arrangement?—No, none.
Such arrangements aremade in Victoria.

500. The Bank of New Zealand has branches in nearly every part of the colony, I think ?—Yes.
501. So that they are enabled to do the business of the Government without any practical

difficulty?—Yes ; but up to the time I left that bank there were places where they could not do the
Government business.

502. Has any other bank doing business in New Zealand as many branches as the Bank of New
Zealand?—No.

503 Mr. Johnston.] In your opinion, does the fact that the Government keep their account in one
bank in any way disturb the monetarytransactions of the colony ?<—Yes.

504. Do youknow, as a matter of fact, whether it has done so ?—Yes.
505. To the disadvantage of the colony ?—Yes; and quite recently.
506. You think it would be a public gain, from that point of view, if the Government account

were divided?—There cannot be two opinions as to that, I think.
507. A considerable public gain?—Yes ; a considerablepublic gain.
508. There is one point in the banking agreement which disables the Government from changing

its banker except on six months' notice. Do you think that is a good system, as compared with a
fixed term ?—I do not think there is much difference. When one bank has the whole account, I think
it is proper that they should have notice when it is to be closed.

509. But would it not be better for the Governmentto give its account for a fixed term ?—Yes; I
think it would.

510. Is not the effect of such longnotice somewhat of this character: that the Government being
unable to do anything in the shapeof shifting its account for six months does nothingat all, as a matter
of fact, from year to year ?—The Associated Banks would certainly not require notice for such a long
period ; but it is obvious that if they invest the public funds, it is necessary that they should have time
to get the money in.

511. You think that by dividing the account better terms could be obtained ?—Certainly.
512. Does the fact of the Government being tied up by six months enable the Bank to have more

influence overthe Government than would otherwise be the case ?—I think so.
513. Do you know of any instance of that, or is it a mere matter of theory ?—Will you put the

question in another shape.
514. When it was suggested by the Crown Agents at Home that the proceeds of the loan had

better be divided among various banks for safety, Sir Julius Vogel said that could not be done without
givingthe Bank of New Zealand a heavy claim for damages, and, knowing this, it appeared to me that to
a certain extentthe Government werein the hands of theBank in consequence of those terms. That is
one case; and I can quite imagine that in the history of the colony certain other cases have from time
to time arisen of a similar character. I do not know that it is so; but perhaps you know something
about it. I shall put it in this way: Do you know of any case where the Bank has constrained the
action of the Government to the disadvantage of the Government?—I do not know that I can answer
that question, because, if I did so, I migtit be guilty of a breach of confidence; but I may say that
the fact of the Government keeping its account in one bank must necessarily have that tendency, and
the Governmentmust be to a certain extent in the power of the bank.

515. Then, in your opinion, if the Government gave its account to an association of banks it
would tendto avoid the creation ofcertain political powerwhich must of necessity be enjoyed by any
one bank which possesses the Government account?—Decidedly.

516 Do you think an association of banks forms a good agencyfor the negotiation of loans in
London?—Undoubtedly ; that has been proved in the case of Victoria.

517. Better, you think, than the Crown Agents?—Yes.
518. We had it in evidence from Mr. Morrah that when the Government of Victoria tried to

negotiatea million and a half loan and failed, the Associated Banks bought £600,000 worth of the
debentures themselves. Do you think that, for a reasonable amount, an association of banks would
be always ready to do that business ?—I think so.

519. The Bank of New Zealand, we have been told, acts as paymasterfor the Government. That
makes a considerablesaving, does it not—a saving ofabout £20,000 a year?—I do not know. I have
never thought on the subject.

520. If the account were divided amongst an association of banks, do you think they would
consent to act as paymasters, as the Bank of New Zealand does ? Would it be worth their while when
each bank had only a fraction of the account?—It would be worth while for an association of banks
to do what the Bank of New Zealand does.

521. Do you think the rate of interest received by the Government for moneys held in England,
namely, f per cent, below the Bank of England rate, a good one ?—No; it is within my personal
knowledge that the arrangement made with the Bank of New Zealand was a very bad one for the
colony. I allude especially to the million and a half which was lodged with the Bank, and which, it
was understood, theywould have for a fixed period of six and twelve months.

522. What do you think the Government might have obtained for that money ?—From the banks
in London they would have got at least4 per cent. The rate for twelve months' deposits varies from
4to 5 per cent. The best London banks give 4 per cent., and the Colonial and Indian banks from
4to 5 per cent. That is irrespective of the Bank of England rate.

523. Sir F. D. Bell.] When you say that it is within your personal knowledge that the arrange-
ment was a bad one for the colony, are the Committee to infer that you are able to say that, supposing
the million and a half hadbeen placed with the Bank you represent, the financial arrangements of that
Bank in Lombard-street would have enabled it to give the Government the amount you have named
upon a fixed deposit ?—No ; 1 am not prepared to say that.

524. Then what do you mean when you say you speak from personal knowledge?—l mean thftf 1
know the London banks' rate for fixed deposits for twelve months varies from 4 to 5 per cent.

s—l. 2b.
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525. Then what is the reason that you cannot say that theBank you represent could have obtained
that rate for the Government ?—The Association of Banks could have obtained that interest from the
London Banks.

526. But why the Associated Banks ; why not any one bank ?—Any onebank could have obtained
it, but Ido not say that any one bank would have taken the whole of the money. I cannot say that a
young bank like ours would' have taken the whole million and a half.

527. The Chairman.] What is the actual amount the Government are getting now7, with the Bank
rate as it is?—Only 2\ per cent., in consequence of the fall of the Bank rate. From the Associated
Banks they would have gotfrom 4 to 4J per cent.

528. Sir F. JD. Bell.] Is the Committee then to understand that you express a decided opinion:. that, supposing the £1,500,000 referred to in the loan papers had not been placed with the Bank of
New Zealand for six months certain, but with the banks in Lombard Street, the New Zealaud Govern-
ment would certainly have received something like 4 per cent, for the fixed deposit?—Certainly; at
least 4 per cent.

529. But if the arrangement which the loan papers show to have been made was one which didnot
definitelyfix a term,but only gave an assurance that, so far as then known, that amount would be left
with the Bank for six months, do you still think that so large a rateof interest would have been
certainly received ?—No, not unless the money was fixed for a term ; but still a much more favourable
rate than the Government is getting could have been obtained.

530. The institution which you represent contains a number of wealthy men among its directors
and shareholders, does it not ?—Yes ; some of the first men in the city.

531. Is not Mr. Magniac a gentleman who is largely engaged in financial transactions, and a
wealthy man ?—Yes, he is the chairman of directors.

532. Supposing, then, that your directors had been placed in the sameposition by Sir JuliusVogel
as the Bank of New Zealand was placed in—that is to say, receiving an assurance that £1,500,000
would remain for six months—do you consider that, notwithstanding that limitation, the rate would
have been much more favourable than the one which was obtained ?—Much more favourable.

533. And through their standing in England and their own position, notwithstanding the youth
of the Bank, they would have been able to see that financial operations based on that assurance were
made good?—Undoubtedly.

534. Supposing then that a similar offer had been made to place £1,500,000 with the National
Bank, not for six months certain, but with the assurance that so far as then known it would be left for
six months, what rate in your opinion could have been obtained on that understanding ?—I think
a fixed rate could have been obtained. At present you are not getting a fixed rate ; you may get
only 1 per cent, next month, as the rate varies with the Bank of England rate. I think that a fixed
rate of at least 3^ per cent, could have been obtained.

535. Have you noticed in the loan papers an apparent understanding between Sir J. Vogel and
the Contractors for the Four Million Loan that no further loan should be placed on the English
market for a considerable time?—Yes.

536. Supposing that within the time which may so have been understood, it should be necessary
for the public works now in progress that a sum of, say, a million should bo placed at the disposal
of the Government upon an arrangement which would allow the time in question to lapse before the
debentures were actually placed on the London market, would your Bank and its directors be likely,
if they had any share in the Government account, to place at the disposal of the Government such a
sum for thepurpose I have named; seeing that the money has been authorized to be borrowed, and
that the question of placing debentureson the market would be one of time?—Of course any action
would depend on a variety of circumstances, but I have no doubt that if the Governmentaccount
were held by the Associated Banks, the views of the Government would be much more likely to be
met than if only one bank were concerned ; and with no great change in the circumstances of the
colony, there wouldbe no great difficulty in finding funds.

537. Do you consider that if the account were held by the Associated Banks such an operation
as that I have described would be capable of being readily carried into effect ?—Under ordinary
circumstances.

538 Assuming that no serious disturbance of the London money market, and no serious
depression of the New Zealand trade existed?—Yes.

539. And assuming that someserious disturbance of the money market was occurring in London
simultaneously with a tightness of moneyhere, do you think that the Associated Banks would then be
able to make an advance of, say, a million ?—They would certainly be in a better position than any
one bank.

540 But doyou think they would be in a position to make the advance ?—lt is impossible to say.
541. You do not think, then, that the Governmentwould be able immediately to have the advantage

of an operation to that extent in their hand if the Associated Banks divided the account ?—I can only
say that the Government are much more likely to be assisted by the Associated Banks than by a single
bank. In the circumstances to which you allude,asfar as I can see ahead now,l can perceive nothing
which would prevent the Associated Banks meeting the wishes of the Government. lam quite sure
the wishes of the Government would be met by an association of banks.

542. Hon. Major Atkinson.] I understood you to say you had no doubt the Government could get
better terms from the Associated Banks than theynow getfrom theBank of New Zealand?—I think so.

543 What better terms ?—Those to which I have alluded already, and as regards the transmission
of money to the colony.

544. I understood you to say that anybody could make that arrangement?—Yes.
545. What better terms could we have got in the matter of interest on our daily deposits, for

instance ?—I am sure a better arrangementcould have been made.
54-6. Can you tell us io what extent, and how?—No, I cannot.
547. Could we obtain 1 per cent, more?—l do not know, but lam sure better terms could be got.

Mr. Bridges,
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548. Sir F. B. Bell.] If timewere given to you could you tell us ?—No; the banks would have

to consider the matter.
549. Hon. Major Atkinson.] Can you point out what terms could be got ?—I do not see how you

can expect an answer to that question.
550. It has been stated that we could get better terms, as is the case in Victoria?—l have not

thought of it as a matter of detail, but any bank would object to answer that question. I only
express an opinion thatbetter terms could be obtained.

551. Then I understand there areno means by which we could ascertain what better terms could
be obtaineduntil we came to an actualarrangement with the banks?—I think not.

552. I understood you to say that you were aware, as a matter of fact, that in consequence of the
Government banking with one bank caused considerable disturbance to the mercantile interest ?—Yes.

553. Could you state to the Committee some fact ?—Just before the loan was raised, and when
there was some doubt whetherit would be raised or not, the Bank of New Zealand found it necessary
to put pressure upon the public, and a great many people were injured in consequence. They were
members of the mercantile community of the colony. This was especially the case in Christchurch;
it was a matter well known there.

554. Only of notoriety ?—No ; I could prove it. I will undertake to prove it.
555. I understood you also to say that you were aware that on one or two occasions the Bank of

New Zealandhas put pressure on the Government to the disadvantage of the colony ?—Yes.
556. Will you state the circumstances ?—I would rather not. as it came to my knowledge in

confidence when I held office as their manager.
557. The Chairman.] You say that you can prove that pressure was put upon the mercantile

community at Christchurch ?—Yes.
558. Why should the Bank of New Zealand, under these circumstances, have put pressure on the

mercantile community?—Because their advances were so large that if the loan had not been raised
they would have been in a difficult position.

559. Do youknow what the highest amount of advance was from the Bank to the Government ?
—No.

560. They say only £30,000 ?—I am not alluding to that.
561. What is the connection between the Government account and- the pressure that was put on

these individuals?—The Bank had made these heavy advances in anticipation of the loan being raised,
and when they thought that it might not be raised theyput the pressure on.

562. Hon. Major Atkinson.] They calculated getting the proceeds of the loan ?—Yes.

Mr. Bridges.

16th Sept., 1875.

Monday, 4tu Octobee, 1875.
Mr. Batkin, Secretary to the Treasury, examined.

563. The Chairman.] Have you the statement which the Committee requested you to prepare at
the last meeting?—Yes.

[The witness handed in the following statement:—The questions on which, as I understand, the Committee desire me to express an opinion are,—
1. What is the operation of the agreement with the Bank of New Zealand in respect to the

funds of the Government in London, and whether that agreement restricts the Government in the
advantageousdisposal of its surplus balances in London ?

2. Would a division of the Bank account be likely to result in the Government obtaining better
terms in the conduct of its business, and how would such a division affect the receipt and disbursement
of the Public Funds ?

3. What is the nature of the business which the Bank performs for the Government, and what
facilities doesit afford in the collection and disbursement of the public business?

In reply to the first of these questions, I have the honor to state that the original agreement with
the Bank of New Zealand referred only to the colonial balances, to the interest which they should
bear, and to the terms on which remittances were to be made to England and the colonies. The
arrangementwhereby the balances in London were first placed exclusively in the hands of theBank of
New Zealand took place in 1867, and aroseout of representations made by the Directors of the Bank
in reference to certain moneysof the Government deposited with the London Joint Stock Bank, that,
in accordance with thespirit of the arrangement subsisting between the Bank ofNew Zealand and the
colony, the Bank of New Zealand should have the benefit of the deposit of all balancesof the New
Zealand Government, not only in New Zealand, but in London also. The Government acknowledged
the justice of the request, and promised to instruct the Crown Agents accordingly, " on the under-
standing that the same terms were allowed for these balances as were granted by other banks."

The effect of this concession was, as it appears to me, to require that the New Zealand Govern-
ment should keep its current Bank account in London at theBank of New Zealand, and that all sums
which it desired to deposit at call, in the ordinary way, should be so deposited with the Bank of New
Zealand. It is my opinion that, in making this arrangement, the Government in no way debarred
itself from the right to make an investment of its surplus funds either in Exchequer bills or other
securities, oreven as afixed deposit in some other bank, should it appearto be desirable to adopt such
a course.

With regard to the probability of the Governmentbeing able to obtain better terms in theconduct
of its business by dividing the account amongst the several banks, I am of opinion that such an
arrangement would by no mS&us achieve that end. Any arrangementwhich gave the banks an equal
interest in the account would at once unite them against the Government. It might derive advantage
from a healthy competition on the part of the banks, but it certainly would derive none from anequally
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interested combination. Therate of interest in such a case would, of course, be determined amongst
the banks themselves, and it is quite possible that, in order to obtain evenfair terms, the Government
might be driven back to its present position of keeping the account with one bank. Such a combina-
tion as would inevitably result from a divisionof the account would, moreover,operate most unfavour-
ably in case the Government should at any time require an advance. If the account were divided
equally, then no one bank would advance a larger sum than another, since, by doing so, it would be
simply adding to the deposit of the other banks, and thus the amount obtained by the Government
would be measured by the resources of the weakest bank; or if the advance was obtained by way of
overdraft, in which case the objection as to the increase of the Government deposits in the other banks
would not operate, then the overdraft allowed by each would be measured by the indebtedness of the
Government as a whole, and no one bank wouldbe inclined to contribute more than its proportion of
a total sum, the limit of which would have been previously agreedupon between them. Assuming its
funds to be secure, I am of opinion that the Government will be in aposition to exact better terms by
keeping its account at one bank, than by dividing it amongst many.

As affecting the collection anddisbursement of thePublic Funds, a division of the account amongst
the several banks would, it appears to me, be attended with the utmost difficulty.

The receipts of the colony are now paid in as collected to the Public Account, and the sums so
paid in are credited in the Treasury books to the several Ways and Means Accounts. These accounts
are now classified in the four funds designated by law: —

The Consolidated Fund,
The Special Fund,
The Land Fund,
The Public Trust Fund.

The Consolidated Fund forms one Ways and Means Account. The Special Fund comprises nine
Ways and Means Accounts, the Land Fund ten, and the Trust Fund twenty-seven. The difficulty ofdividing the items of receipt appertaining to these accounts amongst several banks will be apparent
when it is remembered that there are upwards of 500 Receivers of Revenue in the colony, many of
whom receive revenues payable to each of the four funds, and that many of them already pay into
several accounts ; thus, Collectors of Customs pay into—

The Public Account,
The Provincial Account,
The Collectors' Deposit Account,
The Collectors' Imprest Account.

Eeceivers of Land Eevenue pay into—
The Public Account,
The Provincial Account,
The Eeceivers' Deposit Account.

Eeceivers of Gold Eevenue pay into—
The Provincial Account,
The Native Deposit Account,
The Receivers' Deposit Account,
The Receiver-General'sDeposit Account.

Clerks to the Bench pay to—The Public Account,
The Provincial Account,
The Corporation Account,
The Courts of Law Trust Fund Account,
The Clerks' Imprest Account.

Postmasters pay to—
The Public Account,
The Postmaster-General's Account,
The Postmasters' Deposit Account,
The Postmasters' Imprest Account.

So that it will be seen that the Receivers as a whole are already required to distribute their
collections amongst nine accounts, viz.,—

The Public Account,
The Provincial Account,
The Corporation Account,
The Courts of Law Trust Fund Account,
The Postmaster-General's Account,
The Receiver-General's Account,
The Receivers' Deposit Account,
The Natives' Deposit Account,
The Imprest Account.

It is impossible to state the objections to a division of the account in other than general terms,
without knowing in what form the division is to be made. A division to take effect at the time of
collection would be impossible for many reasons: thus, the Colonial Bank has only seven branches,
and the Bank of Australasia only eight; and even if every bank had branches at the same places, it
would of course be impossible to divide each day's receipts amongst six banks, and yet in no other way
could the deposit in each bank, and the labour of remitting, &c, be equalized; and it must be borne
in mind that if the balance deposited in each bank is to be equal, the labour imposed on the banks
must be equalized also. It would be manifestly unfair that one bank sh»uld bear the cost and trouble
of collecting the revenue, and the others share only in the deposit.

If it is proposed that all Consolidated Revenue should be deposited in one bank, all or certain
special Funds in another, Land Fund in another, and so on, then all equality in the deposits is at
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once destroyed; and as all the banks have not branches at the same places, the transmission of its
particular revenue to a particular bank would result in a large part of the revenue being always in
transitu in coin. Again, if Receivers were required so to divide their receipts, most of them would
have to divide their moneys among two or three bank accounts, and many into seven or eight, and,
unless the receipts were accurately divided, the labour of adjusting the errors would seriously retard
the business of the Treasury. Again if tho revenue was so divided as to confine a particular Ways and
Means Account to any one bank, then the Treasury would be unable, except bysome system of advance,
to pay moneys out of thataccount at any place at which that particular bank had no branch.

I can see no arrangementfor dividing the lodgments on account of revenue amongst the several
banks at the time of collection which would not result in an enormousadditionto the cost of collection,
which additional cost would again be augmented by the costattending its disbursement. The Treasury
wouldrequire to divide its daily transactions into six parts, representing the operations of the day on
each bank. It already draws cheques on sixty-two branches of the Bank of New Zealand, and if each
branch of the other banks were made a branch of receipt and issue, the number of different forms of
cheques to be used would amount to 150. The only division of the account which would inany degree
be practicable would bo a division of the balance of the current account at Wellington, but it would
of course be unreasonable to expect that the Bank of New Zealand would continue to collect and
transfer therevenue to Wellington on the same terms as at present, if it were allowed to retain only
one-fifth of it as a deposit.

I observe that it is statedby the Managers of the other Banks that the Government might make
better terms as to the interest on the credit balances of the Public Account ; but in view of the lact
that the rates now offered by the Bank for fixed deposits for three months i i only 41 per cent., I think
that 3 per cent, on the unfixed balance of the daily account is, after making allowance for the very
great labour which the Government imposes on the Bank in the collection and disbursement of the
Public Funds, a very fair rate of interest; and lam quite sure that the Managers of the other Banks
who have been examined on this subject have no adequate conceptionof the labour which the conduct
of the Government business imposes on its bankers.

Before proceeding to state in what that labour consists, I may remark that the amount of interest
credited by the Bank of New Zealand on the daily balance of the Public Account at Wellington,
during the past financial year, amounted to £8,633 3s. 7d., equal to 4-J- per cent, for the year on a sum
of £191,848. An examinationof the Bank account for the year in respect of which this interest was
creditedshows that the minimum weeklybalance during tho first quarter was £205,798 ; for the second
quarter. £429,019 ; for the third quarter, £162,997 ; and for the fourth quarter, £61,132. The present
rate of interest for fixed deposits is—

For 3 months ... ... ... ... ... ... 4| per cent.
For 6 „ 5 „
For 12 „ 5^ „

It will be seen, then, that had the banking arrangements admitted of the investment of the surplus
balances as a fixed deposit, the largest amount which it would have been possible to invest for twelve
months, at 5i- per cent., would have been £61,432, being the undisturbed minimum balauceof the year.
The largest amount which it wouldhave been possible to invest for six months, at 5 per cent., would
have been £205,798 for the first half-year, and £61,432 for the second, being the undisturbed
minimums for those periods ; and the largest sums which it could have invested for three months, at 4|
per cent., would have been £205,798 for the first quarter, £429,019 for the second quarter, £162,997
for the third quarter, and £61,432 for the fourth quarter of the year. As the average of thesefour
sums is £214,811, and as it has been shown that the interest actually credited was equal to 4J- per
cent, on a fixed deposit of £191,818, renewed quarterly throughout the year, it will be seen that,
within £23,000, the undisturbed balance of the account yielded interest at the same rate as though it
had been invested at 4J per cent, interest. It may be argued that all sums iv excess of the
undisturbed minimum of each quarter might, under the plan of investing the fixed surplus in fixed
deposits, have been made to yield interest as at present; but that argument leads back at once to the
object of the present inquiry : Can better terms be had for the conduct of the banking business of the
Government than those which arenow obtained.

I will now state what is thenature of the business performed for the Government by the Bank of
New Zealand in the collection and disbursementof the Public Revenues.

In the collection of the revenue the Bank receives at each of its branches—sixty-two in number—
the daily collections of every Receiver of Revenue whose office is in the neighbourhood, crediting
these collections to the Public Account, the Provincial Account, the Corporation or Borough.Fund
Account, the Court of Law Trust Fund Account, the Postmaster-General's Account, the Receiver-
General's Deposit Account, the Receiver's Deposit Account, or the Natives Deposit Account, as
directedin the Bauk slip. For all sums lodged the Bank signs two receipts, one in a form for trans-
mission to the Receiver-General, and the other in the office pass-book of the Receiver by whom the
lodgment is made. The forms of Bank Account transmitted to the Receiver-General number about
110,000yearly.

At the close of business on every Saturday each branch transfers tho total sum at credit of the
Public Account in its books to the credit of the Public Account at Wellington, and at the same time
forwards to the Treasury a detailedstatement of the several lodgments comprised in the amount
transferred.

Each branch transfers to Wellington daily any sum deposited for credit of the Receiver-General's
Deposit Account.

Each branch receives, or is liable to receive, deposits made by Receivers of Revenue, to be kept in
separate accounts in the name of, and to be operated on by, the depositing officer. The Bank gives
duplicatereceipts for all such deposits, and furnishes a certificate monthly of the balances at credit of
each such account. The Receivers making such deposits are—Collectors of Customs, District Regis-
trars of Land, Receivers of Gold Revenue, Receivers of Land Revenue, Judicial Officers, Postmasters.
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Mr. Batkin. The Wellington branch of the Bank receives, by registered letters, all remittances made by

Receivers at places where there is no branch of the Bank, and furnishes two receipts for each such
remittance, one being sent to the Receiver-General, and the duplicate to the remitting officer. There
are aboutsixty officers so placed.

The Wellington office supplies daily, pass-books of thePublic Account and the Receiver-General's
Deposit Account, made up to the close of the previous day; and it also sends in, weekly, a detailed
statement of the lodgments made by the local Receivers, and of all remittances received by post.

It also receives and forwards to the Treasury all orders on the Public Account from officers
authorized to retain fees in lieu of salary. It supplies to the Commissioners of Audit, every Monday
morning, abalanced statement of the receipts into, and withdrawals from, the Public Account during
the previous week; and it supplies, half-yearly,a detailed statement of the daily balances at credit of
the Public Account and of the Receiver-General's Deposit Account.

The Bank issues all drafts on Government account, for remittances within the colony, free of
charge. These drafts represent remittances to and from the Receiver-General's Deposit Account, the
Postmaster-General's and Chief Postmasters' Accounts, &c.; and of late years theseremittances have
largely increased in number.

In the disbursement of the Public Funds, the Bank receives daily from the Treasury one, and
sometimes two or three, schedules of sums for which the Bank is required to provide coin at its
several branches for cheques drawn thereon, as set forth in a sub-schedule for each bank, giving the
number and amount of each cheque, and the name and office of the person on whose countersignature
it is payable. Each of these cheques is practically a draft, requiring that the Bank should see before
paying it, that the number, amount, and countersignature correspond with the advice received from
the Wellington office. The number of cheques drawn in this manner on the Public Account is from
55,000 to 60,000 per annum. During the month of September last, the number drawn was 5,257. At
the close of business on Saturday, each branch of the Bank forwards to the Paymaster-General a
statement of the cheques paid by it during the week, and of the balance in its hands to cover cheques
outstanding.

Remittances by telegraph are made by the Bank, wheneverrequired, at acharge of one shilling
per cent.; and it also, when required, makes payment of sums so remitted, taking receipts from the
payee in the form prescribed in each case, and forwarding the receipts for such payments to the
Treasury.

The Bank pays all dividends on Government securities, payable at its branches in the colony, free
of charge.

The Bank isrequired to keep an account in its books with all persons receiving imprest advances;
receiving sums lodged to credit, and paying cheques drawn thereon, by the imprestees.

The number of imprest accounts opened by the Bank each year would probably be 300.
I feel bound to state that, in its conduct of the Government business, the Bank of New Zealand

fulfils the duties it has undertaken with the most satisfactory promptitude and regularity, and that,
in all its intercourse with the Treasury, it has of late years manifested the strongest desireto assist
the departmentby every means in its power.

I have perused the minutes of evidenceplaced in my hands by the Committee, but I see no points
therein which call for remark except those which are hereunder referred to :—I observe that Mr. Bridges, in his evidence (page 6), appears to state, in answer to the question
No. 121,—"At present, in London, the ordinary banking rate for the sale of drafts on the colony—
which amounts to the same thing—is sixty days' sight, at par, and on demand, li per cent, premium.
The moneywould be paid here on demandat par; and if at sixty days' sight, the Government would
obtain 11 per cent, premium. Of course they would lose the interest for the time, but that would not
be an equivalent. The 2f per cent, interest is not so good as the the lij per cent, premium for sixty
days."

There appearsto be some error here. What is, I suppose, intended to be said is, that at present
the banks in London are selling demand drafts on New Zealand at 1-J- discount, and sixty-days' drafts
at par. Mr. Bridges states that the selling price in New Zealand of drafts on London, and the selling
price in London of drafts on New Zealand, amounts to the same thing. Assuming this to be the case,
the mode of remittancesuggested by Mr. Bridges, as compared with the mode now adopted, and the
terms recently acted on, will result as follows:—-

A remittanceof £100 to New Zealand on the terms stated by Mr. Bridges would cost—
Discount at 1-j per cent, on demand draft ... ... ... £1 10 0
Interest on £100 for 2 months at, say, 3 per cent. ... ... 0 10 0

Total loss ... £2 0 0

A draft of £100 on London on the terms obtained by the Government gives—
Interest received in colony on proceeds of draft for £100, at 3 per

cent, for 4 months ... ... ... ... ... £1 0 0
Interest on £100 at credit in London till maturity of draft, say 3 per

cent, for 4 months ... ... ... ... ... 10 0

£2 0 0
Less i per cent, discount on draft ... ... ... ... 026

Total profit ... ... ... ... ... £1 17 6

Thus it will be seen that, under the plan suggested by Mr. Bridges, the Government would lose
2 per cent., instead of gaining, as it now does, If. In other words, the existing arrangements with the
Bank of New Zealand is 3f per cent, on the transaction better than that suggested by Mr. Bridges-
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I must, however,remark that the discount of 1J per cent., quoted by Mr. Bridges, appears to me at
least i per cent, too high. I know that in August last the Bank of New Zealand, London, was selling
60 days' drafts on New Zealand at par, and, taking that as a guide, I should say that demand drafts
could then havebeen obtained at 1 per cent, discount.

It may be that I have misinterpreted the answer given by Mr. Bridges, as above referred to ; but,
as I have already stated, I know that in August last the Bank of New Zealand, London, was selling
sixty days' drafts on New Zealandatpar; and lam also awarethat theBank of NewZealand has within
the last year imported gold to a very considerable amount. In the face of these facts, I can scarcely
suppose that other banks in London are giving a premium of li or even of 1 per cent, to purchasers
of drafts on New Zealand. I will, however, assume for themoment that that is the case, and, if it be
so, the premium must be given for sixty days' drafts, and not for drafts payable on demand.

The purchase of drafts in London on the terms referred to will result as follows :—
Premium on sixty days'draftfor £100, at 1| per cent. ... ... £1 10 0
Less loss of interest on London Account, at 3 per cent, interest

for two months ... ... ... ... ... £0 10 0
Do., do., on ColonialAccount for sixty days ... ... 010 0■ 10 0

Profit ... ... ... ... £0 10 0
Under the system adopted by the Treasury, the result, as previously stated, is a profit of

£1 17s. 6d., or 1-jj- per cent, better than the plan of drawing on London on the terms stated; with the
additional advantage that, while under the last-mentioned plan the sum; remitted by the English
Agent might be very much less or very much more thanwas wanted at the tine of theirarrival, theplan
now followed enables the Government to provide from time to time the exact sum required to meet its
engagements.

Mr. Palmer, in his evidence, states, in answer to question 352, that arrangements for the trans-
mission of money to the colony could be best made in England, that it might be done at par, and there
might possibly be a profit of 1 per cent, upon it. The remarks I have already made on Mr. Bridges'
evidence on that point show that the Government actually does make a profit of 1| per cent, on all
moneys it obtains by drawing at sixty days' sight for -J- per cent.

It will be observed that the answer given by Mr. Palmer to the question No. 378 entirely
confirms the opinion I have expressed in my statement—that, by keeping the account in one bank,
the Government is in a position to make better terms than by having to deal with an association of
banks ; for he states that the Government, " by confining itself to one institution, should have been
able to exactbetter terms " than f- per cent, below thebank rate for deposit of the £4,000,000 Loan.

In the evidence of Mr. Morrah, I may point out that the document from which he quotes, in
answer to the question No. 459, is not the agreement made with the Bank, but a memorandumwritten
by myself explanatory of the banking arrangement. The actual arrangement in respect to the London
account is, that the Bank should have tho benefit of the deposit of all balances of the New Zealand
Government not only in New Zealand but in London, provided " that the same terms were allowed
for those balances as were granted by other banks."

Mr. Morrah states, in his reply to questions Nos. 491 and 492, " that there is a sum of £340,000
(part of the proceeds of the £4,000,000 Loan) not accounted for in theFinancial Statement.

I have ascertained that the sum referred to is the difference between the sum of £3,167,571125. 4d.,
quoted on page 2 of that Statement, as the amount which had been paid into the Public Account up to
the 31st May, and the sum of £2,056,716 lis. Bd., referred to in page 3, as remaining in the Bank on
that date, after deducting the £660,000 repaid to the Bank of England, and £110,000 for commission
and discount. As the difference of £340,000 between these sums is a minus quantity, it can scarcely
be accounted for by concluding, as is stated in the answer to question 491, that it had been "advanced
by the Bank of New Zealand."

The misapprehension into which Mr. Morrah has fallen arises through his having brought into
immediate juxtaposition figures which are but distantly connected with each other, and drawn from
them a conclusion they were not designed to supply. Each is a substantive statement, and each is
correct in itself. The sum of £2,056,716 remaining in the Bank on the 31st May was the balance of
proceeds of the loan after having provided for all expenditure to that date. The sum of £660,000
repaid to the Bank of England was the most notable item of that expenditure, and the Hon. the
Colonial Treasurer, in making his Financial Statement, considered it, no doubt, as worthy of special
notice.

Wednesday, 6th Octobee, 1875.
Mr. Bridges, Director and Acting General Manager of theNational Bank of New Zealand,re-examined.

564. The Chairman.] On a former occasion the Colonial Treasurer put the following question to
you:—" I understood you also to say that you were aware that on one or two occasions the Bank of
New Zealand has put pressure on the Government to the disadvantage of the colony?" and your
answer was, " Yes " '1 hen came this question, " Will you state the circumstances ? " and your answer
was, " I would rather not, as it came to my knowledge in confidence when I held office as their
manager." These answerswere considered to be very important by the Committee,and the Committee
thought they should take steps to obtain leave for you to make a more distinct statement on the
subject; and, at the request of the Committee, I wrote to Mr. Murdoch, the Inspector of the Bank,
and received the following reply from him :—" Bank of New Zealand,28th September, 1875.—Sir,—I have the honor to acknowledge receipt of your letter, dated 23rd instant, calling my attention to
certain questions put to Mr. Bridges by a member of the Public Accounts Committee, together with
the answers thereto, and requesting that the ' Bank will permit Mr. Bridges to give the fullest and
most detailed information upon the particular point referred to that the Committee can desire.' My
directors quite concur in the opinion you express, that general statements,such as appear to have
been madeby Mr. Bridges, are prejudicial to the interests of the Public Service, and not oniy relieve
Mr. Bridges from any secrecy on the subject, but desire me to express a hope that you will compel
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Mr. Bridges. him to make the fullest disclosure.—I have, &c, D. L. Mubdoch, Inspector.—Reader Wood, Esq.,
Chairman Public Accounts Committee, Wellington."—That, therefore, gives you full permission to state
distinctly what you really referred to in this matter. Perhaps you would have no objection to do
so?—No; but previously I should like to ask you a question. There is an axiom in law that the
greatest truth may be the greatest libel. Am I open to any action at law on the part of the Bank ?

The Chairman.] No.
565. Witness.] My answers will be exceedingly restricted and limited unless I understand that

I am free from any action.
[Mr. Bridges was here requested to withdraw whilst the Committee deliberated. After a short

interval he wasrecalled.]
566. The Chairman.] We have just been looking at the Act on this question to see what powers

we have and what we can do, and we find that we have the power to protect a witness if a suit is insti-
tuted against him, but we have no power to give any indemnity beforehand. The view of the
Committee, as I understand it, upon this question is this: That we think we ought to get all the
information from you on this subject that you can give, and if, after having given that evidence, a suit
is instituted, and the Committee are of opinion that theevidence is such as to render it proper on their
part to give that indemnity, there will not be the slightest difficulty about giving it.—That is quite
satisfactory.

[Witness was then sworn in the usual manner.]
567. You are now relieved from secrecy by the Bank. Will you state the circumstances?—The

first case goes as far back as the time of the Weld Ministry, when they were on the point of leaving
office. 1 forget whether there was a vote of want of confidence proposed or not,but perhaps Mr.
Stafford knows. The Government had to make aremittance toLondon, to meet the intereston the loans,
of I think, between £60,000 or £70,000. Five of the directors of the Bank of New Zealand were here
at the time—being membersof the House of Representatives—sitting as a Board of the Bank. This
application was made by Mr. Fitzherbert, the Treasurer, for an advance by the Bank. I, as usual,
saw Mr. Fitzherbert for the purpose of hearing the proposal he had to make, and ou reporting it to
the directors as they sat in the Board-room, they declined Mr. Fitzherbert's proposition. I was to see
Mr. Fitzherbert again,but I was not to agree to any proposition of his. Mr. Russell said to me that
they would not make the advance to the Weld Ministry at all. On my way to Mr. Fitzherbert, I was
met by several members of the House, who made the remark to me, " Oh, the Bank won't make the
advance, and let the honor of the country be kept, to the W^eld Ministry, but will to Mr. Stafford," or
words to that effect. I saw Mr. Fitzherbert, and he modified theproposition to such an extent that I
thought it ought to be accepted by the Bank. I told him thatI must consider it, in accordance with
the instructions I had received from my Board. Mr. Fitzherbert declined that, and said, " No, that
means referring it to your Board, who are our political enemies." All the five directors were voting
against the Weld Ministry. The five directors were, Thomas Russell, James Williamson, William
Buckland, Thomas Henderson, and, I think, James O'Neill. I think the fifth was James O'Neill, but
lam not certain, nor am I quite certain as to Mr. Buckland. lamquite certain as to the other three,
and I know therewere five directors. I wras proceeding to say thatMr. Fitzherbert saidImust give him
a decided answer, and that I must sayyea or nay to theproposition. He sentfor his colleagues,and all
the gentlemen except Mr. Weld were there; and then the-proposition was made, to me again for an
answer,Yes or No. Bearing in mind what I hadheard as to theBank being used forpolitical purposes
(of which I was ashamed, I must confess), I agreed to Mr. Fitzherbert's proposition. That is a case
of evident pressure on the part of theBank.

568. You agreed to Mr. Fitzherbert's proposition?—Yes.
569. In opposition to the instructions ofyour directors?—Yes.
570. Hon. E. W. Stafford] Did the directors confirm or object to the arrangement?—They con-

firmed it, but iv a way thatevidently showed they were displeased.
571. Accompaniedby a censure of your conduct?—No.
572. Then, in fact, you do not seem to have done anything that they very much disapproved of,

after all?—I think circumstances showed that they did disapprove of it.
573. How ; they had previously told you to consult them before giving a final reply, and you gave

a final reply without consulting them?—Yes, I did.
571. A id they did not censure you for doing so ?—No.
575. Hon. Major Atkinson.] Then the fact is that the Bank did not put pressure on the Govern-

ment?—Yes; the Ministry had resigned at this moment, when the advance was made.
576. I understand thefact to be that the directors ordered the Bank to put pressure on, and the

local managertook upon himself to set aside the orders of the directors, so that the Bank did not
practically put pressure on. The Government knew nothing about the pressure?—lt was stated to
members that the advance would not be made to the Weld Ministry, but that it would to the Stafford
Ministry.

577. Hon. E. W. Stafford.] Was that statement made to the Government or to you?—Tome.
578. Did you inform the Government that that statement had been made?—No.
579. Then where was the pressure?—Because the Bank did not accept it at first.
580. Then the Government at this time were unaware of this pressure ?—No ; it must have been

perfectly evident to them, although not stated in words.
581. Hon. Major Atkinson.] You say that the Government were never told of it ?—Not by me.
552. Hon. E. W. Stafford.] You have said that there were two propositions ; one made by Mr.

Fitzherbert, which was submitted to the Board, and refused by the Bank ?—I think theproposal was
made by the Bank, andrefused by Mr. Fitzherbert.

583. Then the proposal Mr. Fitzherbert made subsequently was accepted by you on the part of
the Bank, and allowedby the Bank, aud you were not censured for making it ?—Yes, it was accepted
by me, and I was not censured.

584. And the Government were not informed?—Not by me.
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585. Sir F. B. Bell.] In what way do you hold that theBank had put pressure on the Govern-

ment to the damage of the colony, in that first instance ?—By the statement that the advance would
not be madeto one Ministry, but that it wouldto another. I believe that influenced theresult.

586. But if thatstatement was not made to the Government, how could thepressure be put upon
the Government?—lt was known that this paymenthad to bemade by the mail leaving on a certain day
—on the very day on which they applied for the advance. The mail left on theevening of the day on
which it was grantedto them, I think.

587. Then was the mail, by which the remittance had to be made, allowed to go without the
remittance ?—No ; it was only just in time. The mail closed that night. If I remember rightly, it
was the Panama mail.

588. Mr. J. Shephard.] I understand you to meanthat this statement by theBank, as to the course
they would adopt as between the Weld and Stafford Ministries, influenced votes in the House of
Representatives ?—1 do think so.

589. Hon. E. W. Stafford.] Influenced the votes in the House of Representatives to do what ?—
To vote against the Weld Ministry.

590. This was in the Session of 1865, I think ?—I do not remember.
591. As a matter of fact, are you or are you not aware that the whole of the Auckland members

were, all through that Session, voting against the Weld Government, on account of the removal of the
seat of Government ?—I am not aware.

592. Although many of them were not connected with the Bank at all ?—That I do notknow.
593. Sir F. D. Bell.] Do you mean the Committeeto understand that, if it had not been for your

interposition, the directors of the Bank of New Zealand, who were then members of the House of
Representatives, would have refused to make the advance, and would have prevented the remittance
being made by that mail?—I believe it.

594. Hon. Major Atkinson.] Supposing the Treasurer had said to you at this meeting, " If this
money is not forthcoming, we will remove our account to-morrow to the Union Bank of Australasia,"
would they have got the moneyfrom your Bank?—I do not know that that would have affected me
at all.

595. But would it have affected your directors ?—Yes, perhaps.
596. Suppose you had not been so public spirited an individual as to take upon yourself the

responsibility of accepting theproposition, would there have been any other way of escape for the
Government ?—I was not actuated by public spirit, but only for the good name of the Bank.

597. Would therehave been no other wayfor the Governmentto escape in making remittances ?
If they had said, " If this money is not forthcoming we shall get it from the Union Bank," would
you have clone it ?—No ; I should have reported it to the Board.

598. Suppose you had had the option there and then to decide ?—I was simply actuated by the
good nameof the Bank.

599. Not the advantage, but simply the good name?—Yes ; I was ashamed of the Bank being
talked about as being used for political purposes.

600. The Chairman.] I understoodyou to say that, in the first instance, the Bank made a specific
proposal to the Colonial Treasurer,which the Colonial Treasurer objected to. Could you state what
that proposal was?—No ; I have no recollection of the details now. I made many of these arrange-
ments ; I was in the habit of making them wheneverrequired.

601. Were those terms so hard that the Treasurer could not possibly accept them?—One was
reasonable, and the other was unreasonable. The proposition of Mr. Fitzherbert was reasonable, and
the Bank's proposition was unreasonable.

602. And you accepted the reasonable proposition of Mr. Fitzherbert?—Yes.
603. Sir F. D. Bell.] Then do the Committeeunderstand that the object which theBank had in

making that unreasonable proposal was to force the Ministers into resignation?—I firmly believe it.
That is my belief in the matter, and that is why I think that the Bank used pressure.

604. Hon. E. W. Stafford.] You are aware that there was an arrangement made by the Weld
Government, Mr. Fitzherbert being the Treasurer, under which the banking business was done at
the time the seat of Government was removed ?—Yes.

605. There was at that time somesuch system as this; That the Government had what was called
a Government Account at Wellington, on which they directly operated for payments, but that at the
same time the Bank held Government money at all the great receiving ports, such as Dunedin,
Auckland, Lyttelton, &c.—separate accounts. There was not one general account at that time?—
For a time thr.r system existed.

606. I mean during the whole period of the Weld Ministry ?—I do not remember whether it was
so for the whole period. I know it was only for a short time. The arrangementwas made from
month to month.

607. lam speaking of the accounts kept in the colony. The arrangementof the Weld Govern-
ment was that the Government could only operate on the Wellington account, and not on those at
Auckland andelsewhere; and upon the Wellington account, which wasfor the most part overdrawn,
interest was charged against the Government. Do youremember that?—Yes.

608. While theseother accounts in otherplaces, which wereail creditaccounts,not being operated
upon by the Government, no interest was allowed to the Government?—Yes, I recollect.

009. Do you rememberthat one of the very first things I did when I took office was to alter this
position, and determine that there should be only one account, and from that timethe Government
ceased to pay interest to the Bank in consequence of having credit balances ?—Yes.

610. Then in point of fact the Bank was really injured by my taking office?—Yes, decidedly.
611. Had the Bank had hypothecated to it in London something about £1,000,000 of bonds by

Mr. Wood, acting for the previous Government as Treasurer. Have you any knowledge of the
position the Bank was in with regard to the £3,000,000 Loan in London?—No.

612. You are not aware whether or not the Bank was the agent of the Government for putting
that loan on the market?—No; my belief is that the Bank had nothing to do with it.

6—l 2b.
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613. They didnot hold any bonds at all then?—No ; my impression is they didnot.
614. At no time did they holds bonds of the £3,000,000 Loan ?—Not thatI am aware of.
615. Sir F. D. Bell.] I want toknow whether the statement that you were justtelling us was made

by those five directors, to the effect that the Bank would not give accommodationto the Weld Govern-
ment, but would give accommodation to the possible Stafford Government—whether that statementwas
made by the directors with instructions to you to communicate it in any way to the Government?—No.

616. And doyou know whether any of these five directors did themselves communicateit to the
Government?—I do not.

617. Then for all you can tell the Committee,Mr. Fitzherbert,as the Treasurer, was quiteunaware
of the viewwhich the directors were taking ?—I do not think so, from his remark to me. When I told
him I would consider his proposition, he said, " Oh no, that means referring it to your directors, our
political enemies, and I won't have that," or words to that effect.

618. The Chairman.] Are there any other circumstances?—Yes, there is thepurchase of thePort
Chalmers Railway by the Vogel Government. I think it was in Mr. Vogel's Premiership. I think that
purchase would not have been made at the price it was made, but through pressure put by the Bank
on the Government, theBank being largely interested in it. The railway would, perhaps, not have
been made but for theBank.

619. Hon. E. W. Stafford.] Therailway was a private undertaking, was it not ?—Yes ; the money,
or a large portion of it,being advanced by the Bank. I heard Mr. Bathgate, who was a member of
the Ministry at the time, say he would not consent to such an exorbitant price being given for the
railway or words to that effect; and it was generallyconsidered in theBank that it was one of the most
profitable operations the Bank had had.

620. You heard Mr. Bathgate make that statement. Did that statement affectthe ultimate price ?
—I do not know.

621. You have made a distinct statement that you heard Mr. Bathgate say he would not consent
to a certain price as being exorbitant. Was that price, which he considered exorbitant, the price
which was given or not?—I cannot say.

622. And for all youknow it might have been another price than that given?—Yes.
623. And Mr. Bathgate might also have withdrawn his opposition ?—Yes, he must have done so.

If I remember rightly, the first price was obtained. Ido not think there was any alteration. I think
the price first named was the only one. He said he would not consent to the price demanded.

624. But you do not know whether that was the price given or not?—No, but Ibelieve it was.
625. Then that virtually would show that Mr. Bathgate had consented after all ?—To pressure.
626. From whom ; his colleagues or the Bank?—That is impossible for me to say.
627. Hon. Major Atkinson.] How do you know there was pressure then ?—I only infer it; I

suppose he gave way on account of the pressure.
628. Sir F. D. Bell.] How do you show that the question of price that was given by the Govern-

ment for the Port Chalmers Railway depended upon somepressure that was brought upon the Govern-
ment by the Bank ?—The Bank being largely interested, the negotiation was managed by the Bank ;
and the Bank held the debentures for the railway.

629. Are we to understand you to mean that the Bank endeavoured to get theutmost price for
the benefit of the customers whose operations it had been conducting?—For their own benefit chiefly.

630. Would you consider that an endeavour by the Bank to get the best price they could for the
completion of a transaction was anything in the shape of political pressure upon the Government of
the day ?—That is my opinion certainly.

631. Then if the Bankwere engaged inany transaction with its customers abouta private enterprise,
you would always think, if the Bank was doing the best for itself and its customers, that it would be
putting pressure upon the Government?—That is a different matter altogether.

632. Hon. E. W. Stafford.] Applied to the Port Chalmers Railway, where was the pressure?—
Because the Bank had so much to do with it, and was so interested.

633. Sir F. D. Bell] How do you illustrate that this brought political pressure upon the Govern-
ment ?—The price at first was resisted by the Government.

634. Hon. E. W. Stafford.] —Where was the political pressure to make the Government suc-
cumb ?—That must be left to imagination. It is a matter of opinion.

635. Mr. Pearce.] What considerationdid the Government get for giving this high price ?—That
is a question of opinion.

636. Hon. E. W. Stafford.] You cannot tell the Committee where the pressure was brought to
bear. You have stated the fact that in your opinion the Government yielded to political pressure;
can you form any idea of how that political pressure was exercised ?—Yes.

637. What is your idea ?—I shall decline to state that.
638. You have onlymadehalf an answerto thequestion ?—Ihear one of the Ministers characterise

the demand as an exorbitantone ; I know that it is the general opinion out of doors ; I know it is the
opinion in the service of the Bank; and I afterwards find that the demand is yielded to.

639. You say you are not aware that what Mr. Bathgate said was an exorbitant sum, was the
exact sum paid ?—Yes, I think the first demand was eventually acceded to.

640. Sir F. B. Bell.] How would the Government have been damaged by the pressure of the
Bank, to which you are referring, if they had not yielded ?—By paying the difference between a
reasonable price and an exorbitantone; thecountry is damagedby the difference of price.

641. It appears to me that by your answers you would lead the Committee to believe that your
opinion is, that by some corrupt attempt the Government were induced by the Bank to give a higher
price for the line than they otherwise would have given. In what way would the Government have
been damaged if they had refused to yield to that corrupt attempt?—l should have no hesitation in
answering that question, but, as I stated at the beginning. I must be quite clear whether I am open to
any consequences on the part of the Bank or any individuals. My answer to that would extend
beyond the Bank.

Mr. Bridge*.
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Thubsday, 7th October, 1875.
Mr. Bbidges, Director and Acting General Manager of the National Bank of New Zealand,

examination on oath continued.
642. The Chairman.] When you left yesterday, you objected, I think, to give some specific infor-

mation, because your answer " would extend beyond theBank," and you wanted to be quite clear as to
the course the Committee would adopt withreference to your evidence in that respect. The Committee
have deliberated,and their opinion is that all the protection they havi the power to give you will be
given.—l understand. Ido not think that is sufficient to protect me, and, therefore, I have no further
evidence to offer. Perhaps you will allow me to withdraw the last answerI gave yesterday.

643. Sir F. B. Bell.] I cannot consent to that.
644. Witness] In answer to the question put to me yesterday, I meant that pressure was used

on the part of the Bank, but not political pressure. Pressure was used to obtain a higher price than
the property was worth, the Bank being interested.

645. Sir F. D. Bell.] Are we to understand that upon taking away the expression "political pres-
sure," you are willing to give any further explanation of what you mean by the word "pressure"
without the addition " political;" or are we to understand that you have no further evidence to
offer?—I have nofurther evidence to offer.

646. Do you not see that your evidence, so far, would lead to the inference that very improper
transactions had taken place?—Yes; I regret making that answer; but, in justice to myself, I say
clearly that the statements I may make here may subject me to an action for libel on the part of the
Bank. In a Court of justice, where the production of papers andbooks could be insisted on, it would
be different; but as it is, I should put myself in a false position by making any such statement before
this Committee. I had no intention of making that answer, and I ask permission to withdraw it.

647. Do you not think that you should either be prepared to say there is no foundation for your
statements, or to carry those statements to their conclusion ?—All I can do is to ask you to letme with-
draw that answer. If that question were put to me now it would be answered differently.

Mr. Bridges,

7th Oct., 1875.

Fblday, Bth Octobeb, 1875.
Mr. Bbidges, Director and Acting General Manager of the National Bank of New Zealand, examined.

648. The Chairman.] The Committee desire me to tell you that they consider your answers to the
questions that havebeen put to you of a very important nature, as they involve practically the character
of some ofourpublic men. The Committee do not think the answers ought to rest where they are,
and they consider it their duty to press the matter further, and to endeavour to obtainfrom you more
precise answers than you have yet given to those questions. Whilst the Committee are desirous of
giving you every protection that lies in their power, they must leave it to you to determine as to what
the nature and the character of that protection is, that is to say, whether it is sufficient to cover you
as completely as you wish to be covered under the circumstances of the case ?—As far as I am aware,
no. 1 have looked at the Act, and it appears to me quite unreasonableto expect that I should make
any statement that would render me liable to a lawsuit.

649. At the same timethe Committeeare ofopinion that these answerscannotremain where they
are, and that you must be more explicit. Would you state to the Committee, under the circumstances,
what the nature of the pressure is to which you alluded with regard to the purchase of the Port
Chalmers Railway?—With all respect to the Committee, I must decline to answer any questions that
I think would render me liable to a lawsuit.

650. Then the Committee are to understand that you decline to answer that question?—Yes.
651. Or any other question in connection with it?—Any other question that I consider would

render me liable to a lawsuit.
652. That is to say, any other question that would elucidate more clearly the answers you have

given ?—I asked yesterday that I might be allowed to modify my last answer of the previous day. It
did not clearly express my meaning.

653. After reading the answer referred to: In what way would your answer extend beyond
the Bank ?—I can only say I should like either to withdraw that answer or modify it.

654. Do you mean by saying that, that you did not intend to say that your answer would extend
beyond the Bank ?—I did not intend to say that. If the question were put to me nowI should answer
it differently.

655. Are the Committee to understand, then, that the answer is a hasty one, and doesnot contain
that which is in itselfcorrect ?—The construction of the sentence is such that I cannot say it is not
correct, but I can say it is a hasty answer, which would be different if the question were put to me
now.

656. Hon. E. W. Stafford.] Is it substantially correct?—That is a question which I must decline
to answer. It was a hasty answer, and an answer that Iregret having made.

657. Hon. W. Fitzherbert.] Is it a hasty answer in regard to your own position, or is it hasty in
regard to the truth?—That depends upon what construction is put upon the answer.

658. Do you ask to withdraw the answer upon the plea that upon reflection you find that you
statedbeyond what arefacts, or upon the plea that you were hasty iv your answer?—It is altogether
hasty.

659. Sir F. D. Bell.] Do you mean to say that your answer is untrue, or that you have made a
mistake, and withdraw it?—l am quite prepared to admit that, as a matter of opinion, it is incorrect
as to extending beyond the Bank.

660. But, as matter of fact, was there a transaction of any corrupt kind between theBank and
the members of the Governmentof the day ?—Not within my positive knowledge.

Mr. Bridget.
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Mr. Bridges. 661. Then the statementyou made of this is not a true statement of the facts ?—As a matter of

opinion it is.
662. But you are giving evidence about what you told us werefacts?—lt is a question ofopinion.

If I answer that question I am subjected to a flat denial on the part of the Bank, and I should appear
to thepublic as a libeller.

663. Hon. W. Fitzherbert.] But ifit is founded on fact, would not the books of the Bank show it,
as you stated yesterday ?—I do not know it was a fact; it was simply a strong opinion of my own.

664. Sir F. D. Bell.] Then what didyouintendwhen you saidin evidenceyesterday that it wouldbe
differentin a Court of justice, where the Bank books and papers could be produced ; what was your
meaning in referring to them?—That would be the only way in which it could be ascertained whether
it was a fact or not. I understood the question as one of opinion. I stated that in my opinion
pressure was put by theBank upon the Government to geta larger price.

665. The Chairman.] Do you mean the Committee to understandthat you cannot substantiate it
as a matter of fact ?—I do not know.

666. Sir F. Z>. Bell.] But do you believe that you can or that you cannot?—l think I must again,
with all due respect, unless I am fully indemnified, refuse to answer.

667. Hon. W. Fitzherbert.] Is it your opinion that such an allegation is capable of substantiation,
if full reference to books is obtained ?—I would rather not answer any further questions unless I have
an indemnity.

668. Sir F B, Bell.] Then the Committee are to understand definitely that, having given evidence
which wouldlead the Committee to believe that improper pressure had been brought by the Bank on
the Government in the last case which you mentioned, you now refuse to give the Committee the
evidence which is required to trace the truth or otherwise of the inferences which your evidencecon-
veyed ?—I object to answer any question that will render me liable to a lawsuit, without a full
indemnity. I should like it to be recorded that I have not volunteered any information, but have
simply answered questions

669. Mr. J. Shephard.] But the information about the Port Chalmers Railway was voluntary ?—
That was in answer to a question asking me to name instances.

670. Yes ; but the special fact was from your own knowledge ?—ln answer to questions.
[Witness withdrew, and Committee deliberated,and he was shortly afterwardsrecalled.]
671. The Chairman.] Would you have any objection to inform the Committee what books and

papers, and what bank officers, would be required to enable the Committee to obtain that information
from the Bank officers and books instead of from yourself?—l wouldrather not answer any questions
of that sort.

672. But by giving the Committee a clue you could do yourself no harm, and you would enable
them to ascertain the facts ?—No, I could not do that.

673. Hon. E. W. Stafford.] You expressed a belief that there were books andpapers that would
prove your statement?—That might confirm my opinion. As I have said before,it is onlyan opinion.

674. But you stated distinctly that as a Bank manageryou had in confidence obtained certain
information ; and in answer to question No. 556, you said you could state the circumstances, but
would rather not, as they came to your knowledge confidentially?—I can only repeat my last answer,
that I must decline to give any further evidence.

675. Sir F. B. Bell.] You are probably aware that the custom of Parliament, in the case ofa
witness refusing to answera question, is, that his refusal should be reported to the House, in order
that the House should take such steps as it may think proper?—I am not aware of the custom.

676. I should like to know whether you think of leaving Wellington ; because, if the Committee
should take the usual course, andreport your refusal to the House, it is necessary to know what your
intention with regard to leaving Wellington may be ?—I shall be leavingprobably next Monday. I
should have gone yesterday.

677. At any rate until Monday you have no intention of going. Can you assure the Committee
that you will not leave Wellington before Monday?—l think so. Having stated my desire to leave on
Monday, perhaps you will give me an intimation in writing (if you require me) that I am not to leave.

678. Sir F. D. Bell.] If the House should not come to any decision, the Committee will let you
know whether they discharge you. The Chairman will, meanwhile, give you a letter to the effect that
you cannot leave Wellington until you are discharged.

Bth Oct.,1875,

Wednesday, 13th Octobee, 1875.
The Hon. Mr. Wateehouse, M.L.C., examined.

679. The Chairman.] The Committee has been informed that you have certain information
with reference to the negotiation of the Four Million Loan which some members of the
Committee thought it was desirable that you should be asked to afford to them, if you had
no objection; and, as far as I am aware, that is the sole question which you are desirous
of giving evidence upon ?—I may state that I had an authorized communication from Mr.
Rothschild on the subject, and that I had the opportunity of testing the accuracy of that
statement by conversations with Sir Penrose Julyan and Dr. Featherston. In conversation, at the
Reform Club, with a member of that Club- a gentleman wellknown in political circles in England,
Mr. Clarke—I had discussed the subject of the New Zealand loans, which he felt considerable interest
in, and withoutmy sanction (in fact, I was not aware at the time that he was in any way connected
with Rothschild) that conversation was related to Mr. Rothschild. Mr. Rothschild informed myfriend
that he was acquainted with me—a circumstance which I thought he had probably forgotten by that
time—and as he said there was considerable misapprehension abroad as to the negotiation of that loan,
he desired to place him in full possession of the circumstances connected with it, and authorized him
torepeat the conversationto me. I need not go into the details of the conversation, other than that he

Bon. Mr. Water-
house.
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stated that the loan had been negotiatedon what was said to be a promise thatno further loan should J
be placed on themarket for a period of probably three but of at least two years. I tookexception to
the term " promise," and my friend said those were not the exact words used by Mr. Rothschild. The
exact words were, " the strongest assurance that no fresh loan should be brought out for aperiod of
at least two years." He said that Mr. Rothschild regarded that statementas being of the nature of a
promise. I was somewhat astonished at this circumstance, because I was sufficiently acquainted with
the finances of the colony to know that an actual necessity for a fresh loan would arise before that
period of time had elapsed. On the next day I had an opportunity of seeing Sir Penrose Julyan, to
whom I repeated the conversation,and I asked him whether the statement was correct. He said that
there hadbeen no written promise made to Mr. Rothschild, but that undoubtedly an assurance (which
he would probably regard in thenature of a promise) had been made to him that no fresh loan should
be brought out. I then saw Dr. Featherston, with whom in my communication I was extremely
guarded, as I did not wish to put him in a false position, and in those communications I confined
myself to stating what I had heard, giving him the opportunity of confirming or correcting those state-
ments. However, in this case I went a little further, and asked him directly whether the statementwas
correct that something amountingto a promise had been given to Rothschild that no fresh loan should
be brought out for a period of at least two years. He stated, as Sir Penrose Julyan had done, that no
written promise had been given to Mr. Rothschild, but that an assurance had been held out that no
fresh loan should be brought fprward for at least two years. To complete the statement, I may add
that the matter created in my mind a considerable amount of disquietude, for I felt satisfied it would
involve the credit of the colony to an unpleasant extent, and perhaps complicate future attempts to
raise a loan. In looking into thematter, it occurred to me that there hac probablybeen a misappre-
hension, and that what Sir Julius Vogel wishedto convey to Mr. RothschiLl was, that nofresh loan to
be authorized by Parliament would be brought into the market within that time.

680. You mean no new loan ?—Yes. I stated this to Mr. Clarke, telling him that, doubtless,
there hadbeen that reservation, and that Sir Julius Vogel did not intend to preclude the Government
from borrowing on the loans already authorized to be raised. That was communicated to
Mr. Rothschild ; and shortly afterwards Mr. Clarke informed me that Sir Julius Vogel had told Mr.
Rothschild that he had exhausted his powers of borrowing. I was somewhat taken aback by this
statement, and I said it was something I could scarcely credit, and that Mr. Rothschild need only refer
to Sir JuliusVogel's Financial Statementof the previous year, and he wouldsee it distinctly stated there
hat Sir Julius Vogel had an unexpended power of borrowing to the extent of two millions. I added that
I was aware that he had been attempting to raise a loan in the Australian colonies, and that a portion
of that loan had probably been raised, and that the amount had thereby been reduced. This conversa-
tion and this reference to the Financial Statement of 1874 were repeated to Mr. Rothschild, and I
received from Mr. Clarke anoteof a private character, the first paragraph of which I will read :—" The
unexhausted powers are, I understand, limited to those of the guaranteed loan, and some £300,000
or £400,000 unplaced balances of former loans." I saw Mr. Clarke on this subject, and he repeated
to me what he said in the note. With feelings of dismay for the future, I saw the Treasurer's
Financial Statement here, in which my original statement of the two millions still in existence was
thoroughly confirmed. I mayfurther state that Mr. Clarke told me (within a fortnight of my leaving
England) that Sir JuliusVogel still assured Mr. Rothschild that there wouldbe no necessity for bringing
out a fresh loan until the end of 1877, adding that he had telegraphed to the colony to draw in the
expenditure, and that he calculated that the expenditure would not exceed more than £150,000
a month.

681. The difference, according to the statement conveyed in that private note, would be some-
where between £500,000 and £600,000?—Between £800,000 and £900,000.

682. Was the final conclusion left in your mind that Mr. Vogel's assurance referred to the
balances of the loans already authorized, or that there shouldbe no fresh loan?—The words, as far as
I canremember, were, " Sir JuliusVogel still assures Mr. Rothschild that therewillbe no necessity for a
fresh loan until the end of 1877."

683. But Mr. Rothschild became aware, by the communication to which you have referred, that
there were still unraised balances of existing loans ?—Yes.

684. And what was the final conclusion in your mind after you knew that he was aware of those
unexpendedbalances—whatever the amount would be ?—I concluded that he believed there would be
no necessity for borrowing any fresh money in theEnglish market until the end of 1877.

685. Not even the unexpendedbalances ? —No.
686. Hon. W. Fitzherbert.] Are you aware whether there was a final disclosure made to the

Contractors for the Four Million Loan, before closing their contract, to the effect that the Govern-
ment of New Zealand held authority at that date to negotiate and issue nearly two millions of
debentures over and above the four millions then under offer?—I can state distinctly that, so far as
Mr. Rothschild was concerned, he appears to have been ignorant of that circumstance, although it
came to his knowledge through this communication to myself.

687. Was he made acquainted with it before closing the contract ?—He could not have been.
The contract was closed before I arrived in England. Iarrived in England on the sth April, and the
contract was entered into in March.

688. Hon. Major Atkinson.] But you expressed your astonishment that he did not know it, as it
hadbeen publicly statedby Sir Julius Vogel lastyear?—I did not expressastonishment at his notknowing
it, but at the statement made. When I was told that Sir Julius Vogelhad denied the existence of this,
I referred Mr. Rothschild directly to Sir Julius Vogel's own Financial Statement.

689. And then. I understand, an explanation took place, by which it appeared that between
£1,100,000 and £1,200.000, including debentures, was all that could come into the market?—Yes.

690. Sir F. D. Bell] Didyou haveanyconversationwith anyone else onthe subjectinEngland, which
has led you to understand that that was the impression generally prevailing ?—I only saw Mr. West-
garth and Mr. Donald Larnach, the latter of whom may be known to the Committee as the Managing
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"- Director of the Bank of New South Wales. I had conversations with both of those gentlemen, and

they laboured under the impression (I do not know how they had arrived at it) that no fresh loan
would be required for two years; and, indeed, they went so far as to say that if a fresh loan were

' brought out within two years it would be an utter and absolute failure. Upon that point I may say
thatI was informedby SirPenrose Julyan thatMr. Rothschild himself had assuredSir JuliusVogel,atthe
conclusion of the negotiations, that if a fresh loan were brought out within two years the credit of
the colony would be " damned." This expression I can distinctly remember as having been used by
Sir Penrose Julyan.

691. Hon. W. Fitzherbert.] What did those gentlemen understand the meaning of the term
"fresh loan " to be?—A fresh loan brought out in the English market.

692. Debentures floated, whether authority was given subsequent to that date or not. Then I
understand that "fresh loans" meant any debentures floated in the market beyond those already
quoted?—Yes, I understand so.

693. Sir F. D. Bell] Is the Committee to understand that your own impression, from the
conversations to which you have been referring, was that those persons who had been invited to
subscribe to that loan under Rothschild's contract would have been led to believe that no further loan
would be placed on the market within that time?—I can say nothing with regard to those parties.
When Rothschild brings forward a loan, parties take it up in the hope or belief that it will be a
profitable investment, because it is brought forward by Messrs. Rothschild. The loan was still in the
hands of the dealers, and I was informed in two different quarters that, as regards Messrs. Rothschild,
they had sent over to Paris £250,000 of the two millions of the loan, which they reserved in their
own hands for sale there, but that they were entirely unsuccessful in negotiating the bonds there.

694. Hon. W. Fitzherbert.] Is it your opinion that supposing a holder orpurchaser of any portion
of these four million bonds contracted for by Rothschild were to have it brought to his knowledge
that additional debentures—other than those issued—were put on the market, he would have any
right to complain ?—The statement has not been made to the public at all. It was made to Mr.
Rothschild, and he would have only aright to complain so far as he was influenced by a repetition of
the statement by Mr. Rothschild.

695. I want to know whether, in your opinion, brokers when they sell to customers are not in the
habit of stating reasons in favour of the purchase of their bonds, and whether they are likely to be
kept in the dark as to any promise given by the agent in England, or any fact which would make them
more negotiable ?—Undoubtedly.

696. Sir F. D. Bell] Are we to understand, then, that your own impression is that Mr. Rothschild
wouldconsider that something like a breach of honorable understanding would occur if the Govern-
ment were now to carry out the course which the Treasurer has announced in the House of Repre-
sentatives, that theremaining £1,200,000 unguaranteedwould be placed in the market on the first
favourable opportunity ?—I am quite sure of it. I may state that I have, with the parties to whom I
have referred, Messrs. Westgarth and Donald Larnach, discussed what the effect would be of bringing
forward a fresh loan in theface of the distinct understanding entered into, and we were of opinion
that the effect would be that we should have Rothschild's influence brought distinctly to bear
adversely upon thecolony, and that of itself would be sufficient to damage most seriously thecredit of
the colony.

697. Are we to understand, then, that your own impression of the meaning of that phrase which
you repeated as having been used by Mr. Rothschild, that the credit of thecolony would be damned,
is, that that would be the feeling that would be entertained by those persons to whom you have been
referring if this transaction were to be made ?—Undoubtedly. Mr. Westgarth is intimately associ-
ated with colonial loans, and he went so far as to say that if we brought out a loan in less than
two years, he believed there would not be a single tender for it. I then said it would be simply a
question of price, and he Baid it would, and that if bonds reached a speculative price, buyers would of
course be found.

698. The Chairman.] Then is the Committee to understand that Messrs. Westgarth and
Mr. Larnach were aware of this understanding, or assuranceas it has been termed, given by Sir Julius
Vogel to Mr. Rothschild ?—I do not know to what extent they were aware of it. They knew of it
from me, but I cannot say to what extent they were aware of it prior to their getting some distinct
knowledge from myself.

699. You referred to it in conversation with them ?—Yes.
700. And it did not appear to you that they heard it as for the first time from you?—No ; there

was nothing to lead me to believe that they had heard it for thefirst time; but at the same time I think
that they did not get the reliable informationpreviously, but that they were only aware of the general
feeling which existed.

701. Hon. W. Fitzherbert.] In your conversation with these two gentlemen, was an adverse
opinion expressed by them respecting New Zealand loans if they were put out within two years, based
upon the breach of promise or supposed honorable engagement, or from the quantity there were in
the market ?—I think the two together. They said it would be aconsiderable time before the market
could absorb this large sum of four millions, and that a great deal of dissatisfaction had been created
by this loanbeing brought in so speedily after the former loan of a million and a half; and theyfurther
stated that the holders of the former loan had in many cases not been able to place their debentures,
and were indignant at the action of the Government. I may state that, in the first conversation to
which I have referred—l mean that with Mr. Clarke—when I saw that there was a feeling on
Mr. Rothschild's mind that something in the nature of a promise had been made, I stated distinctly
that it would be well that Mr. Rothschild should understand that no person was authorized to tie the
hands of the Legislature or to control their action, and that it would be absolutely necessary for the
colony to borrow to meet its requirements; and that, so far as the Government were concerned, the
colony and the Legislature could not be bound by any unauthorized statement which would have the
effect of preventing their going into the market.
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home.702. Mr. Pearce.] Are we to understand that Messrs. Rothschild had not had possession of the-Financial Statement of 1874at the time that they negotiated this loan ?—lt was neverreferred to at

all until I referred to it myself.
703. Is it conceivable that they did not consider it worth while to lookat the Financial Statement

of the colony?—I think you will find, as a matter of fact, that persons going into these transactions
are influenced by the opinion they entertain as to the readiness writh which they could get rid of their
bonds. They go in simply with the view ofrealizing a profit.

704. It must have been known to dealers in New Zealand bonds that a large portion of the
authorized loans had not been raised ; was it not so ?—I do not know, nor do I believe, such was the
case. The extent of knowledge on these matters in England is not great. Ido not think you will find
thatpersons in England are in the habit of reading through our Financial Statements.

705. Sir F. B. Bell] Speaking generally, wouldyou suppose that any one, even if he hadread the
Financial Statement, would be influenced by that in any way compared to the way in which he would
be influencedby a statement from the Colonial Treasurerhimselfin England ?—Undoubtedly not.
do not think it is the practice of persons in England to read the Financial Statement of New7 Zealand.

706. Hon. Major Atkinson.] Not among business men who are dealing in these matters ?—No;
how utterly impossible it would be in Mr. Rothschild's case that he should read theFinancial Statement.
If the bonds are in fair request, and thecredit of the colony is good, he will go in simply with the view
of making a profit. He has a general notion of the credit and resources of the colony, and on that
he acts.

707. What you mean is that if Rothschild, the contractor, is satisfied that the Governmenthave
legal authority to place bonds on the market, he does not look to the time at which they can do so?—
Certainly.

708. Then does he know nothing of the power of borrowing which the colony possesses ?—Yes,
undoubtedly. He will inform himself that any particular loan he is asked to negotiate is duly
authorized. I cannotstate as a positive fact that Mr. Rothschild, before the negotiation of theloan, was
not made aware of the existence of these unexpended borrowing powers. I only infer it from what
took place.

709. Supposing that Mr. Rothschild had been made acquainted of these particulars prior to this
conversation that took place between him and you, through Mr. Clarke, is it conceivable that the
negotiationwould be prolonged ?—The whole circumstances, I think, clearly show that he had not that
information. Of course I cannot say that as a positive fact. There was not the slight doubt in my
mind about it.

710. The Chairman.] Were you Premier at the time when the Government initiated the negotia-
tionfor the purchase of the Port Chalmers Railway ?—Yes.

711. Are you acquainted with the character of any negotiations that might have been carried on?
—I am onlyacquainted with the character of the negotiations carried on during the time that I was
Premier. The negotiations were concluded subsequent to my leaving office, and consequently lam
entirely ignorant of their nature.

712. Do you know any price that was named in connection with the negotiations up to the time
that you left office ?—I will state exactly what took place. The Ministry were authorized by the Act of
1872 to purchase the Port ChalmersRailway. Directly after the conclusion of the session, negotiations
were placed in the hands of the Hon. E. Richardson, who proceeded to Otago to see what could be done
in the matter. Our idea at the time was that we should act liberally towards the Contractors, and
should not refuse to give them a fair profit, rather than use thepowerwhich Government did possess,or
if they did not possess that they should get, to construct rival works. The Hon. E. Richardsonwent over
the works, and formed his own estimate of their value,and saw the Contractors there. The matter was
very much pressed on by Mr. Macandrew, who was very anxious that the Government should obtain
possession of these works on behalf of thePublic Works policy. On the Hon E. Richardson coming to
Wellington, the question was discussed. At the same timeMr. Murdoch came up, and had some con-
versation with Sir JuliusVogel upon the subject. We found that theami unt asked forwas much greater
than we should be justifiedin paying, but at last I proposed, and the Cabinet adopted, a suggestion
that we should limit our offer to whatever amount the provincial authorities wereprepared to sanction.
This suggestion was made by me, because at that time the provinces were responsible for the interest
on the railways, and I thought we should not assumeresponsibility of this character, which would have
the effect of entailing pecuniary responsibility upon the provinces, except with the concurrence of the
provincial authorities. We telegraphed to Dunedin, and found there was a difference of opinion
between Mr. Macandrew on the one side, and his Executive on the other. They telegraphed back to
say that £150,000 was the highest amount that they would consent to our giving on behalf of the
provinces.

713. Do you mean that a difference of opinion existed between Mr. Macandrew, the Superin-
tendent, and his own Executive, or the Colonial Executive ?—His own Executive. Mr. Macandrew
personally was desirous that we should obtain the railway at any price, while his Executive were
strongly of opinion that no more than £150,000 should be given. The question came up again. Mr.
Murdoch came to Wellington and resumed negotiations with Sir Julius Vogel, in the course of which it
appeared that we could gettherailway for £185,000, while Sir Julius Vogel arrivedat theconclusion that
we would succeed in getting it for £175,000; but I took a decided stand that we should not depart
from the principle laid down that we would not take the railway at a higher price than the provincial
authorities authorized us to give. Negotiations were, therefore, altogether suspended. A short time
after I left office I heard that the Government had acquired that railway, but up to the present time I
have not heard upon what terms, or whetherit was with the concurrence of the provincial authorities.

714. Hon. Major Atkinson.] Do you know whether the Bank of New Zealand werenegotiatingto
effect the sale?—Mr. Murdoch had threeinterviewswith Sir Julius Vogel, and pressed thematter very
much upon him ; and I know from other sources that the Hon. E. Richardson's greatdifficulty was the
hardness of dealing with Mr. Murdoch. At that timeI had noidea whatever that Mr. Murdoch had any
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interest, either personally or as representing the Bank of New Zealand, in the matter, exceptperhaps
as the holder of bonds ; but subsequently I learned, from the annual report published by the
Mercantile Loan Agency, that they had an interest in the matter, and that the profit which they had
derived from it had rendered their year's operations unusually profitable.

715. You think the owners of the railway were anxious to sell to the Government ?—I cannot
say anything of the holders down at Dunedin. Mr. Murdoch was undoubtedly anxious to sell.

716. The Chairmanf] What amount did the Loan Company hold ;do you know ?—I do not kno\vr.
The price originally asked for the railway was, I think, £200,000, but Mr. Murdoch came down to
£185,000, and then Sir Julius Vogel was under the impression that he would get it for £175,000.

717. Hon. Major Atkinson.] If the Provincial Executive had recommended £200,000 should be
given, wouldyou have acceded to that ?—ln accordance with the principle I laiddown, I should most
probably have given way to their recommendation.

13th Oct., 1875.

Thhbsday, 14th Octobeb, 1875.
Mr. Bbidges, Director, and Acting General Manager of the National Bank of New Zealand,

examined.
718. The Chairman] You are aware that the House of Representativeshave ordered this Com-

mittee to continue the inquiry in the line of examination on which you were examined before. This
being a new examination, it is necessary that you should be re-sworn.

[Mr. Bridges was thenre-sworn.]
719. Witness.] Before you proceed with my examination, I should like to say thatrecently, when

I saw the direction in which the inquiry was tending, I thought it necessary to declineto answer
questions which would render me liable to a lawsuit. Now, however, I am quite willing to answer
any questions you may put to me which are withinmy knowledge. I also wish to point out that there
are errors in the printed report of my examinationon the 6th October, and I wish to take objection to
the evidence that was given by me on that date, having been printed without being first submitted to
me. They are simple errors, and do not affect the evidence at all. I desire to be allowed to correct
my answer to question No. 618, by adding the words, "or words to that effect" to my observationthat
I had heard Mr. Bathgate say that he would not consent to the price. I also wish to be allowed to
explain my answer to question No. 624, by saying that I did not intend to imply that Mr. Bathgate
had been subjected to any personal pressure upon himself. I think the printed evidence is calculated
to mislead in that respect.

720. The Chairman.] The Committee will now proceed with the examination. Have youread the
Act which has justbeen passed, by which you are fully protected for the evidence you will give before
this Committee?—I have.

721. Now, Mr. Bridges, the Committeewillexpect you to make afull statementof the grounds on
which you gaveevidence before the Committee on the previousoccasions, to the effect thatpressure
had been brought upon the Government by the Bank in the purchase of thePort Chalmers Railway,
and they will hear any statement you may have to make in the first instance ?—The opinion was
founded on a variety of circumstances, some of which, I find, were not facts, as I stated to the House.

722. But what were the grounds on which you made the statement? You must tell us what it
was that led you to make the statement?—l say it was a floating opinion from a variety of
circumstances.

723. What were the circumstances?—lf you will ask me any particular question as to upon what
the opinion was founded, I am prepared to answer it.

724. It is for you to inform the Committee what the circumstances were?—I am advised by my
counsel that theAct passed is not full, and that if I say anything that may be construed into malice,I
am not protected,and I should not be protected in the Supreme Court. Therefore, I suggest that you
should question me. I had no positive knowledge of the fact. The opinion was founded, as I said
before, upon circumstances which I find were not correct; the chief fact being that it was not theBank
but the New Zealand Loan and MercantileAgency Company. I also received a communicationfrom
a memberof the House that I was under a mistake, and that the pressure had not been put by the
Bank, but by the Superintendent of the province.

725. Mr. J. Shephard.] Would you name thatmember ?—Mr. Luckie.
726. Hon. Major Atkinson.] You say you were informed that the pressure had been used by the

Superintendent—which Superiutendent ?—Mr. Macandrew, Superintendent of Otago.
727. The Chairman.] 1 must recall your attention to this: that you must inform the Committee

what the circumstances were that made you give the original evidence ?—I can only state a variety of
circumstances.

728. What were those circumstances ? It is my duty to tell you that the House has decided
that these circumstances must be fully disclosed; and the Legislature has given you now exactly the
same protection that you would have in a Court of law. A Court of law would compel you to give
answers to such questions, and you must give the answers here. You must tell the Committeefully
what the circumstances were that led you to make the statement?—It will be a long statement that
I must make. I shall have to call your attention to a variety of matters. The first of these is, that
there is a Company called the New ZealandLoan and Mercantile Agency Company, which is affiliated
to theBank of New Zealand, and so closely allied to it in the colony, that the Directors of the Com-
pany are also Directors of theBank ; and the Company is managed by the Manager of the Bank in
London, andby the Chief Manager of the Bank in the colony. The operations in the colony are often
of a mixed character, partly doneby theBank ana partly by the Loan Company, and, in consequence,
I have been in the habit of looking upon them as one concern. I have already stated whatI heard
Mr. Bathgate say. In January 1873, I went to England, where I was in frequent communication
with Mr. Larkworthy, who is the Manager of both the Bank and the Company, in London. I heard
him speak of the purchase of the Port Chalmers Railway; and it was he who first gave me a strong

Mr. Bridges.
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impression that pressure had been put upon the Government, by saying it had been an advantageous
operation altogether, and by expressing his desire for more such operations. I think that is all I
have to say.

729. But, Mr. Bridges, you must tell the Committee what" thecircumstances " were to which you
werereferring when you said that certain circumstances had come to your knowledge in confidence
while you wereManager of the Bank ?—I concluded, as I have said, that pressure must have been put
on the Government,or the price would not have been given, having heardthat that price was generally
consideredexcessive. I also have an impression that I have heard (though this is only hearsay) that
the previous Ministry had determinedthat they would not give more than a certain price.

730. Then the Committee are to understand that what was in your mind when you gave your
former evidence was this : that whether it was the Bank or the Mercantile Loan Agency Company
that was immediately interested, you held that the circumstances, whatever they were, were either
between those institutions or by both together?—Yes.

731. Well, what were those circumstances?—I do not quite understand you.
732. So far it appears that the two institutions are to be takentogether, insteadof the Bankalone,

as having put pressure on the Government. Now, I againask you what the circumstances were under
which pressure was put on the Government?—The circumstances by which I came to my opinion are
these : I heard Mr. Bathgate make a certain statement. I heard Mr. Larkworthy say it was a very
good operation, and he left the impression on my mind that it was a very profitable operation indeed.
I felt very little interest in the matter, and I do not remember putting any questions to Mr. Lark-
worthy respecting it. I also heard that the Ministry had given more than the previous Ministry
determined to have given. These are sufficient circumstances to prove that pressure had been put on
the Government.

733. Then, are the Committee to understand that it wasfrom this conversation that you had with
Mr. Bathgate that you were led to make imputations such as those which are contained in your
previous evidence ?—I had no intention of making imputations. If you remember, I requested to let
me withdraw or modify that answer, stating that it was a hasty one.

734. Are the Committee, then, to understand, by your present evidence, that it was not your
intention to cast any imputation upon anybody ?—Yes.

735. And are the Committee to understand that you have no other information to give on the
question of the purchase of the Port Chalmers Railway ?—I have no other information to give. On
theadvice of my counsel, I have no further information to give, but I am prepared to answer questions
as to facts within my knowledge. My counsel says the Act does not protect me.

736. Hon. Major Atkinson.] Then you have informationto give ?—I do not know that I have any
information to give.

737. The Chairman.] I will ask you again, are there any circumstances whatever, which as a
matter of fact, came to your knowledge in a confidential way, and are there any account books, or
papers, or any officers of the Bank, or otherwise, with respect to which you are able to give any
information whatever to the Committee ?—As a matter of fact I do not know.

[Witness was hererequested to withdrawwhile the Committee deliberated, and the usual hour of
adjournment having arrived,he was notrecalled, but was orderedto attendat half-past 11 o'clocknext
day.]

Mr. Bridges.

14th Oct., 1874.

Feiday, 15th Octobeb, 1875.
Mr. Beidoes, Director, and Acting General Manager of the National Bank of New Zealand:

Examination continued.
738. The Chairman.] Mr. Bridges, in your original examination you said at different times that

pressure had been exerted by the Bank upon the Government. The term " pressure" in reference to
any action takenby a bank has a well-understood meaning amongall persons acquaintedwith banking
transactions?—Yes, I suppose so ; it is generally understood.

739. In fact it means that any arrangement which may exist as to overdrafts or accommodation
generally will not be continued to the same extent at all events ?—Yes, that is the usual mercantile
acceptation of the term.

740. Then, when you said that you did not mean that political pressure had been exertedby the
Bank in the instance you mentioned, but simply that pressure had been exerted, you meant pressure
in the ordinary sense?—Pressure may be described in other ways.

741. What is the other way ?—I meant it in the ordinary way.
742. At the time the purchase of the Port Chalmers Railway was completed, the following

persons were members of the Ministry:—Sir Julius Vogel, Sir Donald McLean, Hon. E. Richardson,
Mr. Bathgate, Mr. O'Rorke, Mr. Reynolds, and Dr. Pollen. To which of those gentlemen did you
mean torefer to as upon whomthe pressure had been exerted ?—That is a matter of opinion.

743. Was it Sir Julius Vogel?—l do not know that Sir Julius Vogel had any accommodation
from the Bank at the time.

744. I am not asking you about the express amount of accommodation, but about the word
" pressure "—the influence, in fact, which you designated by the term " pressure." Do you think it
was exerted on him ?—I have said that I had no knowledge that any member of the Government had
an overdraft at that time. I was in England.

745. The word "overdraft" has not been mentioned.—Well, advanceor accommodation.
746. Did you mean Sir Julius Vogel as one of the members of the Government when you said

that pressure hadbeen exerted?—I do not think lam permitted to answer that question, because Ido
not know it as a fact that he had any accommodation or advance.

747. As a matter of opinion, was he in your mind when you used the term?—I am advised by my
counsel that I must say nothing as a matter of opinion ; it must be only as a matter of fact.

748. You have distinctly stated that you believed pressure was exercised by the Bank on tho
7—l. 2b.
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Government ?—I have requested my counsel to give me his opinion in writing, which I have here, and
which shows my course quite clearly. I will lay it before the Committee.

749. I do not think the Committeehave any right to see the advice you get from your counsel at
all. The duty of the Committee is to get from you the grounds on which you stated previously that
pressure had been exercised by the Bank on the Government.—Yes; but unless those grounds are
facts, lam prohibited by law from answering these questions. I can give no opinions, or lam liable to
be criminally prosecuted as showing malice, or what might be construed into malice.

750. Hon. Major Atkinson.] Did you refer to Sir Julius Vogel when you said that pressure had
been put upon the Government ?—I have said that my opinion was from a number of inferences. I
do not think I can answer that qnestion.

751. Do you refuse to answer?—Yes, I refuse to answer that question.
752. Mr. J. Shephard.] Was Sir Julius Vogel involved in those inferences? That is not

criminatingyourself in any way ?—Yes.
753. The Chairman] Was the Hon. E. Richardson ?—No.
754. Was Sir Donald McLean ?—No.
755. Was Mr. Bathgate ?—No.
756. Was Mr. O'Rorke—No.
757. Was Mr. Reynolds?—No.
758. Was Dr. Pollen?—No.
759. Hon. Major Atkinson,] How was Sir Julius Vogel involved in those inferences ?—From the

fact that, up to the time of my leaving Wellington for England, Sir JuliusVogel's account was nearly
always overdrawn at the Bank.

760. Then you think that any man who has an overdrawn account is subject to this influence ?—
Yes.

761. The Chairman.] You have stated more than once that your answer would extendbeyond the
Bank. To whom would it extend beyond the Bank ?—To Sir Julius Vogel.

762. Sir Julius Vogel was then a member of the Government, and the Committee rather infer
that, outside the Government and outside theBank, your answer wouldextend to some third parties ?
—No, I have been misapprehended.

763. Hon. Major Atkinson.] Have you, since your last arrival in the colony, said to any person
that you would or could make such revelations of the doingsof the Bank of New Zealand, or the
Loan and Agency Company, as would make theBank of New Zealand glad to give your Bank a share
of the Public Account, or words to that effect ?—No, I have not said words to that effect. That is
incorrect. As regards the last portion, certainly not.

764. The Chairman.] That is the portion which refers to getting a share of the Government
account ?—Yes.

765. Hon. Major Atkinson] Then you have talked about making revelations?—No, I have no
recollection of that. What I have said is to this effect: That if it was known what I know, the Bank
would lose the Government account. It was to that effect, but not as you put it.

766. To whom did you say that?—I mentioned it to several.
767. Can you name any one ?—No.
768. Then will you state what the revelations are that you meant?—I have done so.
769. The Chairman] The Committee is to understand, then, that the statements you have made

heretofore in your evidence were what you meant by the term "revelation," as used by you in private
conversation ?—Yes

770. With reference to the statement which you made, that pressure had been exercised by the
Bank of New Zealand, is it not a fact, speaking of the private customers of the Bank, that pressure has
been put, within the last twelve or eighteen months, by more than one Bank on individuals ?—Yes.

771. By the Bank which you are managing, for instance ; has it not been found necessary to put
pressure on individualsby that Bank ?—Yes, it it a matter of every-day occurrence. If an overdraft
isfound to be too large, it is required to be reduced.

772. Mr. J. Shephard] In answer to question No. 566, with reference to the transaction with the
Weld Ministry, you said, " Mr. Russell said to me that they would not make the advance to the Weld
Ministry at all." I understood that remark to have been made by Mr. Russell to yourself,not in the
presence of the Board, but in private conversation. However, there seems to be some differenceof
opinion about it; perhaps you will state how it was ?—I forget. Most likely I was alone with
Mr. Russell at the time. I have little doubt it was said to me alone.

773. Witness] I should like,before the Committee release me from attendance, to call attention
to thefallacies and misstatements contained in the memorandum of Mr. Batkin, with respect to my
evidence?

774. The Chairman] You mean with reference to the general banking arrangements?—Yes.
775. Well, when you attend again, you mayperhaps make a statement on the subject, if you wish

t<o do so.

Mr. Bridges,

15th Oct., 1875

Monday, 18th Octobee, 1875.
Mr. Bbidges, Director, and Acting General Manager of the National Bank of New Zealand :

Examination continued.
776. The Chairman.] Mr. Bridges, in your evidence on Friday, you stated that, up to the time you

left the Bank of New Zealand, Sir Julius Vogel's account was nearly always overdrawn ?—Yes.
777. The Committee desire me to ask whetheryou areaware that that account was everexception-

ally treated by the Bank ?—Yes, exceptionally treated in this way: The account was allowed to be
overdrawn in Wellington up to a certain amount—I think it was £200—and then it was transferred
to Auckland by his owncheque on the Bank of New Zealand.

Mr. Bridges.
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778. Which, in fact, wiped off the overdraft from the Wellington account ?—Yes.
779. Do you know whether that cheque which extinguished the overdraft at Wellington was

placed to the debit of his account in Auckland ?—I do not know. Not within my personal knowledge.
780. That question has been put to you at the request of the Committee generally, and the Com-

mittee also desire to know how you connect the fact of the overdraft in Sir Julius Vogel's account
with the purchase of the Port Chalmers Railway ?—The accommodation granted by the Bank was so
excessive that the Bank would have great power overhim.

781. You have stated £200 as the amount of overdraft he was allowed in Wellington?—Yes.
782. Do you call that an excessive amount of accommodation?—No, that was a frequent occur

rence. I mean the transfer of his account to Auckland.
783. Then this operation of transferring his account, when the overdraft reached £200, was an

occurrence that took place frequently ?—Yes.
784. Mr. J. Shephard] You knew nothing of the state of Sir JuliusVoxel's accountin Auckland ?

—No.
785. Nor did you at the timeyou were Manager?—No.
786. At what intervals was this overdraft cancelled in this way ?—At irregular intervals.
787. About what intervals ?—I cannot trust my memoryto make any answer to that question.

They werevery frequent.
788. Four orfive times in a year ?—I should say much more than that, but I really cannot taxmy

memory.
789. The Chairman] You stated, when you were last here, that you wished to givesome further

evidence with respect to Mr. Batkin's memorandum. Before you do that, I wish to ask you some
questions in elucidation of evidence you have given in reference to the generalbanking arrangements.
In question 495, you stated that the course pursued in Victoria of employing the Associated Banks
worked well. How would you propose to make thereceipts and payments to the different accounts in
New Zealand ? Are there any such separate accountskept in Victoria, and any such payments made
there?—l believe so. I was in Melbourne, on my way to this colony, in September, 1874,and I con-
sulted two of the Bank Managers there on the subject. I asked them whether there would be any
difficulty in the matter, and they said, " No." I asked Mr. Curtayne, the Managerof the Union Bank
of Australia, how it was done, and he said " Easily enough ; there is no difficulty in the matter."
Somethingcalledaway his attention, and I did not get particulars ; but I believe thedifficulties pointed
outby Mr. Batkin are visionary.

790. Do you know whether the Government of Victoria has any local paymasters ?—I do not.
791. Did those Bank officers whom you conferred with in Melbourne know or were they aware of

the accounts kept by the New Zealand Government when they gave you their opinion ?—No, I should
think not.

792. Sou donotknow anything about the matter yourself?—No.
793. In answer to question 522, you said that you knew the London bank rate for fixed deposits

for twelve months varies from 4to 5 per cent. What London banks were you referring to ? Were
youreferring to Colonial banks having offices in London, or English banks ?—English, Colonial, and
Indian banks.

794. Name some of those that give from 4 to 5 per cent. ?—All the Londonbanks give from 3^ to
4 per cent. The London and Westminster and Union Bank of London give from 4to 5. It is a
matter of advertisement that they give 5 per cent, for deposits for twelve months.

795. Did theNational Bank of New Zealand offer to take any part of the loan?—Not that I am
awareof.

796. Mr. Magniac, in a recent report of the National Bank of New Zealand, states that they had
a share of the loan. How did they obtain it?—By tendering, 1 suppose.

797. To your knowledge they did not make any offer to the Loan Agents to place any of the
loan ?—I am not aware that they did.

798. You never heard that it was their intention to make an offer ?—No.
799. Youstated, in answer to question 554, that you could prove that the Bank of New Zealand

put pressure on thepublic? —Yes. There are so many cases within my knowledge of persons being
pressed that could be proved. There is no doubt in the mind of any banker on the subject.

800. But the Committee wishes to have your own knowledge—not what you may think was in the
mind of any banker?—I have heard many persons mentioned, whose names Ido not remember, upon
whom pressure had been put by the Managers, who stated they must have money.

801. You have said that your own Bank found it necessary to put pressure on differerent
individuals?—That is a different matter. We have not put on pressure because we wanted money,but
because we thought the overdrafts were too large. The tenor of my evidencewas that the Bank of
New Zealand had anticipated receiving the proceeds of the loan, and had, consequently, made larger
advances than prudence justified; and when there was a doubt as to whether the loan would be raised,
they began pressing their customers.

802. But according to the returns of the different Banks, as gazetted, the Bank of New Zealand
had increased its advances in March 1875?—Up to March, yes. That includes the three months from
January to March.

803. And when was the pressure put?—About the time that news was received in the colony
from various quarters that doubts existedas to whether the loan would be floated.

804. Hon. Major Atkinson] What was the time?—My own impression is that it was about
February - no earlier than that.

805. Then pressure was put on while they were still increasing their advances ?—No, not at all.
The returns are averages.

806. The Chairman] But in the quarter ending 3lst March there was a decided increase in the
Bank of New Zealand advances. The pressure to any great extentcould not, therefore, have occurred
in tiiat quarter?—The pressure might have occurred without affecting the figures at all. It does not
follow that because a bank presses its customer it gets the money.

Mr. Bridges.
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807. But if it didnot get the money, how did it injure individuals ?—I did not say that they had
got the money, but it is a matter of notoriety that they did put pressure on.

808. You have stated that your Bank did not want funds to make advances. Had not your
Bank made advances to the extent of £345,000, over and above the paid-up capital and deposits, in the
June quarter of this year ?—No ; I think not.

809. The returns published in the Gazette show a difference of £345,000?—lt was owed to the
London branch.

810. The balances of advances over and above the paid-up capital and deposits was due to the
London branch ?—Yes.

811. Will you state what you want to say particularly with regard to Mr. Batkin's memorandum ?'
—First of all, I should like to call your attention to the fact that, on the subject of my charge of
pressure on the Weld Ministry, some of the members of the Committee appeared to think that there
could not be much pressure when they could have obtained the advance from another bank. That
impression was entirely erroneous. They could not have obtained the money in time to send by the
mail from any other bank.

812. How do you know ?—I am certain that no bank would be prepared to give drafts onLondon
for £sO,OOO at afew hours' notice. They might do so in these days, but not then. There was no
Inspector with the powers then.

813. How many hours' notice had the Bank of New Zealand ?—They knew the money would be
required.

814. How did theyknow that ?—They knew when it was due in London, and always prepared for
it. There was an understanding between the Bank and the Governmentthat the Bank was to find the
money.

815. Then, if there was that understanding, how did there come the necessity for special negotia-
tions on the subject ?—You must understand that the special arrangements were madefrom time to
time as the money was required.

816. Hon. Major Atkinson] Do you mean to state, as a matter of fact, from your own knowledge,
that such a bank as the Union Bank of Australia could not, in a case of emergency, have bought
£80,000 worth of our bills ?—I am perfectly sure that no bank would have granted such an advance
at a few hours' notice.

817. That is your opinion?—I know it as a matter of professional knowledge. It would be
considered an utter absurdity.

818. The Chairman] What other banks were doing business in Wellington at that time ?—The
Bank of New South Wales and the Union Bank.

819. Mr. Pearce] Do you meanto say that if the Hon. Mr. Fitzherbert had gone to the Union
Bank and asked for the money, the Manager would not have advanced it ?—He would have said, " It is
out of my power." He would have been dismissed immediately if he had done it. A managercannot
issue drafts unless there is money to meet them.

820. The Chairman] You think that an old-established Bank like the Union Bank of Australia,
with a very wealthy English proprietary, couM not have given drafts for £80,000?—Oh, yes, they
could have given them, but 1 mean that the Manager would not have had the power to do it.

821. Mr. Pearce] Then if you had not taken the action that you did, the Government would have
had to submit to it ?—Decidedly, unless theDirectors had given way at the last moment. The Govern-
ment could not otherwise have made the remittance. Either Mr. Palmer, the Chief Officer of the
Union Bank, or Mr. Morrah, of the Bank of Australasia,will tell you what I have told you. No
manager is intrusted with such power. It would upset the financial arrangements of the Bank in
London.

822. Mr. Curtis] With respect to therate which you say the Government could have got for the
million and a half which was lodged with the Bank of New Zealand, being part of the Four Million
loan, you stated that the Government could have got 4 per cent, at least ?—Yes, if the money was
absolutely fixed for twelve months.

823. Do you know what was the rate given for money at call by the banks in London at that
time ?—Some small amount probably.

824. Not so much as 2f per cent., the Bank of England rate being 3 per cent at that time?—At
call they would have got 2 per cent.

825. Was not this money lodged with the Bank of New Zealand at call ?—No ; I understood not.
One million and a half was lodged for at least six months, and it might be twelve months.

826. With the power of withdrawal at any time?—I did not so understand it. I think Sir Julius
Vogel stated practically that the money would be in the Bank for the period 1 have referred to.

827. Sir Julius Vogel stated that in all probability it would remain in the Bank, but there was no
undertaking that it would remain in the Bank for a single week?—But the probability was that it
would be as I have said.

828. Do you think any English bank would take money with an understanding of that kind—that
it would probably remain for twelve months on the same terms as for a fixed period ?—Not on the
same terms.

829. The full amount did not remain for twelve, nor yet for six months, as a matter of fact?—
Well, with that correspondence of Sir Julius Vogel in mind, I still maintain that the Government
would have got at least 3\ per cent.

830. Hon. Major Atkinson] Did your Bank endeavour to obtain any part of this money as a
deposit ?—I do not know.

831. Did you receive any instructions to endeavour to obtain a portion of the Government
account?—No, none. Of course the Bank desired to have aportion of the Government account. I
knew that, but I had no instructions on the subject, nor any instructions whatever as to any course to
take.

832. Do you know whether that statement,which appears in the newspapers as coming from Mr.

Mr. Bridges,
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Magniac, that the Bank were making a great effort to obtain half the Government account, is correct ?
—He says " a portion of the account," I think: and I infer that the communication with Sir Julius
Vogel may probably have led him to think so. There are other portions of his speech which will show
that that is the clear inference.

833. I thought it related to instructions to you ?—No ; nothing has been done here. My action
in this matter is entirely voluntary, without instructions or any communication from the Board.

Mr. Bridget.

18th Oct., 1875.

Tuesday, 19th Octobee, 1875.
Mr. Macandeew, M.H.R., examined.

834. The Chairman] The Committeehave been informed that you wish to make a statementin con-
nection with the purchase of the Port Chalmers Railway ?—Observing in the printed evidence taken
before the Committee, a statement by Mr. Bridges, to the effect that certain pressure had been
brought to bear on the Colonial Government by the Bank of New Zealand, whereby the former were
induced to acquire the Dunedin and Port Chalmers Railway, I desire, as one who was fully cognizant
of the whole outs andins of the transaction, to place on record my firm conviction that the statement
of Mr. Bridges had not the slightest foundation in fact. The idea of purchasing the railway was first
mooted by myself, and it was not until after much persuasion on my part, as Superintendentof Otago,
that the Government was induced to treatfor the purchase. After the Government had made up its
mind on the matter, I wasrequested to undertake the negotiation, in conjunction with the Provincial
Executive. This I declined to do, on the ground that I had sometimebeforepublicly committedmyself
to an opinion as to the prospective value of the railway, which probably I should not have done had I
anticipated the possibility of so shortly after being employed in negotiating its purchase. The Hon.
Mr. Bathgate was therefore deputed by his colleagues to treat with the Railway Company, and as they
could not come to terms, the Government were disposed to allow the matter to drop. It was only
after repeated and urgent representation from me, setting forth the absolute necessity in thepublic
interest of acquiring the line, that the Government again took the matter up, through the Hon.
E. Richardson, who visited Dunedin especially on the subject, and concluded the purchase on terms
which, in my opinion, were by no means extravagantunder the circumstances. It maybe well to add
that, under the agreementbetween the Railway Company and the General Government, it was optional
with the former whether or not they should sell for five years; that is to say, they couldnot havebeen
compelled to do so earlier,and it required almost as much persuasion on my part to induce them to
sell as it did to induce the Colonial Gqvernment to purchase. I believe it has been to the Company a
matterof regret ever since that theyparted with the line at the price they did. In my opinion, the
province is a gainer by the transaction of at least £150,000, a circumstance which amply justifiesmy
action in the matter.

Hon. Edwaed Richaedson, M.H.R., examined.
835. The Chairman] You have just heard the statement made by Mr. Macandrew. Have you

any evidenceto offer in respect to it ?—No doubt it is quite correct as far as it goes, but I have heard
(I have not had time to study the other evidence given before the Committee) that it has been stated
that pressure wasbrought to bearon Sir Julius Vogel, and on that ground, and for that reason, the
Government paid more than they ought to have paid for the Port Chalmers Railway. Now, almost
from the very day on which I joined the Government in 1872,1 was mixed up in that matter, and had
a great deal moreto do with it than Sir Julius Vogel had.

836. When was the purchase finally completed?—ln the early part of April 1873.
837. Will you state what you know of your own knowledge of the matter ?—As soon as the

session of 1872 was over, the Government had decided on purchasing the railway, in consequence of
representations made to them by Mr. Macandrew. Mr. Bathgate, who was going downto Dunedin, was
authorizedby the Cabinet, in conjunction withthe ProvincialExecutive, to endeavourto negotiatefor the
purchase of the line. A great deal of correspondence then took place, and eventually the negotiations
fell through, in consequence of Mr. Bathgate having one ideaas regards price, Mr. Macandrew another,
and the Company another—totally different. The Company insisted onreceiving £200,000 in the first
instance. Soon afterwards, in making my usual journeyround the colony, Iwent to Dunedin, and
found that the first section of the Clutha line was approaching completiou. I saw that if this line was
not immediately purchased, the Government wouldhave to reclaim landfor the second terminus, and
put up double buildings, &c. I immediately urged the Cabinet to prosecute the negotiation, and to
endeavour to complete the purchase. I gathered as much information as I could on the subject in
Dunedin respecting the value of the line, taking all attendant circumstances (the concessions, &c.)
into consideration. I had a tolerably good idea of what the line had cost the Company, and I put my
own value on the concessions they had, and then I recommended to the Cabinet not to let the
negotiation slip through if they could get the line for £175,000. A great deal of correspondence took
place amongst the Ministers between December and March. I was in Auckland the beginning
of March, and it was then suggested to me from Wellington that I should try and negotiate with
Mr. Murdoch, who was very largely interested in this concern, on behalf of the Loan Agency
Company. I could not remain to do this, and consequently I suggested that Sir Julius Vogel,
who was shortly expected back from Australia, should remain there and take the matter in
hand. Sir Julius Vogel did so, but he did not see his way clear to go as far as I considered
it right to go as regarded the price. After negotiating for some time, he offered them £170,000,
which they refused to take, and the negotiations were then broken off altogether. I immediately
telegraphed to him thathe was doing wrong, and that his actionwould put the Government to a very
much larger expense, and that he ought to reopen the negotiation, so that the thing should not pass
away. After some time he did reopen the negotiation, and he intimated to me that if I would consent
to pay £1N(),000 he thought tho affair could be managed. I did not recommend that, but stood out
for the £175,000. The Port Chalmers Wharf wasnot completedat thetime, and the Companywantedto

Mr. Macandrew,
M.H.B.

19thOct., 1875.

Hon. _\
Bichardson.
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make it a condition that,if they accepted £175,000, they should getanadditional sum for what hadbeen
spent beyond a particular date in completing the wharf. I had taken into consideration the comple-
tion of it, and advised Sir Julius Vogel not to submit to their demand. I found then that the matter
was likely to come about, and as it was only the question of a few thousand pounds difference I drew
up a series of conditions which Sir Julius Vogel submitted to Mr. Murdoch, who was in Auckland at
the time. They found that they had not the requisite technical knowledge, and, at all events, it was
settled that thematter should be placed in my hands for settlement. I went down to Dunedin with
Mr. Murdoch, and I had a carte blanche from the Cabinet to settle it. When I got there, I found that
the Company were doing all they possibly could to break off the bargain, and I knew from other
sources that it was their interest to do so. I was thoroughly aware that there was acompany prepared
to give them very considerably more than the Government were prepared to pay for the line. The
matter was concluded by me in Dunedin, and the Superintendentexpressed himself very well pleased
at the time with the arrangement thatI made. The price finallyagreed upon was £175,000—£75,000
in cash, and the Government taking the responsibility of £100,000 worth of debentures, which had
been issued in London by the Company wherewith to construct the railway. The Company had a
concession of 8 per cent, on £70,000 guaranteedfrom the Provincial Government; but the Company
elected to issue £100,000 on 5 per. cent, debentures.

838.. Sir F. B. Bell] At that time had you any information with respect to the selling price of
the debentures in London ?—No.

839. You were not aware that they were being quoted at a considerable discount ?—No.
840. Hon. Major Atkinson] In your calculations, you valued them at par ?—Yes. At the time

thepurchase was absolutely completed, we had been informed that the Loan and Mercantile Agency
Company held nearly the whole of them.

841. Sir F. B. Bell] If the debentureshad been quoted at thetime in London at alarge discount,
the effect of the arrangementwould have been to place the difference between the discount and par in
thepockets of the Loan and Agency Company?—I presume it would.

842. The Chairman] If the debentures were handed over at less than par, the Company would
virtually have had to receive more than £75,000 ?—I suppose they would.

843. It was understood that you were to take the debentures at par ?—Yes.
844. The value of the line, then, was £175,000 cash ?—Yes. Of course, that means valuing all

theconcessions as well. There were one or two extraordinary concessions granted by the Provincial
Government of Otago, such as I had never heard of before being granted to any company, and it was
owing to theseconcessions that so large a value was put upon the concern.

845. Sir. F. B. Bell] Then did it not occur to you to make it a condition that the debentures
should be assigned to the Government?—No.

See Letter from Mr. E. W. Morrah in Appendix No 14.
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APPENDICES-BANKING ARRANGEMENTS.
APPENDIX No. 1.

Produced at Meeting 24th August, 1875.
1873.

New Zealand.
Banking Aebangements of the Govkbnment.

(Presented to both Houses of the General Assembly by Command of His Excellency.)
No. 1.

Memobandt/m of the Arrangements under which the Banking Business of the New Zealand
Government is conducted by the Bank of New Zealand.

The arrangementsunder which the banking business of the New Zealand Government is conducted by
theBank of New Zealand are as follow: —

The Colonial Account.
Allmoneys lodged to credit of the Public Account at the several branches of the Bank of New

Zealand throughout the colony are transferred every Monday morning to the credit of the Public
Account at the Wellington Branch, whence they are withdrawn for expenditure as required. Interest
is credited on the average balance of the account at the rate of 4 per cent, when the balance is under
£50,000, and at 3 per cent, on the daily balance when above that amount.

The London Account.
All moneys received in London are paid into the New Zealand Public Account at the Bank of

New Zealand, whence theyare withdrawn for expenditure as required. Interest is creditedon the daily
balances of this account at the rate of 1 per cent, below the current Bank of England rate of discount
for the time being.

OVEBDEAFTS.
Interest is charged on debit balances at the rate of 6 per cent, when such balance is less than

£50,000, and 7 per cent, when above that sum; withproviso that if the discount rate of the Bank of
England shall continuefor two months in excess of 6 per cent.,thenan increase in the above rate shall
be allowedfor the whole period during which such excess is maintainedequal to the difference between
6 per cent, and the Bank ofEngland rate.

Remittances.
All remittances on Government account between the provinces of New Zealand are made at par.
All remittances between New Zealand and the Australian colonies are made by draft at fifteen

days' at par. Remittances at shorter dates at one-half the current rates charged to the public.
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All remittances to London are madeby draft at sixty days' at par. Remittances at shorter dates
at a half per cent, below the currentrate, but never below par., Genebal Pbovisions.

The Bank is to be the bankers for the Government until the arrangement be determined by six
months' previous notice. All balances belonging to the Government are to be kept at the Bank of
New Zealand.

C. T. Batkin,
Treasury, 2nd August, 1873. Secretary to the Treasury.

APPENDIX No. 2.
Produced at Meeting 24th August, 1875.

Cobbespondence relative to the negotiation of £4,000,000 Loan. (jSee Appendix to the Journals
of the House, B. 5, 1875.)

APPENDIX No. 3.
Produced at Meeting 25th August, 1875.

Repobt from the Select Committee of the Legislative Assemblyof New South Wales, on Removal
of Public Money from Bank of New South Wales, together with Proceedings of the Committee.
Minutes of Evidence, and Appendix 22nd June, 1875.

N.B.—The above document will be found in the Library of the House, or can be obtained from
the Government Printer at Sydney.

— " - - ~APPENDIX No. 4.
The following document, from Mr. D. L. Murdoch, was handed in on the 31st August, 1875:—
Question,—

The maximum aggregate amount of overdraft, whether specially made, and whether secured
or unsecured, granted by the Bank of New Zealand to the colony (in England or the colony) during
the following months, viz., October, November, and December, 1874, and January, February, and
March, 1875 :—
Answer,—1874. -)
October, ( £150,000, specially made secured by £160,000 scrip for debentures, General Purposes
November, t Loan Act, due June 1877.
December. )

1875.
January. £150,000 ditto ditto ditto.

£3,830, Postmaster, casual.
February. £200,000, scrip £210,500, General Purposes Loan Act.
March. £200,000 ditto ditto.

£270, Postmaster, casual.
In view of the interpretation put by the Committee on what is meant by an overdraft, viz. that it
includesadvances specially made against specific securities, the above figures supply the information
required by Mr. Fitzherbert.

D. L. Mubdoch.

APPENDIX No. 5.
Produced at Meeting 3rd September, 1875.

Ban of England.—Advanc: IS AMOTTNTINi to £660,1

Adv. rCES. Ren: rED. Rbn: raD. Ultimate
due

Date.
Amount.

Date. Rate. Days. Date. Rate. Days. Date. Kate. Days.

1874.
October 31 ...
November 17...
November 30...
December 14...
December 30...

4
6
6
aa

92
80
!)l
!ll
81

1875.
January 31 ...
February 15...
March 1

3
3
3i

88
8!)
M

1875.
March 5 3J 7

1875.
March 12
May 15
April 8
March 15
March 12

£
120,000
40,000
50,000
60,000
10,000January 30 ... 3 34 March 5 u 7

1875.
January 5 ...
January 14 ...
January 30 ...
February 15 ...
February 24 ...

0
4
3
3
N

25
32
88
80
29

January 30 ...
February 15...
March 5

3a
M

|4
68
7

March 5 3-i 7 March 12
May 15
March 12
May 15
March 25

40,000
150,000
50,000
40,000

100,000

Total 660,000

Treasury. 3rd.September, 1875.



L—2b. 48

APPENDIX No. 6.
Produced at Meeting Bth September, 1875.

(Memo, from Mr. Palmer.)
Union Bank of Australia,Wellington, 7th September, 1875.

When under examination this morning, I stated my belief that the agreement between the Govern-
ment of New South Wales and the Bank of New South Wales was one for a definite period, and the
correctness of my statement was questioned by a member of the Committee. I have since referred to
a paper laid before the Legislative Assembly of New South Wales, and find a copy of the agreement
appended thereto, which provides that the agreement was " to commenceon the Ist July, 1873, and to
remain in force up to the 30th June, 1876, inclusive," which fully confirms my statement.

J. Paxmeb.
The Chairman of Committee on Public Accounts.

APPENDIX No. 7.
Produced at Meeting 16th September, 1875.

Bank of Australasia,Inspector's Office Wellington,
Sib,— Bth September, 1875.

Having referred to the Government Gazette on my return to this office, I desire at once to
correct a statement made by myself when avowedly quoting from memory this morning. I then
said that the increase in the average advances of the Bank of New Zealand, was to the best of my
recollection 50 per cent, greater in the year from Ist April, 1874, to 31st March, 1875, than in the
corresponding period of the previous years. This I find is very far from being the case, and would
therefore ask the permission of the Committee to receive as my answer that " the increase was not so
great as for the preceding year." The other portion of the statement, to the accuracy of which I
pledgedmyself according to theBank returns, namely, as to the actual increase in the average advances
on the one hand, and the average deposits and circulation on the other, still holds good.

I have, &c,
E. W. Mobbah,

The Chairman of the Public Accounts Committee. Inspector.

APPENDIX No. 8.
Produced at Meeting 4th October, 1875.

Sib,— House of Representatives, Wellington, 23rd September, 1875.
I have the honor to draw your attention to certain questions put to Mr. Bridges by a member

of the Public Accounts Committee, together with the answers thereto (copies of which are enclosed).
It will, I think, be obvious to you that general statements of this kind are prejudicial to the interests
of the Public Service, and that Mr. Bridges should not be confined to secrecy, but should be permitted
to state, for the information of the Committee and of Parliament generally, the precise facts to which
he refers.

With this object, I now request that your Bank will permit Mr. Bridges to give the Committee
the fullest and most detailed information upon the particular point referred to that the Committee
can desire.

I have, &c,
The Inspector, Bank of New Zealand, Auckland. Readeb Wood.

Enclosure.
Question.—I understood you also to say that you were aware that on one or two occasions the

Bank of New Zealand has put pressure on the Government, to the disadvantage of the colony?
Answer.—Yes.
Question.—Will you state the circumstances ?
Answer.—I would rather not, as it came to myknowledge in confidence, when I held office as their

Manager.

Sic,— Bank of New Zealand, 28th September, 1875.
I have the honor to acknowledge receipt of your letter, dated 23rd instant, calling my

attention to certain questions put to Mr. Bridges by a member of the Public Accounts Committee,
together with the answers thereto, andrequesting that the " Bank willpermit Mr. Bridges to give the
fullest and most detailed information upon the particular point referred to that the Committee can
desire."

My directors quite concur in the opinion you express, that general statements,such as appearto
have been made by Mr. Bridges, are prejudicial to the interests of the Public Service, and not only
relieve Mr. Bridges from any secrecy on the subject, but desire me to express a hope that you will
compel him to make the fullest disclosure.

I have, &c,
D. L. Mubdoch,

Reader Wood, Esq., Chairman Public Accounts Committee, Inspector.
Wellington.
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APPENDIX No. 9.
Produced at Meeting Bth October, 1875.

(Memorandumreceived from Mr. Murdoch, Inspector, Bank of New Zealand.)
In New South Wales there are no paymasters, the Government adopting the same plan as in New
Zealand; but with this important difference, that one-eighth per cent, exchange is allowed on all
payments out of Sydney, which for 1874 amounted to £1,586 Is. 6d.

APPENDIX No. 10.

Produced at Meeting 13th October, 1875.
Bank of Australasia, Inspector's Office, Wellington,

Sic,— 12th October, 1875.
Having returned from Christchurch, I am prepared to attend the Committee again at any

time most convenient to them during the present month, after to-morrow.
I have, &c,

W. A. Thomas, Esq., E. W. Mobbah,
Clerk to the Committeeon Public Accounts. Inspector.

APPENDIX No. 11.
Produced at Meeting, 14th October, 1875.

The National Bank of New Zealand,Limited, Wellington,
Sib,— 13th October, 1875.

I have just received a summons to attend the Committee fo-morrow morning. If it is
intended then to proceed with myexamination, I beg to point out to you that I am without a copy of
the Act of Indemnity, which I should like to submit to my counsel before giving further evidence. >I have, &c,

The Chairman, Committee on Public Accounts. J. Bbidges.

APPENDIX No. 12.
Produced at Meeting, 18th October, 1875.

(Memorandum, with reference to Mr. Batkin's statement contained in the Minutes of Evidence,
4th October, handed to the Committee by Mr. Bridges.)

Paeagbaph 1 states agreement with Bank,of New Zealandrespecting London Account to be " on the
understanding that the same terms were allowedfor these balances as were granted by other banks.''
This understanding has not been carried out, and it now appears that the paper submitted to Parlia-
ment as embodying the agreement is merely a memorandum by Mr. Batkin.

Mr. Batkin would evidently wish it to be inferred that the Bank of New Zealand, not only at
Wellington, but at all its branches, keeps separate accounts in its books for all the various public
accounts to which he refers; but I understand such is not the case, that being done at the Treasury,
and not at the Bank.

Mr. Batkin evidently feels called upon, not to devise means for facibtating the business of the
country, but raises every possible objection, either reasonable or otherwise, to any change in the
present system.

It is observed that the Bank charges Is. per cent, for remittances by telegram within the colony.
This is not according to agreement, and is a charge not made to private parties having accounts at
various places.

Mr. Batkin's figures with regard to the difference between selling bills in London and causing
funds to be transmitted to the colony are erroneous. The following is a more accurate mode of
stating the case :—Cost of transmitting moneyfrom London: Payment in London of £98 10s. sd. will purchase a
bill on New Zealand at sixty days' sight for £100; add interest for four months, £1; actual cost,
£99 10s. sd. To negotiate bills in the colony on London :Bills to produce £100 must be drawn for
£100 2s. 6d.; less interest on funds in England, four months, £1; actual cost, £99 2s. 6d. In favour
of process by bill, 7s. lid.

But it must be borne in mind that these calculations are based on the assumption that the
postal term between London and New Zealand is sixty days, whereas it is a fortnight less;
and it must also be considered that Mr. Batkin has chosen to calculate at the rate of interest
in London 3 per cent., whereas at the present moment it is only if, and when he wrote it was
either 2j or 2|. These circumstances would reduce the advantage of the present system by at least
ss. per cent. It may be pointed out also thatMr. Batkin seems to ignore the use of the telegraph for
such purposes, which wouldmake a considerable difference. Mr. Batkin's reference to Mr. Morrah's
evidenceregarding the sum of £340,000 apparently unaccounted for in the Financial Statementis
misleading, and seemingly intentionally so. The inference Mr. Morrahdrew was that the £340,000 had
gone to the Bank of New Zealand in payment of previous advances, and that is not denied. On the
contrary, it may be reasonably concluded that such repayment formed a part of the " expenditure" to
which Mr. Batkin refers, but of the particulars of which he is careful to avoid giving any information.

B—l. 2b.
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APPENDIX No. 13.
Produced at Meeting, 19th October, 1875.

(Put in by Mr. Batkin, Secretary to the Treasury.)
I have the honor to submit the following memorandum, in reply to certain remarks by Mr. Bridges,
on a statement made by me at therequest of the Public Accounts Committee :—

With regard to the observation that the original understanding as to the rate of interest on the
London balances has not been carried out, I have to remark that the question to which my statement
replied referred in no way to the rate of interest, but was an inquiry as to whether the agreement with
the Bank operated to restrict the Government in the advantageous disposal of its surplus balances in
London. In answering that question,I stated that theBank took the account originally on the under-
standing that " the terms allowed were to be the same as those granted by other banks;" and I made
that statement, not with any view to setting forth what those terms were, but simply to show that the
only condition attachingto the arrangementwas one which in no way restricted the Governmant " in
the'advantageous disposal of its surplus balances in London."

With reference to the remark that " it nowappears that the paper submitted to Parliament as
embodying the agreement is merely a memorandum by Mr. Batkin," I may state thatI am unable to
perceive the point of the observation. If it be the case that Mr. Bridges supposed that paper to be
other than a memorandum by myself, I can only express my regret that he did not make himselfmore
perfectly acquainted with the document.

I donot know on what ground Mr. Bridges takes upon himself to assert that I evidently wish an
incorrect, and therefore improper, inference to be drawn from my remarks as to the division of the
account. The assertion is absolutely untrue, and therefore quite unjustifiable. The statementcon-
tained in the succeeding paragraph is an uncalled-for impertinence, which I decline to notice further.

The charge of Is. per cent, for moneys remitted by telegraph is a recent modification of an old,
though unrecorded, arrangement. The statement that such a charge is not made to private individuals
is erroneous; since I learn that it is the practice of the banks, whenremitting by telegraphfor private
individuals, to charge exchange rates in addition to all telegraph charges.

Mr. Bridges' illustration of the cost of transmitting money from London agrees with the state-
ment madeby myself, but his illustration of the cost of negotiating a bill on London is erroneous.
Mr. Bridges states it thus :—

£ s. d.
For negotiating abill on London at 60 days', you must pay ... 100 2 6
Less interest on funds in London, 4 months ... ... ... 100

£99 2 6

But this sum must be reducedby afurther sum of £1 for the interest accruing on the Colonial
Account during the currency of the draft, making the amount £98 2s. 6d., or Ifths better than the
plan of drawing in London, as stated in the illustration given in my memorandum (page 31).

Mr. Bridges' answer, as printed, to the question No. 121, is so unintelligible that it is impossible
to arguefrom what he said, or appears to have said; but his answer certainly implied that it was more
profitable to draw in London on New Zealand, than to draw in New Zealand on London ; but in the
memorandumby Mr. Bridges now under reply, he admits that the plan of negotiating a draft in the
colony is more favourable by fths (7s. lid.) than drawing on New Zealand, and had he allowed credit,
as he should have done, for the interest on the proceeds of the draft credited to tbe Colonial Account
from the date of drawing to the maturity of the draft, say four months, at 3 per cent.=£l, his
calculation would have agreed with minein this case likewise.

Mr. Bridges' remarks as to the course of post being forty-five and not sixty days are incorrect, the
time occupied by the San Francisco mails for the past ten months being—

Inwards. Outwards.
Maximum length of voyage ... ... ... 59 days 61 days.
Minimum „ ... ... ... ... 47 ~ 46„
Average ~ ... ... ... ... 51 „ 52 ~Taking the averageat fifty-one, and adding sixty-three days for the currency of the draft; the

result is 114 days. I have, however, in my calculation, adopted the same terms on both sides, and the
differenceof time would disturb the calculation very slightly. In answer to the remarks as to the
rate of interest in London being now only If-, I need only say that when I wrote it was 2f. I might
argue that in November 1873 the Bank rate was 9 per cent., and in November 1874 was 6 per cent.,
in which case the ColonialAccount under the arrangement now subsisting wrould have borne 8| and
5| per cent.; but it appears unnecessary to inform the Committee that, in a calculation based upon
a fluctuating rate of interest, the profit on these transactions would fall or rise with that rate.

I pass over Mr. Bridges' comment as to the character of my remarks on the evidence of Mr.
Morrah. Ido not know what "inference Mr. Morrah drew" from the answer he gave to the Com-
mittee. The statement I commented on was Mr. Morrah's answer to the questions 491-2, that there
was a sum of " £340,000 not accounted for in the Financial Statement; " and Ipointed out that this
apparent deficiency could not be accounted for by the conclusion that it was a sum " advanced by the
Bank of New Zealand." I now perceive that Mr. Morrah had assumed that the Government had
obtainedan advance of £340,000 from the Bank of New Zealand, and had concluded that theapparent
deficiency in the cash balance on the 31st Maywas caused by that sum having been repaid to the Bank
of New Zealand, not advanced by the Bank, as stated in his answer. I feel it due to Mr. Morrah to
say that I was myself misled by his answer, and I believe he will acquit me of any intention to mis-
represent him.
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Mr. Bridges' statement, that it is not denied that an advance of £340,000 was made by the Bank,
is scarcely reconcilable with the positive evidence of Mr. Murdoch on that point, supported as that
evidence is by the memorandum published as Appendix No. 4. The unworthy sugestion that in my
memorandumI had avoided giving any particulars of that sum will require no explanation to the
Committee, who will remember that I was requested to make a statement with a view to being
examined thereupon, and who are no doubtaware that the Hon. Major Atkinson was in possession of
thefullest information on the subject.

C. T. Batkin,
Treasury, 19th October, 1875. Secretaryto Treasury.

APPENDIX No. 14.
Produced at Meeting, 20th October, 1875.

Bank of Australasia, Inspector's Office, Wellington,
Sib,— 19th October, 1875.

When attending the Committee, by appointment, this morning, I learned with regret that
time did not permit of their examining me further, but that I was at iiberty to put in writing any
additional information that I might wish to give regarding the banking arrangements of the Govern-
ment, and that any communication would appear as an Appendix to the evidence, if sent in within a
few hours.

I avail myself of that permission to make hurriedly afew observations.
First.—As to my evidencehitherto, as printed, many of the questions and answersat the end are

evidently confused, and I think it necessary to refer to my letter printed in the Appendix, in order to
set myself right with the Committee; and, further, now to append, without comment, a statement,
(extracted from the Government Gazettes) showing certain average balances at the Bank of New
Zealand for the quarters ending March 1873, 1874, and 1875, respectively, which will afford the infor-
mation asked for at my hands.

Bank of New Zealand Aveeages, extracted from Government Gazette.

-SeeAppendix
No. 7.

Secondly.—I wish to draw the attention of the Committee to the extraordinaryfact that the
memorandumof agreement,which has been presented to both Houses of Parliament, to the Committee
themselves, to witnesses, and also to counsel in London, as embodying the arrangements under which
thebanking business of the New Zealand Government is conducted by the Bank of New Zealand,
differs from the actual agreement existing between the parties, in one particular, at least, of vital
importance to the proper conduct of this inquiry—namely, as pointed out by Mr. Batkin in reviewing
my answer to question 459, the actual arrangement in respect to the London account is, that the
Bank should have the benefit of the deposit of all balances of the New Zealand Government, not only
in New Zealand but in London, provided " that the same terms areallowed for those balances as were
granted by other banks."

One of thechief, if not the chief, points remitted to the Committee in the order of reference is
whether the conditions with the Bank " imperatively required that so large a sum as between three
and four millions should be deposited with one institution," and the most important of all the questions
put to me was No. 459, above referred to. Through ignorance of the provision now disclosed, I
answered that the Bank could compel the deposit of all Governmentmoneys. I should, of course,
answer very differently now. I notice also that many questions bearing on the same point were put
to Mr. Murdoch, day by day, and his answers to No. 7, 13, and others would certainly lead to the
inference that he likewise was unaware of the provision. And other witnesses expressly stated that
their knowledge of the arrangements was confined to the terms shown in Mr. Batkin's memorandum,
otherwise they would probably have given different expression to their views. The importance of
this omission will thus, I am sure, not be under-estimated by the Committee when summing up.

Thirdly.—Mr. Batkin, in criticising my answer to No. 491—which of course was intended to refer
to a repayment and not to an advance—states, by implication, that no portion of the amount of
£340,000, unaccounted for in the Treasurer's Financial Statement, was devoted to the repayment of
money advanced by the Bank of New Zealand prior to the floating of the Four Million Loan; but
Mr. Murdoch, in answer to question No. 45, states that the Government's (unsecured) drafts on the
Loan Agents for £200,000 or £300,000 had been negotiated prior to the negotiation of the loan; and,
I think, the Committee would find, if looking into the matter, that the £110,000 for commission and
discount, stated by Mr. Batkin to have been deducted from the £3,167,571, was not so deducted, but
thatat least £200,000 for repayments to the Bank of New Zealand was so. If this prove the case, it
would seem, by Mr. Stafford's question No. 492, that the Committee have been under a misappre-
hension as to the amount of unsecured advances madeby the Bank of New Zealand; and that at least
£230,000,instead of £30,000, had been so advanced before the floating of the loan. By their numerous

Quarter ending Circulation. Government
Deposits.

Public
Deposits.

Total Deposits
and

; Circulation.
Coin and
Bullion.Advances.

March 1873

„ 1874
1875

I

...I

£
346,266

414,232
461,613

£
508,620

£
1,611,116

£
2,466,002

£
2,239,100

£
587,003

1,151,004 1,831,525 3,396,762 3,463,776 665,825

925,065 2,028,941 3,415,618 4,168,134 459,904
I
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questions on this point, it would appear as if the Committee attached considerable importance to
obtaining correct information, and it might be worth while to inquire further.

Fourthly.—Mr. Murdoch states, in answer to No. 178, that in the Government banking arrange-
ments in New South Wales there is no provision made for a simple overdraft; but, I think, it will be
found that the printed report, handed in by himself, shows that " the Government may occasionally
overdrawto the extent of £150,000."

Fifthly.—Mr. Murdoch speaks of the Bank of New Zealand doing gratis the workof paymasters,
who. he says, cost Victoria from £15,000 to £20,000 a year. The fact is that the country paymasters
in Victoria discharge multifarious duties, such as those of Gold Receivers, Land Officers, occasionally
Sheriffs, and many others, so that the comparison is not a fair one. The value of similar work done in
New South Wales is apparently assessed at not more than £1,586 a year, and practically very little
trouble is entailedon the Bank.

Sixthly.—As to the difficulty apprehended by Mr. Batkin in dividing the account, there is really
very little, beyond an alteration in the book-keeping. It would occupy too much space here to point
out in what form the division should be made, but Mr. Batkin has failed to hit on the right one ; and
as to the onerous natureof the business perfprmed for the Government, I am quite sure that anyother
bank or banks would gladly undertake it on fhe same terms.

Seventhly.—Mr Palmer,inreply to Major Atkinson, No. 387, expresses his opinion that the terms
allowed by the Associated Banks in Victoria are more liberal than those allowed hereby the Bank of
New Zealand, and he gives hisreasons ; but one most important point of differencehas escapedhim—viz.,
that while Government moneypaid in at Melbourne, which forms the great bulk of the whole Govern-
ment lodgments in the colony, bears interest at once, and that paid in at the out-districts generally
from the next day (owing to superior railway and mail arrangements), here it is only the money
collectedat Wellington—probably not one-twentieth of the whole—which bears interestat once, and
the remaindernot until one to perhaps three weeks afterwards—a matter of considerablemoment in
calculating therate of interest to be allowed.

Eighthly.—The question raised in Nos. 91, 92, and 93, as to the position of the Government as a
preferential creditor, is fraught with importance to the public generally, and specially to the depositors
in and note-holders of any bank intrusted with large sums of Government money ; and I donot think
that the answers to Nos. 124, 125, and 126 can be regarded as disposing of it satisfactorily. The
doctrinelaid down is a new one to many,and it wouldbe satisfactory if the Committee, in their report,
would enlighten them on what authority it is to be accepted.

I have, &c,
E. W. Moebah,

The Chairman of the Public Accounts Committee. Inspector.

APPENDIX No. 15. .
Produced at Meeting, 20th October, 1875.

The Hon. E. W. Staffobd to Mr. D. L. Muedoch.
(Telegram.) Government Buildings, Wellington, 19th October, 1875.

In evidence taken before the Public Accounts ( ommittee, Mr. Bridges has stated that Sir Julius
Vogel's accountwith the Bank of New Zealand at Wellington was nearly always overdrawn. Also,
that it was exceptionally treatedby the Bank in the following way—-namely, that whenever such over-
draft had reached £200, it was transferred to Auckland by Sir Julius Vogel's cheque on your Head
Office; that the accommodationso given was so excessive that the Bank would have great power over
Sir Julius Vogel; that the transfer of overdraft from Wellington to Auckland was of frequent occur-
ence, and, as Mr. Bridges thinks, much more often than four or five times a year.

The Committee desire me to ask you whether Mr. Bridges' statement that Sir Julius Vogel's
account was exceptionally treated is correct? Reply at once.

E. W. Staffobd,
D. L. Murdoch, Esq., Chairman ofPublic Accounts Committee.

Inspector, Bank of New Zealand, Auckland.

D. L. Mußoocn to Hon. E. W. Staffobd.
(Telegram.) Auckland, 19th October, 1875.

At time Mr. Bridges was in Bank Sir Julius Vogel was resident in and kept his operative account in
Auckland, where he had valuable mining and other interestsyielding considerable revenue. His Wel-
lington account was for family expenses while obliged to reside there ; and at his request, instead of his
drawing each cheque on Auckland, the balance was allowed to accumulate till it reached about £200,
and he then drew a cheque on his Auckland account. In no way was the account treated in an excep-
tional manner. The imputation apparently meant by Mr. Bridges is simply a wicked and malicious
invention.

The Hon. E. W. Stafford, Wellington. D. L. Muedoch.

APPENDIX No. 16.
Produced at Meeting, 20th October, 1875.

(Correspondence between the Bank of New Zealand and the Treasury relating to the conduct of the
business of the Government by the Bank.)

Mr. Thomas Russell to the Hon. the Colonial Teeasubeb.
Sib,— Bank of New Zealand, Christchurch, 29th March, 1867.

Referring to the recent interview I have had with you, and to the correspondence that has
already passed between this Bank and yourself, relative to the conduct of the Government Account
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by the Bank, and also taking into consideration the altered and improved position in which the
Government Account will shortly be placed by the sale of the Treasury bills for £150,000, I have
now the honor to submit the following terms for your approval as the terms upon which theBank of
New Zealand proposes to manage thebanking business of the Government:—

1. That the charge to be made by the Bank for interest on any debit balance of the Government
not exceeding £50,000 pounds shall be at the rate of £6 per centum per annum.

2. That, in the event of such debit balance exceeding £50,000, the rate ofinterest shall be £7 per
centum per annum on the whole amount while such excess exists.

3. That, in the event of the Bank of England discount rate continuing for two months in excess
of 6 per cent., an increase of the rates provided by clauses 1 and 2 shall be allowed the Bank for
the whole period such increase has been maintained, equal to the difference between 6 per cent, and
theBank of England rate.

4. That interest shall be credited to the Government upon the average balance of the Government
Account kept at Wellington, known as " The Public Account," at the rate of £4 per centum per
annumso long as that average shall be under £50,000, and when above that amount the interest shall
be credited upon the whole amount at the rate of £3 per centum per annum.

5. That allremittances between the provinces of New Zealand on Government account be made
at par.

6. That all remittances between New Zealand and the adjoining colonies be made by fifteen days'
sight drafts at par; by drafts at shorter currency, at one-half the ordinary drawing rate charged to
the public.

7. That all remittances to London be made by sixty days' sight bills at par ; by drafts at shorter
currency, at one-half per cent, below the current rate, but never below par.

8. That the Bank of New Zealand shall continue bankers for the General Government until tho
present proposed arrangementbe determinedby six months' previous notice.

9. That all past arrangements shall be considered rescinded from the date of theacceptance of this
proposal, except for such transactions under existing agreements as have not matured at such date.

In proposing theforegoing terms, theDirectors have made their proposals upon such a scale as to
leave to the Bank only a very moderatemargin of profit; and the Directors of the Bank refer with
confidence to the past dealings of the Bank with the Government as a guarantee that at all times the
requirements of the Government will be met with the utmost liberality that prudent managementon
the part of the Bank will allow.

I have, &c,
Thomas' Russell,

For the Directors of the Bank of New Zealand.
The Hon. the Colonial Treasurer, Wellington.

The Hon. W. Fitzheebebt to Mr. Thomas Russell.
Sib,— Treasury, Wellington, Ist May, 1867.

In reply to your letter of 29th March last, submitting certain terms for my approval as the
terms upon which the Bank of New Zealandproposes to manage the bankingbusiness of the Govern-
ment, 1 have the honor to state, for the information of the Directors of the Bank of New Zealand,
that I have submitted these proposals to my colleagues in Cabinet, and that I am authorized to inform
you that the terms as jiroposed are regarded by the Government as just and liberal; and that
I accordingly, on the part of the Government, accept them without any modification as from this date.

I have, &c,
Thomas Russell, Esq., Bank of New Zealand, Auckland. W. Fitzheebebt.

Mr. Thomas Russell to the Hon. the Colonial Teeasueee.
Sib,— Christchurch, sth August, 1867.

Referring to the arrangementexisting between this Bank and the Government of New Zea-
land for the conduct of the banking business of the Government, I have the honor to direct your
attention to the fact that, from papers recently printed, it appears that balances of funds remaining in
the hands of the Crown Agents belonging to the Government of this colony have been kept by the
Crown Agents in other banks in London, and have not been deposited with the Bank of New Zealand
there. Irefer, by way of example, to an item remitted for investment on account of sinking fund,
which, it appears, remained in the hands of the London Joint Stock Bank.

Looking to the spirit of the agreement existing between the Government and this Bank, and
seeing that it is a part of the business of the Bank of New Zealand to keep current and deposit
accounts for its customers in London, I am sure you will agree with me that this Bank should have
thebenefit of the deposit of all balances of the New Zealand Government funds, not only in New
Zealand but in London.

I, therefore, respectfully submit for your consideration my request that the Crown Agents may
be instructed to keep all balances under their control belonging to the Government of New Zealand
with the Bank of New Zealand in London.

I have, &c,
Thomas Russell,

For the Directors of the Bank of New Zealand.
The Hon. tho Colonial Treasurer, Wellington.

The Hon. the Colonial Teeasueee to Thomas Russell, Esq., Wellington.
Sib,— Treasury, Wellington, 16th September, 1567.

I have the honor to acknowledge the receipt of your letter of sth ultimo, in. which, for the
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reasons set forth, you request that that the Crown Agents may be instructed to keep all balances
under their control belonging to the Government of New Zealand with the Bank of New Zealand in
London. The Government acknowledge thefairness of your request, and will, by the outgoing mail,
have the necessary instructions conveyed to the Crown Agents accordingly, it being understood
that the Bank of New Zealand will allow the terms for Government balances in London that are
allowedfrom time to timeby the other banks.

I have, &c,
Thomas Russell, Esq., Wellington. William Fitzhebbeet.

The Hon. the Colonial Teeasueee to the Manages, Bank of New Zealand, Wellington.
Sib,— Treasury, Wellington, 12th June, 1868.

I have the honor to submit for your consideration a proposition with respect to the supply of
funds by your Bank in London, for the payment of interest and sinking fund on account of the
various loans of this colony.

The enclosed schedule will show the amounts that require to be provided, the days on which the
respective payments have to be made, and the parties to whom the money is to be paid.

The Government wishes that the Bank should provide these sums on the days on which they are
required, without any further notice being given; and I therefore request that 1 may be informed of
the terms on which the the Bank would undertake to do this.

In conversation with the Inspector of the Bank of New Zealand, I suggested that the Bank
should furnish a schedule similarto that nowenclosed, showing the days on which it would require to
be placed in funds to meet these payments ; and that prior to those days the Manager of the Bank in
Wellington should apply to the Treasury for a Controller's order, authorizing the transfer of the
required sum from the Public Account to the Bank, including the charge for remittance according to
the scale at present in force. I understood from Mr. Murdoch that the Bank would be willing
to enter into such an arrangement, when the terms should have been mutually agreed to.

As the first payment that has to be provided for requires to be made on the IstNovember, I hope
to receive your answer in such time as to cause that payment to come under the proposed arrange-
ment.

I have, &c,
The Manager, Bank of New Zealand, Wellington. John Hall.

Mr. T. M. Stewabt to the Hon. the Colonial Teeasueee.
Sib,— Bank of New Zealand, Wellington, 24th June, 1868.

I have the honor to acknowledge receipt of your letter of 12th instant, proposing that the
Bank should provide funds in London for the due paymentof interest and sinking fund on account of
the various loans of this colony, according to the dates specified in an accompanying schedule.

In reply, I have to state, on behalf of the Bank, that we shall be glad to meet the views of the
Government in this matter, and willarrange for the transmission of funds to meet the payment due
on Ist November, subject to the terms hereafter to be agreed upon.

As the settlement of these terms will require careful consideration, I am under the necessity of
consulting with the Inspector of the Bank before submitting any definite proposal to you; but I trust
that before the departure of the mail on Bth proximo, I shall be able to lay before you a statement of
the different dates on which it would be necessary to place the Bank in funds here to meet the
payments in London, and the terms on which we can undertake to make these remittances.

I have, &c,
T. M. Stewabt.

The Hon. the Colonial Treasurer, Wellington. Acting Manager.

Memorandum for the Hon. the Colonial Teeasueee.
Bank of New Zealand, Wellington, 7th July, 1868.

The Bank will undertake to comply with therequest made in the Colonial Treasurer's letter of 12th
ultimo, provided the Government agree to the following modification of the terms hitherto subsisting
inregard to sixty days' sight bills—namely, that in future a premium of 3- per cent, will be charged
onremittances made at that currency.

Such a modification it is hoped will appear reasonable, when it is remembered that when the
existing arrangement was made, in March 1867, the amount to be provided in London was not more
than one-third of what has now to be paid, and since that date the selling rate to the public has
uniformly been 1} per cent, premium.

As desired, a statement is attachedof the dates on which the interest and sinking fund should be
paid here in time for the due dates in London.

Mr. T. M. Stewabt to the Hon. the Colonial Teeasueee, Wellington.
Sib — Bank of New Zealand, Bth July, 1868.

Referring to my letter of 24th ultimo, in reply to yours of 12th idem, as to the terms on
which the Bank will be prepared to provide funds in London for the due payment of interest and
sinkingfunds on account of the various loans of this colony, I have the honor to inform you that
the Bank will undertake the responsibility of forwarding the necessary remittances, provided the
Government agree to the following modification of the arrangement hitherto subsisting in regard to
sixty days' sight bills—viz., that in future a premium of -| per cent, will be charged on remittances
made at that currency. Such a modification it is hoped will appearreasonable, when it is remembered
that at the time the existing terms were agreed upon, in March 1867, the amount to be provided in
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London was not more than one-thirdof what has now to be remitted ; and since that datethe selling
rate to the public has uniformly been li premium.

As desired, a statement is enclosed of the dates on which the several amounts should be paid
here to secure their transmission by sixty days' sight drafts in sufficient time to mature in London as
the payments become due.

I have, &c,
T. M. Stewabt,

The Hon. the Colonial Treasurer, Wellington. Acting Manager.

Mr. John Hall to -the Manages, Bank of New Zealand, Wellington.
Sib,— Treasury, Wellington, Bth July, 1868.

I have the honor to acknowledge your letter of this day, communicating the terms on which
the Bank will be prepared to carry out the arrangement respecting payment of interest and sinking
fund in London, proposed in my letter No. 498, of the 12th ultimo.

In answer,-1 have to state that Ido not see my way to agreeing to these terms as a permanent
arrangement without giving the matterfurther consideration than time and circumstances now admit
of. As a temporary arrangement, however, I am prepared to agree to this proposal on the under-
standing that it will be open to reconsideration hereafter. I shall be glad of the arrangement dating
on and from to day, a remittance being required by this day's post to meet the interest due on Ist
November next.

I have, &c,
The Manager, Bank of New Zealand, Wellington. John Hall.

The Hon. E. W. Staffobd to the Managee, Bank of New Zealand, Wellington.
Sic,— Treasury, Wellington, sth December, 1868.

I have the honor to bring under your notice the alterationwhich has been made and is being
effected by the operations under the authority of the ConsolidatedLoans Act inrespect of payments to
be madein London on account of interest and sinking fund on the loans of the colony.

The result of these operations will materially alter the dates of payment and the amounts to be
paid for, which it is necessary that arrangements should now be made. It is not practicable yet to
state with precision what these amounts will eventually be ; but, by the last advices received from
London, I learn that the next quarterly payment of interest on the consolidated loans would amount to
£59,700, and, if the conversion is completely effected, the quarterly payments to be made may reach a
maximumof £105,000, equal to £420,000 per annum. These payments, I need scarcely observe, will
not be in addition to the £265,000 you have already undertaken to provide for, but will take the place
of £210,000 of that sum, and of the sums which you are now paying for the Provinces of Canterbury
and Otago.

In connection with the subject of the sums which may require to be provided to meet these pay-
ments, I would call your attention to the greatly improved state of the Public Account with your
Bank, and to the largebalances that are and have been lying there, and which on this day amount in
theBank in Wellington to £112,483 9s. lid., in addition to the money that has been paid in to the
various branches of the Bank since the 23rd ultimo.

In view of all the circumstances, I nowpropose that the Bank should undertaketo make the pay-
ments as they will be required, according to a schedule to be furnished by the Treasury, on the
Governmentpaying the several sums to the Bank in Wellington three months before the date of pay-
ment in London—that is to say, that for a sum due in London on the 15thApril, the money shall be
paid to the Bank in Wellington on the 15th January.

I have to request the favour of an early reply.
I have, &c,

The Manager, Bank of New Zealand, Wellington. E. W. Staffobd.

Mr. T. M. Stewabt to the Hon. the Colonial Teeasueee.
Sic,-— Bank of New Zealand, Wellington, 16th December, 1868.

I have the honor to acknowledge receipt of your letter of sth inst., intimating the alteration
in the payments to be made in London on account of interest and sinking fund on the consolidated
loans of the colony, and proposing a modification of the terms on which the Bank shall in future
transmit the moneyfor these purposes to the Crown Agents.

2. Under our present agreement the Bank makes these remittances by sixty days' drafts, at a
uniform rate throughout the year of J per cent, premium. Tour proposal thatwe should undertake
to make thesepayments, " on the Government paying to theBank in Wellington the several sums three
months before theyfall due in London," is equivalentto a request for a reduction of i per cent, in the
rate of premium ; for by this arrangement the Government would retain the use of the money for a
month longer, and the Bank would have to pay J per cent, on the amount in interest during that term.

3. A slight consideration of the cost to the Bank of providing coverfor so large an amount would
show that such an arrangement must be the reverse of profitable. The payments are of such a
magnitude that in order to meet them recourse must frequently be had to the Australian market for
British exchange; and when it is considered that the rate ruling there at the present time (the most
favourable in the course of the year) is £ per cent, premium for sixty days' sight drafts, I trust it may
be evident that the Bank has dealt liberally with the Government in undertaking so large a transac-
tionat what must be regarded as the minimum rate in Australia. Exceptional cases arise doubtless
whereexchauge can be had on lower terms, but I am satisfied that our existing arrangementwill bear

& favourable contrast with that subsisting between the Governments of the neighbouring colonies and
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theirbankers, although the facilities available there for operations of this nature on theLondon market
are so much greater than New Zealand can present.

4. I do not for a moment overlook the considerations to which you draw my attention in your
paragraph No. 3. It is a source of much satisfaction to the Directors of the Bank that the Govern-
ment account is in so healthy a condition. For some years past they had to contemplate, not without
anxiety, a very different state of affairs; and since during that period they had never taken advantage
of the necessities of the Government, they nowtrust to be met in the same liberal spirit, so long as the
terms they offer are reasonable and not inconsistent with advantage to the interests of both the colony
and the Bank.

5. Since the Government desire, therefore, to make their remittances thirty days later than under
existing arrangements, the Bank will undertake to do so at a premium off per cent., which virtually
amounts to iper cent, premium, at sixty days' sight. As the Government will have the use of the
money for one month longer than formerly, they will gain in interest the additional charge of f per
cent, on the shorter term ; and I may add that if at any time it maybe an object to pay the interest in
Wellington within sixty days of the due date in London, the Bank would agree to the wishes of the
Government in this respect, in consideration of a proportionate increase to the premium. I need not
point out to you that this concession involves a great deal more than appears at first sight. The
arrangements of the Bank to pay the interest must be made some time prior to the payment of the
amount in Wellington, and the credit of the colony would be protected from any injury that might arise
through interruption in the course of post to London, or any other contingency which might interfere
with the due transmission of funds.

6. In conjunction with this proposal, I would state that, should the Government require to make
a further issue of Treasury bills under the Act of 1868, the Bank would be prepared to modify the
terms on which they purchased the last issue of £12,000, from 4id. to 43. per cent, per diem,
being areduction of 1 per cent.—that is to say, we would take up the balance of the sum authorized
by the Act at par, if issued to bear interest at 6 per cent.

7. As a loan of this character is purely of a temporary nature, the bills are marketable onlyto a
limited extent in the colony on account of their limited duration. They, therefore, stand on a different
footing from debentures ofa longercurrency; and, looking at the quotations of New Zealandconsols in
London, where money is so immeasurably cheaper at present than in the colonies, I trust you will
recognize iv this offer from the Bank the evidence of our desire to transact thebusiness of the Govern-
ment on the most equitable terms.

I have, &c,
T. M. Stewabt,

The Hon. the Colonial Treasurer, Wellington. Manager.

The Hon. E. W. Staffobd to the Manages, Bank of New Zealand.
Sib,— Treasury, 19th December, 1868.

I have the honor to acknowledgeyour letter of the 16th instant, stating the terms on which
the Bank would undertake to place funds in London for the payment of interest and sinking fund on
account of this Government.

Under the circumstances referred to by you, the Government is prepared to accept the terms
proposed in the fifth paragraph of your letter, with this modification, that the premium on remittances
shall be insteadof f per cent, as you have suggested.

The proposal to purchase Treasury bills at par, with interest at the rate of 4d. per dieminstead of
4jd., at which the last were taken, is a fair one, and one that will receive favourable consideration ; but
the Government does not consider theprice at which Treasury bflls may be sold to the Bank as having
any necessary relation to the question brought under notice in my letter of the sth instant, but as a
separate transaction, to be arranged from time to time as Treasury bills may require to be issued.

I have, &c,
The Manager, Bank of New Zealand, Wellington. E. W. Staffobd.

Mr. T. M. Stewabt to the Hon. the Colonial Teeasueee, Wellington.
Sic— Wellington, 22nd December, 186S.

I have the honor to acknowledge receipt of your letter of 19th instant, in which you accept
the terms proposed by the Bank for the transmission of interest and sinking fund to London, provided
5 per cent, is substitutedfor f per cent, premium as our charge.

2. To this modification lam willing, on behalf of the Bank, to give my assent. The first payment,
therefore, to be made under this arrangement is due in London on the 15th April (as I learn from
your letterof the sth instant), and must be advised by the mail leaving Wellington on Bth January,
on which dateI shall be glad to receive from you the usual authority for the transfer of the amount.
Should any interruption takeplace in the Panama Mail Service, it will be necessary to take advantage
of the most favourable opportunity of communicating via Suez, so as to secure the timely arrival of
instructions to meet thepayments at maturity.

3. Withregard to the latterpart of your letter referring to Treasury bills, while I freely admit
that the price at which they may be sold has no necessary relation to the question more especially
under notice, yet it must be evident that the issue of such documents, as well as the Government
remittances toLondon, has a very important bearing upon the Public Account; and that while the Bank
frequently makes concessions to the Government which could not be made to the public, we are only
enabled to do so by taking into consideration the general advantages to be gained by transacting the
Government business in its different branches.

I have, &c,
T. M. Stewabt,

The Hon. the Colonial Treasurer, Wellington. Manager.
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Mr. T. M. Stewabt to the Hon. the Colonial Teeasueee, Wellington.
Sic,— Bank New Zealand, Wellington, 6th January, 1869.

Referring to the correspondence which has recently passed between the Government and the
Bank regarding the transmission of interest and sinking fund to London, I beg to state that the
cessation of the Panama Mail Service has so materially altered the conditions under which the Bank
undertook to make these remittances, that, in order to carry out the spirit of the agreement on an
equitable basis, some modification of the terms has become necessary.

The experience of the past two years has clearly shown that communication between Wellington
and London via Panama could be relied on within fifty days. Under the most favourable circum-
stances, we cannot expect to communicate by the Suez route in less than sixty days, and for the
present, while there is noregularly subsidized steamer to Australia, we cannot have intercourse with
London under sixty-fivedays. I need not point out to you that the time during which shipments of
gold are in transitu between the two points is an important element in determining the cost of
exchange, and tells materially against the Suez route when large remittances have to be made.
Another item of consequence is the difference of freight in the transmission of bullion, amounting to
i per cent, more via Melbourne and Suez than via Panama.

The payments to be made by the Government in London mature on the Ist and the 15th of
the month, and your proposal is that the money should be paid in Wellington three monthsprior to
the due date. The alteration which I would respectfully suggest is that the whole amount for each
month be paid here on the Ist. This would give an advantage to the Bank of fourteen days on each
payment due on the 15th, while those payable on the Ist would be transmitted on your own terms.
It will be evident that this change in the terms is by no means proportionate to the unfavourable
character of the conditions under which the Bank has now to conduct the Government exchange
operations with London ; and, taking all the circumstances of the case into consideration, I trust you
will perceive that the modification I propose is not unreasonable. One recommendation not to be
overlooked is that it would greatly simplify the settling of the payments, and dispense with any
reference to the particular day on which theEnglish mail may close in Wellington.

I have, &c,
T. M. Stewabt,

The Hon. the Colonial Treasurer, Wellington. Manager.

The Assistant Teeasueee to Mr. T. M. Stewabt.
Sib,— Treasury, Wellington, 11th January, 1869.

I am instructed by the Colonial Treasurer to acknowledge your letter of the 6th instant, and
to inform you that your proposal contained therein is accepted, as being consistent with the spirit of
the previous arrangement, subject only to this modification, that should a mail service via Panamabe
re-established, then payments are to be made to theBank in Wellington three months previous to the
date at which interest and sinking fund is due in London.

The amount payable in London on the 15th April will be paid to you (in this instance) on the
15th instant.

I have, &c,
J. WOODWABD,

'J. M. Stewart, Esq., Manager, Bank of New Zealand. Assistant Treasurer.

By Authority: Gsobgb Didsbury, GovernmentPrinter, Wellington.—lB7s.
Price 4s.] ,
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